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1J UDGE WnEBUlN, PRESENT-]

o‘mwwux.m, "On a charge of Adul
C VE. - tery with Rheda Da—-
JOY H. FJ.IRGHILD, vidson. © .

| Muﬂnin Mﬂrf-h. 24

mepced
S, D, PARKER, an, appeared for the gmmm-

ment, and Wx. BrigaAM, Esq., hag been asso-
ciated in preparing the evidence for the gov-

ernment. Junez WARRExand J. A. BULLEB,

Esq. for the Deferdant.
No 690. COM_MON \VEALTH

SRR 10 '~ Jov H. ancmm

Vol Bill found | Julyy 1844.

CGMHGNWEALTH OF MASSA HUEET

Suffolk, to wit.. At .the Municipal urt of
the eity, of Boston, begun and holden'dt said

Boston, within and for t

Lord 1844—
_The Jurors for the Cnmmnhwﬁ'alth of Mas.
sachusetts, .on their onth present, that Joy H.
‘airchild, late ‘a resident of said Boston, but

now. commorant of KExetar, in’ the county of.-

chkmgham and Staté of New Hampshlre,

Clerk, on the 19th

commit thé crime of adultery with one Rhodai
Davidson, then mmdam of said Bostmi
1Er1 y d’lﬂﬂ and

vidson, and cmmual sexual intercourse with
her, he the said Joy H.
there having a lawful wife ‘alive,
said Rhoda Davidson, against tha peaoe of said
Commonwealth, and eontrary to  the form of
the statute 1n such ‘case made and prwlded
Amw bill, -
' ‘Taos. RICHLRDEON, 4
| Foremali of the Grand J ury
RBajpgr Do PARKER, U0 0 e
Attnmriy of the Cﬂmmmwedth, & 1 'i

. The ) jury after hamng Satiéf‘autﬁﬂly unsweied

e county of Saffolk, ' nriny
on the first Monday of July, in the year of ’our

dav of December, in' the
year qt our Lord 1841, at Boston ﬁfotmaid did

Fairchild; then and
other than:

i that it is very difficult,af no
. inthelaw!books an e xact Gﬂmmbn law defini-

“the.usual statute quesm‘}na in relanﬁn to havmz

ari opinion. were then empannelled, and con-.

" sisted of the following named gentlemen; Tis-
dale Drake,Ben
‘Baldwin, Joseph J. Bigelow, Geo W
Henry R. Collier,
S W Converse,Gharleu 3. Ellis, Joha P.
banke, Christopher C.

a&t quarter 'paai 10 o’ Llcck. the mal com- Vaughao.

amin M. Akerman, Thomas C.

Cazneau, David G.
Bl!r—
Gore, and - Samnel

11 o e
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Mr Tisdale Drake ‘was appointed by the | 3

Court as Foreman of the Jury.
At 20 minutes to 11- o’¢lock, Mr PirxsR.

“commenced his opening to the Jury,and spoke:

subsatantially as follows.  His remarks oecupl-

ed about half an hour.
- MR PARKER’S REMARKS-
In the progrees of the trials at this term, gen--
tlemen ot e jury, we have now arnved =t a

3

* .y

prosecution of no ordinary importance. lt de—-

rives its interest from the heirnjousness of 1he:

. erime charged, and the previous. respectabjlity

of the person accused. ' lndietments of this.-

character are not indeed of unirequent occur=:
rence, as the records of thiz Court, and the-

and in most of the recent prosecutions for this.,
oﬂ'euca in this Court, the parties accuged have.

pleaded guilty, and either forfeited the penalty
of their recognizances, or quietly submitted 10,
he punishment of the law. But we are now;
bled for the' zolemn trial of an issue;an.
Wh the accused denies his'guilt; and we are:
pmcead through a most painfal mvesngauqﬂl
dﬁep{y affecting from many ‘cireumstances,

nted decisions of the Supreme Court attest;,

who are to be engaged in it, and involving un-,

der all circumstances, some ot the mast lmport-w

it is my duty in opening the case, to state .
the law 1o you, and give you a brief outline of,
the evidence to be introduced.

The first seotion of the 130th chapter of
the Revised Statutes iz, the’ dsis of' the
prosecution ; yeu percewe that though ‘the
punishment is preseribed, the crime iteelf is not

defined; and it is a remurﬁi;l;e:;‘bwl m:';"g:ﬁ'
e

tion : of -Adultery., . As 10 'tnost offefices ‘the

. defects . of the atatyte,. Ia‘w m remedied by @

‘wiueh s

recdrrence 10 . the COMMON’ 1d’w, Wil -
F o il il

edge of th 6 body of her, the eaid Rboda’ Ba-.: ant mteresta of society. .



proenitors brought with them to Americs, and
are continued inforee by the sixth chapter of
auy State Constitution; but as to the cnime of
aduliery, this remedy fails, for, for some centu-
zies, it has not been an offence recognized by

thwe temporal courts of the common law of Eng+ pounds . WAl

stripes, or imprisonment not exceeding =ix
months. After the Revolutior, among the
‘earliest laws of the Commonwealth, another

fand, and is not indictable there. (See Salkeld's
peports, 532) In very amcleat times it was
punished by spocial statutes in the temporal
caurts, but latterly (sinee the statute of 13, Ed-
ward the first, of eircumspecte agatis) onlg in
the courts chmt}a'n [the accieaiamtt:al fuu::ta- by

nance, pro salute amime, perpetual exiie, or
grgetua'l{;:primnmem- [See Gibson’s Odexz.
.

« The name of the offenee is said to be an
abridgement of Ad alterius thorum, though
some lawyers derive it from adullerating the
issue of the marriage bed, an opinion that de-
rives countenance from the fact that an un-
married woman cannot commit the crime. It
is an offence which seems to have been well
understood studied without a definition ; it is
prohibited in the Ten Commandmants, and
was punished quite severely in the Roman,
and in the Jewish law, and also In some of
the earliest laws of England. (See laws of
King Edmund, ch 4 ; Laws of Canute, part 6,
chap 2 ; Jaws of Henry lst, chap 12.) It is
punishable by indictment in all of the United
States except South Carolina, (se¢ 2, Bailey,
149,) and Virginia, (see 5 Randolph, 627 and
634,) and perhaps one or two other States, ad-
hering to the commonlaw. There have been
periods in the history of some nations, when
this crime was punished with death ; for in-
stance, among the Jews, (see Denteronomy,
eh 22, verse 22 ;) by the Julian law among the
Romans ; in England in 1630, (4 Blackstone,
%5) and in the Colony of Massachusetts Bay,
{see Colony laws, chap 18, sect 9.) But the
punishment for this crime has been gradually
relaxing for two centuries. Blackstone says,
“ jn the year 1650, when tie ruling powers
found it for their interest to put on the sem-
blance of a very extraordinary strictness and
purity of morals, not only Incest and wilful
adaltery were made capital crimes, but also
the repeated act of keeping a brothel, or com-
mitting fornication, were upon a second con-
viction, made felony without benefit of cler-
gy. Butatthe Restoration, wheu men, from
an abhorrence of the hypoericy of the late
titnes, fell into a contrary extreme of licen-
tiousness, it was not thought proper to renew
alaw of such unfashionable rigor, and these
afflences have ever since besn left to the tee-
ble coercion of the spiritual Court, aceording
to the rules of the canon law,a law which has
treated the offence of incontinence, nay even
adultery itself, with a great degree of tender-
mees and lenity, ewing, perhaps to the con-
sirained celibacy of its st compilers. The
temporal courts, therefore, take no cognizance
of adu!tery, otherwise than as a private mju-
ry.

A mitigated punishmen was also enacted in
1694 in Massachusetts, but it was still a severe
ane—sitting on the gallows witha rope around
the neck tor an hour, andin the way trom
thience to the jail, to be severe'y whipped, not
exceeding thirty-nine swipes, and torever atter
wearing a eapital A, of two inches long, cut
gut in cloth of a contrary color to the ether

clothes, and sewed outside on the back or arm,
and if the culprit was found without the letter,

then he was to be publicly whipped, nat ex-
ceeding fifteen stripes, toties, quoties. [See
Province Laws,ch28] -

In 1763, the punishment was made still more
lenient, a fine not exceeding ove hundred
pounds, or whipping not exceeding thirty

Act was passed, (1784 ch 40) by which the pun-
ishment was. sisting on the gallows with rope

round the neck, whipging thirty-nine stripes,

imprisoned, fined,and bound to good behavieur,
one or all of these things; but in 1812, (cha
134) all eorporeal punishments were abolishedp, s
and pemilentiary discipline was substituted ;
and now bv the Revised Statutes, the punish-
ment is imprisonment in the State Prison, not
exeeeding three years, or in the county jail not
exceeding two years, or by fine not exceeding
five hundred dollars.

Such are the provisions of law relative to
this crime. The facts in this case are few. It
is not a question of paternity,but of mere adulte-
rous commerce, and 1 beg you to make the dis-
tinction. The defendant, being a masried man,
living at South Boston, had in his famaily a de-
mestic named Rhoda Davidson, a young un-
married woman. Itis averred by the proseen-
tors that he solicited her chastity, and accom-
plished his wishes by a criminatl sexual inter-
course. The fact of the marriage is to be
proved, and also the eriminal connection. His
being a married man, and having a lawful wite
alive, will be admitted or proved, and 1 shall
offer you a witness who must certainly know
the fact if an illicit commeree oceurred. As
that witness will etand in the light of an aecom-
plice, I shall deem it proper to corroberate her
direet, explicit, positive,and,if believed,conelu:
sive testimony, by other evidence. That evi-
dence will consiet of the confession of the
accnged, which [ shall attempt to prove in three
different ways, by his spoken werds to different
persone, by his voluntary payment of a large
sum of money on acecount of the guiltv inter-
course, and by his written letter. Atter intro-
dueing this testimony,l shall wait for the learned
counse!l of the defendant to make his defence;
and if in the course of the defence the eredibil-
ity of the evidence introduced on the part of
the Commonwealth is assailed, I shall offer
several witnesses, and perhaps some document-
ary evidence to support it.

I am fully aware, that in a cesse which has
excited so much publie interest, there will be a
temptation on one side or both sides, to intro-
duce many collateral matters and circumstan-
ces, which may lead to a great waste of time,
and perhaps divert your attention {rom the only
issue now lawfully to be tried ; but,Intending
myself to keep a elose observance ot the
strictest rules of practice, I beseeeh my learned
friends, who have the charge of the defence,
also to endeavor to adhere to the known rules
of evidenee, and 1o avoid the introduction of
facts which have no bearing on the precise
question now to be tried.

We axe entering, gentlemen, upon a most
solemn and amportant search after the truth
and I hope the investigation will be confined

to the right direction, and will be marked by

candor, liberality, and a just regard of the rights
both of the accused and~ the witnesses. 1 g
sure I need not inviie your most carelul atten-
tion to thelevidence, mow so near the close of



your term of service in this court, a8 you have
already given 80 many proofs herc of your sin-
cere desire to discover the truth, and so many
creditable manifestations of ycur ability to find
it, and your strict impartiatitg in declaring it
when tound. You are ealled upon today to
perform a most important duty to the com-
monwealth to the party on trial, to the witiess-
es, and to societyat large. The lot has fallen
on you to discharge this duty, and you eannot

avoid it, and your oaths bind you to discharge

it conscientiously in the sight of God, and be=
fore your fellew citizens. 1 cannot doubt you
all feel the great responsibility cast on you b
the proceedings here today, and that you wi
summen the best faculties of vour heads and
hearts to perform your duty on this interestin
oceasion intelligently, honestly, fearlesszly, an
with a sineere desire to ascertain the truth by
your patient investigation, and to proclaim it
when discovered, as the result of impartial
reason, unbiassed by prejudice or partiality,
and as the dictate of an enlightened and scrupu-
lous conscience, which will never reproach
you hereafter for your righteous decision of
this important issue. I will now introduce the
testimoay.

The quotation by Mr Parker from Deut,
chapt 22, verse 22, is as follows—

“If aman be found lying with a woman
married to her husband, then shall they both of
them die, both the man that lay with the wo-
wen, and the woman ; so shalt thou putaway
evil from Israel.”

The firet proot offered, was that of the mar-

riage of Mr Farchild, as follows:

This may certifv that on the books of the 3d
Presbyterianf Church, Philadelphia, is the
record of a marsrage solemnized by Rev Stiles
Ely, D. D, on the 18th of July, 1825, in the fol-

lowing words .

o | ulg 18, 1825, Rev Joy H. Fairchild to Miss
Mary Bradford.” :

Given under my hand at Philadelphia, July
5, A.D. 1845. THoMAS BRAINARD,
Pastor of the 3d Presbyterran Church, Phila-
delphia.

Rhoda Davidsen was first called as a witness
She is a young, rather good-looking girl of 23
years of age, witha light complexion, brown

hair, and a low forehead. [The other witnesses
were ordered to retire from the Court House,
so as to separate them from Miss Davidson.]
She was sworn and testified as follows :

Tknow the Rev Mr Fairchild—have known
him since April 1840. 1 knew him first on
Broadway in South Boston, aad commenced
living with him that yeay, I went there first to
see if he wanted a girl at the request of Mr
Thacher—I think I went therein May. llived
there till the spring of 1841. Nothing Dparticu-
lar occurred there for some months, only Mr
¥. showed me more favors than other fﬂmle"
men in whose families 1 had lived. 1 di
suspect anything improper till he came to my
room, about three months from the time that
1 came~Mrs Fairchild was then absent from
home. Abouta week alter her departure,l
went {o the Baptist meeting and returned. Mr
F'. was sitting in the parlorand wanted me to
come in, as he wished to have a talk ‘with me.

d not Id

3

He first conversed about the meeting, how 1
liked 1t, how old I was, and wanted me to give
him an account of my religious experience. I
gave him my account, and he gaid he was pleaa-
ed tosee that I gave =0 good evidence of my
being a christian—after some talk, I gave him
my reason for becoming a baptist, and 1 esnid
he was glad that be and Mrs F. had been =0
fortunate as to getso good a girl. He was
pleased that I got along so well with his wite,
and said she was miﬁhtﬂy_ taken with me.
They never had so good a girlas 1 was. He
said I could get along with his wife well enough,
if I let her have her way, although I might be
obliged to stretch my conscience some times
—he then said, perhaps 1 might think it strange
that he took so mueh interest in me, and that
he would explain himself by and bye—he then
said, that he felt more interest in me, or differ
ent towards me, becanse I resembled, or was
the image of the young lady whom he addressed
or had regards tor, when a young man, and
before marriage, (Laughter in Court); he never
had seen any ene, he said, who looked so much
like this young lady as myself. 1 was con«
founded to hear such remarks—he went on to
state, that this lady was sick about a fortnight
before she died, and that he never thought he
could marry any one that did not look like her;
he had seen suchan oneonce in a church in
Philadelphia, and followed her after church, but
found she was married, and then felt very bad,
(Laughter) ; he said he had married his first
wife because other people got married—he then
spoke of his present wite ; he said she was a
very amiable woman at times, and had kn own
her onl{ a fortnight before he married her; if
he had been more acquainted with her he should
never have had her; she was veg good where
she tock, but when she was miffed, she was the
most aggravating woman that he ever saw. He
then spoke aborit my course which I was te
pursue with her ; he said, you see that I place

reat confidence in you, or I should uot 1ell youn
thnis.

He told me never to tell of theze things, for
they might ruin him. He then stated the eir-
cumstances of a minister who had confided im
a girl, who told of it, and it ruined him. I was
sitttng on the sofa, and he came up and kissed
me I asked him what he thought his wife
would say. He said it was just as well, and
she was justas happy as long as she knew
nothing about it. Said he, how should I feel,
if [ knew all that my wite did when she was ab-
sent. I wassitting in a rocking chair first, and
he wanted me to sit in hislap. [ declined, and
then sat on the sofa where he kissed me. He

ut his arms aronnd my neck when he did o.

did not stay but a lit.le while atter this. Just as
I was going out, he came to me, and said he
loved me to distraction—and hugged me very
tight. (Laughter.) No other person was in
the house. I left the room to retire for the
night, and went to bed immediately ; 1 lept in
the attic ; it was on the roof. I thought of all
these things, and if it had been any body but
Mr Fairchild, I thould have suspected evil, but
did not, as 1 always regarded him as a good,
pious, devoted, and exemplary man—a chris-
tian. I thought Mr Fairchild’s reason for
making love to me, however, was not a good
one. There was no fastening on the door, or
only part of one. It was not fastened that
night. I went to sleep, and at last I waked
up,and saw Mr F. standing by my bed. Said
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ine t(g Qohkﬁlfila the %ﬁ ta see if I lﬁokadddﬂ;r'a:::ut.

1t i ¢ ext ought a w eal a t

emﬂckr luas not treated just so, I

as.,. ore. ' But ”ti!.bﬂgthﬁf 1 lafr,

“'or %’ﬁ ‘5‘2."‘1‘2‘.? m’“:‘:;‘ oo o1

Eriil Hethohih  down:on’ th&mtmls of my bed.; othing specia
- Y pot hnder t.m ¢lothes; I hadino hght in the.. ',gg“'f‘ﬂ d till 4*0r5vweeBIts'f:v r tlrrli Mits F. return-
*m ‘He wied: 'to get my head uncwemd rom her journey efore’this he had inter-

** But did - not make  much, headway. - He said
+ Tshould stifle, and if I would rios uncover my
-~ head, e shonld
“yoom: # 1 hatt
**“ Jn about a week,I dlept below tor a reasou that
¢ JTamimo fpi'nparhd to mention, or that I cannot
L oaecount d¢ was the L part of the house,
¥.1n the second story, and’ connected with Jhej
“hursery. ltwasa bright mnonhght night ;' /he

was in his night elothes; and: lay down on the, i

~outside of my 'bed.: I was then asleep, and 1.
»don’t know whether he laid down when he first
© eame in. ‘No one else was in'the room. Flra;
X heard was, ¢ Chicky are youdsleep.”’ [Laugh- .
1 ter.] laqkeﬂ tima 'what he was tohere for.
- said he liked me 8o well, ke could not keep;
. away {from e -1 maid I teared he had come..
" tor hio good--purpese; (he: warited ' 0. know
..it he'mightnot get into héd. -1 asked him if
. Hie wanted ‘'my bed=if he did, I would sleep,
i another rooni;  he said it was: rather chilly
- here, and asked if “bhe might not get into bed :
‘he said he wnuld notharm me, for he loved me:
" toa ‘well. !
‘1 raisad, and Mr F.
oget -outy butithe took hold ot me, and asked
= wehere'l was gning; be said he felt no differeny
- ¢owards me thanaf’ I had been his fawiul wife,
"~ and'that there was mo harm i his getting into
o my bedy thav it was right in the sight of (God
ri*-'-thau he qhﬂuid feel so::1 he manitested then

‘L rather:ithan doanysthing - hhﬂ 1.hn { hud ra:ﬁhet
ht* would eutmy throat,ir i
‘He'said he wmhadwdﬂ no rmrm, r'md would
as soon. ent bis pwn, !hmat A5 LeLCRE mine: JHe
then asked 1: I did not think David was a gpnd
mun, and said that he had more than one wife,
Pd right' it the =ipht of Ged that he should
‘!1 #ve'more thin one wite ‘as'it was: tor David;
'tlgnf God lmkéd' unon the laws' of all countries
' 'ag non'essential ’!th‘&t he looked upon the heart,
- and that must be right; ‘all h&required in mar=-
| e was ' love. T asked M1 F. if God had not.
5 that every man should have his own wife.
‘He ghid, God had not said so, bt Paul had sard”
. '®0. "My F. #iid agreat deal to convinee mathat.
“SOdtwas right'tor bHim tohidve conmection withme;
e &iid 9 zood deal, wnd thén compelied me
. yield 10 1is base desi gnsagainstmy wlll 1 ' made
“ no'duteryy for féar th‘Lt “F should ' dl%turl:i the
nei;:hh s, and bocwnss I'felt that he was a
dt:-d*m*m ‘and the neighbots would think! that

=3
i

:F ’

4.‘11 )

S he wis baﬁ man. " For this, 1! was willing to
L3S suﬂ'ﬂr hr-"- Yoes'0f iy character.
L Jection with'me, and left before davhght it was
gear triornings l fell to' ﬁeepi‘! g-after this 'act,
“and he snid he did not believe there was one ﬂ'}rl
igsm of my yéars, that had riot had'a'connec-
#Hon with amian; there were thousands like me,
nd'T must not consider myself any worse for -
i8. 1 told him [ was disgraced W the eyes of
e world, and that I had” heard that a gnilty !
oman showed this guilt in her countenance,
‘and that T shauld be no more respected by tha
‘respcctnble. Mr F. laughed at this, and asketl
re 1 got this idea; sald there was nothing in
Ie laﬂghed in fthe. mormng, and asked m¢

gadmm Mr F. then left iha, 9
ested him tw go away before..

che came’ ﬂow!i'iﬁ the kitchen, was di

He ;

“then percﬂved the- bed elothes.

geuting inte bed.. 1 tridd to, 4 et mote aces,

“that' I'had had miore.

He hadcons

besides; he was

mrsb with me émce or'mor
lmh‘iae hi& base de-

sucecess{ul in a¢¢om

sign, although it was' always againstmy will.
fter Mrs 'fe retarfied, she treated e ly
nd was “see every thing in mguod

ngaseﬂ

order.’ me a present Afterwards
eased
dbout something dnd ‘made complaint. | Bat 1
‘remembered what Mt F. had said, and did not
’i&d‘ﬁ L'always tried to: do what she told

I feltvery uihappy ‘about these ‘things

and mld Mr I =0, and s&id 1 wanted 10 go a-
"He told ‘me t6 go up stairs and pray over

I then fh('*’llf'htg as Pliked miy'work and wa-
%'5, T would stay.® 1 stayed till the spring.—

his was the ‘first part of the wmms. “Lifelt

unpleasant d@bout’ sluyinﬁ on account of Mrs

JBL and told Mr F.so. [ wanted a new clogak,

but had hot money te getit, and told Me E. if
I was in the city [ could get $1,50 ‘per week.
L gat: 51,25 4t Mr I':ﬂrcmlda He and she
talked togqther about it; and aftera w hile he

‘wanted to see me 1n his study. T told him 1
‘was'going away. ' He asked why. 1 mention-
¢d about his wife, and he aske if I expeeted

J told him thavl did,and
He =aid, Do you want
more money to get a cloak 7 -1 s2id I did ;- he

-~ then offered me $1,50 per week, and. agreed to

advance me_$10 tu get a cloak. - He said his

.wife did not want me to go away, and that she

sene veryimproper.conduet with me 3 1 said ,.hkéd’me bstter than any-one she had ever Lad.

1 coniclnded to take the $16 and 8 mautfget
nlnak?l nd stay a little longer. I did sp. lgnd
Mrs F. had frequent difficulties a ter. - L oot"a
gtaaks (In the sprinz of 1841, Mrs I tuil\.rnz of
being absent abour 3 mon! s 1 desired v get
a mifliner’s place, if I eould get one so as to
pay.ny. board. Mg T'. wanted me to, cmne
there, when she came baek, and was witlin
ive me three months bosrd. - When she w nt
had got a dress cut, but not made.  She’ szud.
I'mi ht stay a few daya alter she left, and then
ﬁnish my dress. She, then asked her husband
about :f She #aid he objected, becavse® he
should have to po to mﬂrket I thovoht 7 his
was a very trfling reason, after ail hig profes-
sions.of love to me, and 1 resented ;t don’t
know what was said further, but recollect be-
ing there afterwards; and finishing my! dress.
Mrs Cooper eame there to wasb; but no ‘one
lived there but myself and Mr I. 1 was then
iritrodirced to Mrs Usher, who kept a bogrding
house at'South Boston, and had a conversa-
tion with her about working for my board
there while I learned my trade. Atter this,in
May; I left, and spentsome time amon mre-
lations in the eity, Mrs Kelly, Mrs I:ﬁm..
in June I went to Brooklyn. 1 went to: M
Shalers’s in Brooklyn. He said he believed
Mus Loker wanted a girl. 1 went there ‘and
stayed till Se&tember or October. When at
Mrs Loket's, Mr I' came out and wanted. me
o back there and live. He said, they had
an%nsh gitl there, but did not like- her I de-
clined going back, as I bad lived 80 unpleas-
antly there before. Idid go at last andsaid
I wwld stay till they gota gl that *hey did
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like. 1 stayed with MrF. 5 or 6 weeks. I there on accountof feeling some doubts about

was solicited by Mr F.one or more times, and

wanted to leave. When he went 10 the city, |
asked binrabout getting a girl, as I did not like
6o stay. I put on a _long face ;and appeared

tchb' o nted, but 1&?&31?&& angry.. . .
- A t0

. ¥ 8 vy
him, if he did LB I ehould
Jeave sosn. He got an 'fn:girl,_that_‘hnd
lived with Deaco "me . "When T lefs
there it was almost dark, afd T'don’t remember
where [ went that night,” ‘Whether to'* Mrs
Usher’s or to Mrs Kelly’s ~Afterwards I think
I went tomy cousin’s; Mrs Hoit,.and paid my
board for 3 weeks by work &e. . This was in
West Centre street. , I wanted to get a piace
again, and went to Mrs Green’s corner. of
Derne street. Then I went to Mrs Woods in
Chamber street. Ithen returned to my eousin’s,
Mrys Hoit. 1 heard then of Deacon Tenny of
Salem, that he wanted a ‘girl, and that it was a
od place. 1 inquired about it, and tound
that they wanted astronger git). . [ nextiheard
of Dr Chapin’s of Abington, and also_that they
‘had been missionaries to. the Sandwich ls-
lands, ﬁmd pious folks, and concluded that it
would be a good pface for ‘'me. I went to Dr
Chapin’s about the first of Jdnuary 1842 - Af-
ter'a while I thought 1 would go to Mrs Fair-
“¢hild’s, and make a friendly cally thinking that
she had: got over her uniriendly feelings. 1 also
‘thought [ wonld tell her I, was going -tp
bington. . I thought, on going there, that ilr
F. might solicit me, and determined in my
mind that T would resist ‘tim with all my
strength.  Mr F. came to the''door. I asked
~or Mrs F: hesaid she was ab=ent,and asked
‘fme togo upin his study y:Ihad eonsiderabie
.eonfidence in myself; and 'went up’ there; he
asked me to take nﬂ'm{ shawl and bonnet.and
stay till shereturned. Itold him f did not in-~
tend to stop. 1 don’t reeollect the converze-
tion much, but he was «itiing beside me on
the sofa, took off my things ‘and indueed me to
stay; he then began to manifést’'some improper
things towards me, but Itold him he should
never have his will of me agam, ib it was in
my power to resist him; he finally cucceeded
i accomplishing his deeigns. . . .. |
. Before this,) had gotaway. from him, and as
far as the outside door. I had left my things
behiad, and sat down and ‘cried. He ‘came
‘down and expressed his regret. He did not
want me to go off in  this: way. " 1 supbesed
that the affair wasall over, and: went' back %o
‘the study to.getmy things. ;: I. had not.been
‘there but a little while .before. he conducted
as he did betore, and, succeeded in accomr
plishing his designs. Mr F, wantod to know
‘when I was to call ﬂgﬂiﬁi I said 1 did’nt
‘KEnow, as 1 was going 8oon to Abington. 1
‘went in about a week. I lived ‘mext at Rev
Mr Waterston’s,and stayed there a fortnight. 1
‘next went to Edgecomb;: Malwe, my: Lome,
Alter.about three weels I found that I was
with einld.  'The child wes born_oa the 18th
day of September, 1842. Before I swent home
1 saw Mr Fairchild. On returping from Abp-
ington, I went to Mrs Kelley's, in Porter st,
and 210 to Mrs Heit. T had taken a cold on
veturning from Abington, and teeling' tnwell,
traced my E}cknﬂﬂsto this. I also went to I's
| Graeneﬂ's' in Derne sfreet. | got some medi-
cine of Mrs Weeeler, which I threw away at
the request of Mrs Waterston, when I was
staying there. Isaw Mr Fairchild once after

i'B_ttlming from Ablngwm havina gone OvVer

8al

gave me no peace
t 53fd

‘ter. He said to her when we

ih'is: and I h

my situation. This was on a Sunday. M: F.
appeared to be glad to see ine: F cams
and sawme also. This was in the Nursery.
He how I had been sinee Idelt. 1o

ask |
d l!:ma' ad , not been well,. and had: been

ta digine all winter. . This was 5'4':@
_ "‘i&’la”,t?.nqeé _gpapo t my situation. He g

ﬁ,ﬁnﬁf ooked sideways: e, evidently gqp
sirous that 1 showld'sdy nothing’ more abput §¢
then. Mirs F. invited me to er. 'After=

wards my sister, Mrs Esty, came” to Rev Mr
‘Waterston’s;and said,if] was a married woman
she ﬁahoqld 'tlgnﬁnk aomet;nna ‘was the matter
with me. This was alter my conversation
with Dr Channing, and after?hnd Iib:ke'ﬁ the
medicine. After much persuasion and much
fear, 1 told my sister of it. , She asked me who
it was.  I'said he‘was a man of high stand-
ing, and that it would rain him to have it dtse
closed. : After a while she guessed that it. was
Nir Fuirehild, and I said that it was ©im. She

1l I told. her.. ;
me to f)_.dlrectﬁlto d. her... She dthen

South Boston, a

MrF. abouit it.. [ got leave of Iqrg“faig%:ﬁ
to go out, saying that my sistet was goin, 61913
of town soon, and that she -wanted'me "to" g
out with her. T'wentthat afternoon to Mr Fiirs
child, and began to relate the matter ‘to “him.
Said)he, don’t talk so loud, formy wife is:in
the study, and will hear you.  He then said
this was no place to talk, and asked me to 20
over the old bridge, j&ndh‘e ,wou.ld-sey,@p.._ I
went out and met him on the old bl;ldf A
asked me what [ meant,and said what ‘géar_ﬂi
was the ‘case, ecould not ‘be the casg, and’
knew that he would not do sueh things. He '6fs
fered to.give me $200,and wanted me to:go
home and say nething about it to: Dr Chsn-
ning, orany oue else. He asked if my sister
was a Universalist, and _what she , would .do.
I1e then agreed to meet me .and my. gister. on
the Common, at Park street Mdll, that efejiiiﬁ‘%
at @ quarter before or a quarter past 8. I'tal
my sitter, and she agreed to go. We'shw ‘Mt
F. there. He was alone, and we ‘wefe alone.
We all walked to the large tree, near the: Frog
Pond, and then towards Belknap street.. : The
conversation was addressed, chiefly to my, sige

| her 1rst mel,j‘grp
sorry, Mre E. tO meet you on such an aeca-
sion. He wenton to say that what 1 had * told
whs true.” He said - he’wads' very’ sofry, afd
hoped God “had tergiven bim.~ “He téld my
sister when I culled at~his-house, but I ‘don’t
recolleet it,. ;He paid he ﬂwuﬁha I could: not
be. in this sifuation, and hoped I wes not. . gf
[ was, I never should want for anything, and

- 30l

he would rather stint himzelf of hiﬂ.tgg ?chq{.
g

fee. He said the devil had influenee %o
do'whatlie‘had done, and hoped he would™ bé
forgiven-of “God. * He - 'was willing 10 “ai

me, but he wanted it kept a® profound - seérét!
For the sake of the cause of. Christ, and: his
dear wiie and children, he hoped it would-be
kept still; He took out some money, and said
he wasgoingtogiveme$100 ., . ., -

I then said, what. excuse can I.make to
MrsWaterston for going home;as sheknows
I have no money. MrF. saids I can give
the money to your sister and she can give
it 10 you, and tiven you can say so to Mrs
W. He then said, ‘“ You solemnly swear
before, God, that you will never divulge
pe you will. improve the first 4

. .
y _E i A -

t a . e R



opportunity to go home.’” He agreed to
give my sister §10 a year, and me $90 a
year, provided I was in this situation. I
was to receive the money through the Post
Office, and in October. I think this was
on Friday night, because the next day was
Sdturday. I didn’t know how much MrfF.

ave my sister. - I received $100, and asI
fnrmd atterwaids, he gayve my sister $5.
I gave her $10in addition. I did not see
Mr F. the next day. I went to Edgcomb,

I believe the next Friday night, in the John
W. Richmond.

AFTERNOON.

- Rhoda Davidson, (examination resum-
ed.) I arrived at home Saturday after-
noon. and received a letter the next day
from the Post Office. It was destroyed.
A second was received and not preserved.
A third was received. This is the one, (a
Jetter shown in Court.) This letter had
the Boston post-mark. Mr Parker then
read the letter, which was admitted to be
Mr Fairchild’s, although anonymous. It
was addressed to Miss Rhoda Davidson,
Edgcomb, Me.

LETTER.

““I now write you another letter, not for
the purpose of denying what yousay I have
done, for that denial I have made from the
beginning. I wish to say nothing more
upon the subject ; what has been done
cannot be undone. I have not heard one
word said about the matter by any body ;
but it 18 possible that I may have some en-
emies who would be glad to injure me by
exciting suspicions against me, if they
should hear what has happened to you.

The possibility of this gives me pain.—
On this account I now write. You and
gour father are under the strongest possi-

le obligation to protect me from all harm;
you are bound to save me from all suspi-
cion ; you are never to mention my name
in such a way as to lead any one to sus-
ect me. Your father must never let it be

Enown that he has ever seenme or spoken
to me on the subject ; and you must do the
same. Ifany question should ever be ask-
ed me respecting the matter, I shall be
ignorant of the whole subject, and so must

ou be. I shall never letit be known that

know any thing about it, and I shall ex-
pect you to do the same. It was solely on

this condition that I agreed to what I did.
I should not have done any such thing if
you and your father had not given me
your solemn oath before God, that you
would see me harmless, that you would
save me from being suspected. In orderto
do this, you are never to let it be known
that I have ever exchanged a word with
you on the subject. Your father told me
that he considered it his duty to save me
from harm as much as it was to seek the
salvation of his own soul—and your duty
is the same. Tell your tfather not to talk
about the matter to your neighbors or te

£

anybody, for he may let drop some] ex-
pression which will excite suspicion.

A wise head keeps a close mouth. If
you write any lettersto your friends, never
allude to me in any way. Youmust never
write me at all. If people should ever
guess about the matter, tell themto guess
till they are tired of it. Say nothing to
them, but if they should kappen to guess
me, then your oath binds you to clear me,
The same 1s true of your father.

I hope what ie past has been forgiven of
God, but if you vielate your oath to me,
you must expect the curse of God upen
you. Think of the eonsequence of doing
so. It would not only ruin me, but it would
greatly injure you. I should then never
be able to do any thing more for you. I
have always treated you kindly, and can
you have a heart to ruin me? I do believe
that you will never break your promise,
and never give me any more pain and dis-
tress. I have suffered bevond expression
already. Don’t add anything to it ; tell
your father that I consider him bound nev-
er to let any mortal know that he has ever
geen or spoken one word to me on the sub-
ject, for I shall never let it be known that
I have seen him. If any person should
ever ask him whether he did not suspect
me, his oath binds him to clear me at
once. He must never tell what my bus:-
ness ig, or whereIlive ; tell him to say
nothing about money. If youand he will
thus fulfil your promise, you may he sure
that I will fulfil mine. ILet me charge yon
before God never to violate your oath and
promise,

After you have read this letter to your
father, you must burn it immediately.”’

These three letters were all received
between the middle of summer and Sep-
tember or October. My father was absent
when I returned home. He returned, and
then went away again, fishing. I did net
communicate my situation to him before
he went. He returned again on the 1st of
September, went to Boston, and came back
after the birth of the child. I havehad no
conversation with Mr Fairchild since. The
witness being desirous to make an expla-
uation about her evidence, was allowed to
do so. I have made a different statement
now, in some respects, from what I did
before. Now I have placed the scene be-
low, instead of in the ciiic, as I testified .
before. I state it now as it was. My
reason is, that you may have the whole
truth, and simply the truth, I placed it
before in the attic, and blended both scenes
together, for the purpose of making the
story shorter, (she described the scene at .
Exeter as having occurred in the attic.)
(Great sensation in Court.) ..

Cross Ezamined. 1 stated before that
Mr F.’s connection with me was in the
attig. I was under oath, 1 also stated
then, that his connection with me first,was
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when he came to shut the attic window.
I alept there about a fortnight. It was
fronting the garden, All the other state-
ments that I made are true. T think there
was ‘a bolton the door, and mot on the
door post, and there was no catch. I take
my oath of this There was a lock on
the door of the chamber below. Mrs F.
wis gone that summer, about 6 weeks. As
to favors received, Mr F. said he was wil-
ling to advance me money, and he often
give me omnibus tickets and rides. He

made the work easy for me. I did not
state this at Exeter, because I thought it

Mr F, saying—*<Chick are you asleep ?’’
Hejoften called me by that name, though
I don’t know that he did before: He laid ~
down on the outside first. [ asked him
what he was there for. He said he want- *
“ed to be where I was.  He also said he -
regarded me very much. He then got ins
to my bed, seized my wrist and ravished -
me by force. 1 though my last resort was
to scream, but I did not. I resisted all I -
could, and could do nothing but scream.
This was not done. I was afraid to scream,
‘because I thought it would wake the ;
neighbors, and his character would be in~ :

was not necessary. 1 was told to tell the jured. It'might have been half an hour, -

whole truth, and I did all I thought bore before he fully accomplished his  purpose. '

don’t racollect whether I said any thing ©fan hour. I can'tstate it more definite-.
at Exeter about money. I did about om% ly. It was probably, however, in: about -
nibus tickets. I think I have stated many 10 minutes. This was my first connection

things here that I did not state at Exeter with any man. He remained with me

I remember now -maty sadditional; facts 300Ut an hour, I think, after having con- .

that I did not remember then, or hefore the
Grand Jury. I dont know that I stated
many things at Exeter that I have not stat-
ed here. At Exeter I remembered the
scene as having eccurred above, but did
not mention it for the reason stated. I
said at Exeter that the first communication
was in the attic. I also stated it so before
the Grand Jury, being some agitated. On
refleetion, I thought it best to tgll the
truth, as it was, so as not to have 1t give
the lie to what was actually done. Now I
recolleet it as I have stated it last, and
state it as I recollect, (all this was pretty
pointed.) I stated at Exeter, that when
he came into the attic, it was so dark I
could not see whether he was in his night
clothes ornot. I did not tell then about
eovering up my head, because I then
placed the two scenes together, and be-
cause I did not think it was necessary as L
told the story at Exeter. I eould not find
a place to have this come in. Now it
comes inright. Ithoughtit did no hurt to
place the scene in the attic, although 1t
occurred below, because I thought moral-
ly, it was immaterial. When he came
into the attic, 1t was dark, and I heard a
voice, but saw no man. Idid not stateat
Exeter about covering up my head, on ac-
count of having left it out in order to
make it blend right.

I did not lock my nursery chamber be-
low. When Mr F. came to the attic, I did
not think he meant anything lmproper,
even when he went away. I said at Exe-
ter, as I remember, that I slept in the at-
tic. I don’t racollect about the question,be-
ing twice put and answered, about the con-
nection in the attic in connection with tl}at
in the study. After he had eonnestion
with me in the room, I left the door un-
Jocked. I don’t know that I ever thought
of securing my door by locking it. I ean’t
tell anything about it. I was awoke by

- ss

intmath v

neétion with me. He did not repeat::
the act. I did not cover up my head be- -
low. Ididit in the attic, because ‘1 felt
ashamed. I did not suspect anything .
wrong of Mr F. when he first came in.
And yet I said to him, according to my
evidence this morning—that I was afraid -
he had come there for no good purpose. If .
I said this, it was only to deceive him. K
was not confounded when he came into my
room in hisnight clothes, although I was
confounded whea he told me about my re-
sembling that young lady. I then thought -
he was making too much love to me: -
When he began to get into my bed, I .
thought there was something wrong. I-
thouzht he wanted to be in my company.
He said so, and I believed him till after- .
wards. I donot state things in their or=
der but as I recollect them, as nearas K
can. Mr F.overcame me, and [ resisted
as long as I could do. I did not siate af
Ezxeter that Mr F. did not use force with
me, but overcame me by persuasion. 1 an-
swered then, that I did notknow as I un-
derstood what force was. I have heard
from some individual that 1t 18 net force
unless the woman screamed. (Laughter,)
It was some man, not a lawyer, but whe
he was, or where he said it, I can’t tell.
(Laonghter.) I think I said at Exeter,
that I was not afraid to go intec Mr Fair-
child’s study, because I thought I could
have my way with him, I think so now.
He used the scripture argument with me
in the room below. I thought he was
the bestscholar, but I was not deceived
by his arguments, He used these argu-
ments before he resorted to forge. I have .
signed two statements in writing about
this affair. One was at Mr Robbins in
Taunton. (Considerable discuseion here
ensued about this paper, and William
Brigham, Esq, was sworn, it being under-
stood that he had this paper in pessession.
He was directed by the Court to bring it
mn tomorrow . ) &<
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I was more willing to lese my character iortnight, but I don’t recolliect now certain

than to have Mr Fairchild injured. Mr ly, When he proposed every Saturday
F.’shouse formed one of a double house. night, I shook my head and replied no..

Some | convereation took place after he
aeeomplished his purpose. - One time he:
stated that any lady of his Church would
think his connection an honor. I forgotto
state this this morning. =~ He had family.
prayers with'me after he ravished me, and
he.and myself iconstituted the whole family.
I swear about his telling me to pray over
the subject of my going away. In his
wife's absence he occupied a room over
the front entry. 1 still thought him:a
good man, after he had done all ‘this. [
hought him a Christian, but with wrong

His habit was to come on Saturday night.
I expected him, and ﬁ_Om'eﬂiiai. I | yumifl’eif"
him by sitting up in my atiic. where he was.
in the habit of coming; he found me some-_
times sitting up ; he had no connection
with me then; I did not always use this

preeaution, being tired. I stated at Exeter,
that noman but Mr F. ever had carnal-
connexion with me, and I state =0 now.
When Dr Chapin took me to Abington, I
was at Mrs Hoyt’s. I was there when I
called last on Mr Fairchild; I occupied
the attie, and I was obliged to go through

pviews. 1 stayed to avoid suspicion of him,
and because I thought him a Christian. . 1f

1 went away in his wife’s absence, people
would have supposed he had done some-

thing'wrong, and I should ‘be obliged. to
explain the whole matter to Mr Fairchild.
After the first difficulty ' with Mrs F. I
stayed because I chose to. '~

As to the number of the intercourses, 1
I stated only what I thought appearedto
bereal. At the third interview, he used
scripture too; he used physical force, and
I tried to. resist him. The third intercouse
was one Suturday night in the attic, after
hig wife returned; I'don’t know as it occur-
red to me to fasten the door. This was
about:a week after his wife returned. In
a weekor two he had another intercourse
with me.
20 connections with me; I wanted to leave

for this reason, and partly on account of

my trouble with Mrs Fairchild; sometimes
she offended me without any good reason ;
I felt kindly to both, when I did leave ;
I told Mr F.I and his wife did not get
along well. The longer I stayed there,
the more unhappy I felt about it. -

During this and a large portion of the
preceding cross-examination, the witness
was much agitated and troubled, and at
last eried for a considerable time.

T'remained till May, and Mr Fairchild
treated me in the same way, and Mrs F.
had the same difficulty with me. I remains
ed three days there after’ Mrs F. went
away. Before she went,T became angry
about his remark in relation to the market,
arid then' told Mrs F'. that I would not stay
thEi'ef. afly way—but I did—don’t recollect
whether he committed the ontrage on me
or Kot these three¢ ddys; I then went to
Mt Shaler’s; was a member of his church,
and Yad been a professor for 3 Years: 1
said at Exeter, that I belived he had a
connection with me "as often as ofice a
foi“tnj%h' as long as T stayed there. = But
now, | am'not prepared to' alter my state-
meiit; he proposed it every Saturday night,
after Mts Fairchild’s first return. ly think
he might have stayed with nie once a

In all, he might have had 15 or’

a room where the journeymen bakers

slept. This reom joined on"mine; I never
slept with my door unfastéaed, |

On Thanksgiving, I slept at Mrs Hoyt’s;
I recollect putting on: some gentleman’s
clothes in the parlor—no one was  there—
they were Mr Hoyt’s; I went down to the .
kitchen; Mr: Hoyt and Mr Brown .were,
there; Mr B. worked about the bake shop,.
I returned to the same room, and took my,
clothes off there, I found a man under the
bed there; therewas no one there bestdes 5 1.
found himunder the bed, because I looked:
under; the door was locked when I dressed3,
when I had dressedI unlocked it; I have,
had a pin cushion at Edgcomb, with the

pins in it so arranged as o represent the.

father of the child ; I have showed it to one.
of my neighbors at the time, Ann Kenney..
There were two initial letters on the cush=
ion, one being the christian name of the.
father, and the other a fancy name, . The
two imitials were W, H. I know @ man
with those iniiials; he resides m Brooklyn,
and ‘is a ysung man; this was: shown to
Ann Kelley about six weeks before the,
birth of the child; this cushion was ar-
ranged in'my father’s house, about 6 weeks
after I got home; I don’t recolleet any
conversation with Ann Kelley at the time;,
I swore before the Grand Jury, that the
time at which:the intercourse in the study
took place, was the time that the child wasg
begotten, and that this time was near the:
19th; but I am not sure that. 1t was near
the 19th, it was some between that and my:
going to Abingten; I cant tell the number
of weeks between the 19th of §fDecember,
1841, and the 18th ‘of Sept 1842.° On
Christmas that year, 1844, 'T was at Mrs
Hoyts. I believe I was there at ‘dinner.
I don’t recollect of gomg to church that
day, or of leaving Mr Hoyt’s house. I
heard of Mr Chapin’s wanting a girl one
or two weeks before I went’ to’ Abington.
I made the call at ' Mr 'Fairchild’s after I
saw Mis Johnson. I'had’ nof ‘engaged teo
go to Abington‘when I ‘¢alled ‘on Mr Fajr-
child. | .2 |

I don’t recollect ‘of ‘stating at Exeter
that Mr F. never had intercourse with me
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Ijdid not feall Bolles. State the contents of the third let=

but once out of the attic.
afraid to go to Mr F’s study, because I felt
that I could have my owu way with him—
.and I so stated at Exeter. He obtained
his will of me then by foroce ; I did not
séream because' I did not think of it I
never said at Exeter that T did not scream
because I was afraid of alarming his wife
and children. I think Mr'F. ig a vicious
man now, and that his conduct was vicious
then. I reasoned out that adultery was a
erime afterwards ; I lived at Mrs Twom-
bley’s sixymonths. My father came to see
me twice at Mr F’s ; he was kindly treat-
ed ; Mrs Esty also came; I fever told
either of them that I had been ravished.
My sister Ann also came to see me. I
never told her., When I went eut this
forenoou, I staid in the Grand Jury room.
I stop at my sister’s in South Boston.

"Tusspay, March 25.
'[EXAMINATION OF EVIDENCE CONTINUED.]

~ Cross Ex. Rhoda Davidson recalled. My
idea of the first letter is that it covéred a page
of the letter sheet, and d little more. I received

the second letter about the middle of July, 1

dont’ recolleect about the post mark on the date;

I told my father something about the bargain,
but nios the whole; 1don’t recollect definitely
don’t know that [ had any reason for not telling
the whole; don’trecollect whether I told father
% t Mrlk. agreed to pay anvthing, but think I

id ; the bargain with Mr F. and myself and
sister was, that he was to pay me $100 per
year i October, and my sister $10 ; my sister
said she did'nt care so much about, the money,
as she did on necount of my sister ;. don’t re-
eollect that my sister refused the money ; after
we got home, my sister said she . had received
from Mr ¥, 35; | cave her $10 more; don’t
Ii_nﬂ_w.how mmch: 1 carried home ; think I car-
ried over $20, $30, $40; can’t say whether it
was more than $50 ; paydd some -money away
beiore I went home. |

‘Question. 'T'o whom did you pay any ?

‘DMr Parker. 1 pray your Henor’s judgment.

Court. L think.it would be competent to
trace the money. - Hed

“Wiiness. 1can’ state to whom T paid mon-
ey.. Don't recollect of owing any body. I
bought several articles.

Questiopn. ' Whom did you buy of ?

Mr Parker. 1 pray your Honor’s judgment.

Judge Warren, for Deft. It is evident that
there has been a eeonspiracy, and we wish. to
show what beeame of the money, You may
test her accpmﬁf. e o

Question. What articles did you purchase
and pay for? B gaging U -'

Ans. Ican’t tell without spending a great
deal of time. M st so1unazan: o

“Warren. You need not be'afraid of wasting
time, Rhoda. '72q 8 SRERAOI Yhute S

Ans. 1 bought a gown, shawl, bonnet, and
some smaller articles—all not amounting to

" ¥

B~

 staved chiefly at Mrs

 — o ——

ter, . [Witnass related some of its points.] _,
- Wiinese. 1 read this letter last summe

not since. 1 told my sister the secret. . Wh

I received this third letter, 1 communicated it
contents to my sister, who was in Billerioca.
When I received it, I was in Edgeeomb, Me.

[ destroyed the two letters after I read them.
I kept the third for iny safety, - - |

.

|

this between July and Octo _{ As to the
?nsﬁfér
$50. The last letter requested me to read th
to tell him so. Mrs Esty didn’t Jike ¢
Fairchild’s; at the time spoken of. I dined
I am of the fact. I don’t know about
was dissatisfied with Mrs . or left the family
recoMect how many times I went te Mr F.
view in the study. That was the last case.
pills. When I left Dr Chapin’s, it was Eliz
C. hgt ;ﬁir__ i‘équfeﬁt_ii
I understood it was good medic

- 'There was a change in my 'feelings_"a]:i"_'aqt
other $50, I told father that 1 must have
lost some of it, altheugh I kept it )
lock and key: 1 eould net account for i
actly. 'There was actually between $40 a
contents to. my father. . Mrs Esty told
in Boston to go directly to Mr F. and if  h
didn’t do something about it, to. e:ﬁoia., |
Can’t tell exactly how it was, but she tc
with me on the Common, but said she %
do so. (Witness related the interview at:
that day, (Sunday) at Mrs Gurney’s. |1
more doubtful about a!atmqﬂ this at Exeter,

t

baek door, but the front parlor door was epen.
Don’t recollect of saying to any one that I
because 1 could not see my beaux. If I did
say 89 it must hove beena {alschaod. Don’t
Never laid up any thing against Mrs F. Think
I called  there more than once before the int
that particular period. Don’t recollect wha
mediocine Itook at Dr Chapin’s, but it
Pro and Steel Dust.

This was preseribed by Dr Te

03; : ine for my.

complaint—my disease having been suppres-

sion of the menses, whieh li described to Dr;
C’s wife. . 1did not tell her I had been_ trou-
bled g0 tor 3 or 4 months. Stated to Mrs C,
that [ had been troubled with this compiai

since I had been at Abington.. Before that I
felt well. I don’t know that] stated positive-
ly at Exeter that 1 did not apply to Mrs G,

about medicine. Don’t recellect about having
said at Exeter, that Mrs C. remarked that if 5‘
was a married-woman she should laugh at me..
[ asked Dr C foran emetic. I visited Bostom.
before going to Abington—4 or 5 days. I
_ oit’s, Can’t say that
I have taken the tincture of steel for medicine.
(Witness!stated before the Grand Jury that
she was impregnated between the 19th of De-
cember 1841, and 1st of January 1842, and a
short ttme afterwards at A.binstdn she states
about her having been troubled with the sup—
presaion of the menses, and takes steel dust

- and Elizir pro,for her complaint) 1 wentto

Abington in January. I told my mother that
it was in Dacember, according to Dr Chapin™
notes on his book. Did not learn about these
minutes till last summer. My child was born
about the time I e'x,tié*c{_ed it.  Think, thanks+
giving ffat year, 1841, was _l?'tltgr pﬁw" Vo

vember. - I passed thanksgiving ar N

where 1 dressed up in men’s cloti
the time Mrs Esty said she should th 5
thing serious of .mf situation, it |1
ried woman; I left ‘S

iy
v .'"'

the impression

~ that there ha.d:bun 1only1_'gmé ‘connech. o

4.4
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s gﬁ. [ think I did, now.

fooki
- wife, / hope he ig not about to call in the jour-

tween her and Mr¥. 1epoke of showing my

| "si'nfem"hion to Ann Kenney; don’t recollect of

: %’Io to others. )

~ Bolles. What color was your child’s hair?
“"Questien objected to; Mr Parker said he
would offer the child in evidence, if it was ne-

ary.

Bolles. Did you not say at Exeter, that Mr
Fairchild’s hair was light, when young, and
shat he colored it black every morning 7 [Ob-
Jjection made,and question ruted in.] ~aiy
T Ansc ['stated at Exeter that Mr Fairchild’s

' eyes were blue, and that he might have colored

brs haic black every morning.

1 wish vou, about the money, to understand
that the arrangement on the Common was, not
to have the money sent to my father.

‘Warren. Did you not tell Miss Trask that
vou liked living in Boston, because you could
walk with as many beaux as you pleased on
the Comimon. |

L ‘Ans. 1 never told any one so.
7 Witness continued. Belore the birth of my
~«hild, | t6ld my father something about the bar-

ain. 1 did not state at Exeter that I told him

_ [The mainand cross examination, o far, oc-
cupied 7 1 2 hours.]

_' itness, at request of Mr Parker, related the
gtory about her putting on men’s clothes. Mr

‘Hoyt said he would gve me a nine-pence to do

at: I did =0, and Mr H. said 1 was a very good
~man; he went out, and 7 said to his

neymen. [ then went up stairs to undress, tear-

Jng fsome one might come in. I locked the
_Aoor ;kefore taking off my pants , I looked un-

der the bed and saw something white; [ ex

“dmined further, and saw Mr Hoyt's leg. Said 1

here you are, and if you dont go down I’l]
scream; he laughed, got up and went out. About
the pin cushion, she H. stood for one of the
mames of the father of the child, which 7 in-
tended; to give to the child; I intended to call
him William Hamlet. The W. H. whom /
know has no reference to the father of the child.
7 did’nt say what name [ intended to give to
she child if it was a girl.

Crossexamination resumed, I looked under
the bed thinking to find Mr Hoyt, az he went
out of the kitchen. (There was quite a dis-
gussion between eounsel as to whether Rhoda
should remain in Court while Mrs Esty and
other witnesses testified. The Court al{owed
her to remain where she chose.)

- Mrs Margé Esty called.
- Yknow Rhoda; she is my sister. She lived
at Edgecomb Me. She came to Boston in
May 1840. T1lived then at South Boston not a
great way from Mr F’s; /I lived at South Bos-
ton at the first period when Rhoda lived at
Mr F's; 1 came to Boston in 1841, and lived
with Mrs Hooper in West Cenwe street; [
learned about Rhoda’s trouble after I returned
from New York, in April 1842, She af-
terwards requested, mé 1o meet Mr Fairchild
gave “her the advice on the day

mt {met 1&[ F on the common ; I met
L -l_to% f Park street mall. Had seen
%. ; £+ Rie came up, shook hands, and said

ith her.

Ty to meet me on such an occasion.

v ‘0 e o1
ke, #© supposed my sister had told him
aloy. aflair—and that it was the truth, He
had, 4ection with her he said, in Dec, 1841.

Mricec the DEVIL must have had influence

over him. He thought it hardly possible that

10 | _.

she could be with child; that he was a minister
and poor man, but he would do all he could
for her. 1told him I considered them both to

blame. He said if his erime was exposed, he
should be turned out ot the ministry. He
hoped God had forgiven him for his sin, and
said he would give Rhoda $100, if she would
go directly home, and also giveme #5 a year
while he lived.

Rhoda asked what she should say, if it was
known she had so much money. He said you
can say vour sister gave it to you. Fairchild
then put the money in my hands. Dunng this
time I walked from Park street mall, by the
Pond and Beacon street mall, We went to-
wards Belknapstreet. Rhoda aad I parted at
Mr Waterston’s. 1 saw Mr F.in October,
with my father. [Father came to see me in
Billerica, where I lived. We came to Bos-
ton. My father stopped near the Old Bridge,
and I went to Mr F’s house. Mis F, came to
the door, and I said I wanted to see Mr F.
alone. He eame down to the parlor, and in-
quired for Rhoda.

We went up into the study, and he said Rho-
da had imposed upon him, and he was not the
father of the child. Said I,"Mr F. you said to
me that you had connection with Rhoda ; you
are the father of thechild, and what are youn
going to doabout it; I said my father had come
to Boston to see about it.

He denied being the father, and I told him
tather would bring Rhoda to Boston, and have
the child sworn upon him. He said he would
sez my father the next day, at 11. I said my
father wanted to gee him right away. He said
he would meet him in halt an hour, and then

ave me $5. They then met on the bridge. I

on’t know the conversation that took place
between her father and him. He said he sup-
posed I did not want to hear the conversation.
{ said no, and he told me 1 might go some-
where, aud see my father afterwards. I told
him I should tedl the matter to noone, and he
need not fear. 1 went to see my sister them
in Suffolk street. I agreed to meet Mr F. af-
terwards, between 1 and 2 o’cleck in the after-
noon, on the Common. I met him, but do
not bear the conversation in mind, We walked
down Tremont mall and met my father. Mr
F. spoke to my father, and gave him some
money. lhave seen Mr Fairchild at Exeter.
He crose-examined me at the trial. My sister
zave me $10 out of the $100. I don’t know
tm'g'«w;f long she remained in Boston after this af-
alr,

Cross Ex. Rhoda gave me that$10 in Mr
Waterston’s nursery that night ; [ have told
this story under oath before; never testified
that I received the 810 the next morning; 1
read a newspaper report this morning in the
Grand Jury room before my father, sister, and
Mr Thomas Dunham of South Boston; 1 read
it myself; Mr Bunham read the newspaper trial
and my father too: Rhoda went to see Mr F.
the day that I advised her: Rhoda 8aid she had
one intercourse with Mr F.; witness sald Rhe-
do. told some of the particulars; thatit wasin
the study, that Mr F. put his arms about her,
&ec. After the birthof her child, my father
told me Rhoda had had intercourse with Mr
F. more than once as he expected. | have sta-
ted that my tathertold me Rhoda said Mr F,
was the father of the child. If there is any
written statement of ythis under my signature
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it is false—I have never signsd any paper about

this matter.

Think very likely [ told my.father that
Rhoda had imposed upon me.. The time
that I went to my cousin’s in Suffolk street,
was the only time that I went there.
cousin of mine lived in George street; cant
recollect what I stated at Exeter about
the money Mr F. gave; I think I have been
asked to sign a written statement; I
always had in my mind what Mr F. said on
the Common. So far as I stated, his words
I think, are nearly exact, or the substance
of them; cant state the particulars. When
I gave Rhoda the advice, I mentioned Mr
Fairchild’s name first. From what Rhoda
told me, I expected it was a minister.
Rhoda said it was some one in high stan_d-
ing, and this made me think it was a minis-
ter; my father told me Mr F. paid him
money and I saw him besides; I made Mr
F. a promise to keep the secret; I did’nt
think I was taking a solemn oath; I dont
know that Mr F. told me about the ar-
rangement. Father said, Mr F was to
give him $50 a year till the child was 7
years old. Father did not tell how much
cash Mr F. gave him; dont recoliect any
agreement that was made on the Common,
only that he said he would do all he eould
for Rhoda. I have stated the language of
Mr F. generally, as I state it now; have
never been at loss about it.

Mr Warren here called for the statement
purporting to have been signed by Mrs
Esty. (Paper shown to Mrs E.; she said,
“‘I did sign this paper. 1 did’nt recollect
this before.”” Paper was dated July, 1844.)
- - Judge Warren then stated to the Court
that be had an entirely different statement
from this. He asked witness about it, who
said she did’nt recollect now signing any
more than one paper.

B-,ﬂsi"::_‘ons‘-‘?ﬂ?e ds called. I have in my

ssession a paper signed by Mrs Esty.
!(}Thia was datle)dpJune %1, 1844{1) :

Mrs Esty called. I signed this paper too;
have no doubt of it; I cant swear about
having signed any others; two persons
were present when the first paper was
drawn; I meant to tell both stories alike;
had no object in signing them but a right
one; I signed them both between 3 months
- and 3 days; I boarded at Mrs Hooper’s in
West Centre st several weeks; I also lived
with her in Sea street; there were 2 young
gentlemen there that boarded; Mr Thos
Dunham was not there; he was not a
stranger to me when I saw him this morn-
ing in the Grand Jury room.

William Davidson called, (Father of
Rhoda, and rather a plain citizen) 1 live
in Edgcomb; was formerly a blacksmith
and farmer; have been fishing for three or
four seasons back; my wife has a daughter
Ramed Rhoda Davidson, I suppose 1t 18
mine (laughter); she came to Boston to
five in 1840; I went to fishing in the sum-

A

mer season of 1841; in the Spring of ’41,
Rhoda was at Mr Fairchild’s; I saw her
there about the last of March or the Sfrat
of April; I went South afterwards, and’
returned in April or May 1842; [ called on:
my return at Mr F’s. to ‘hear of her, not’
having any certain news where she was;
he said he saw her a  few evenings since;
that she was unwell; that he advised her
to go home, and presumed she had gone:
home. Ithen went home; can’t fix the
date, but it was about-the middle of May;
[ saw my daughter and she said she was
unwell; I stayed home 3 or 4 days; I next
went fishing on a 4 months cruise; return-
ed in September; daughter was at home ;
my wife told me soon that she was preg-
nant; saw her next afternoon in her room:
she appeared with child; she was confined
about a week or fortnight after this ; after
the child was born I came to Boston, about
the last of September; Italked with Mr F,
about the 10th,having called at Billerica to"
see my eldest daughter, Mrs Esty, when I
fook to Boston. The next day Mrs E. went
to see Mr F. at my request; he met me on
South Boston bridge, at 10 o’clock, A. M,
I and Mrs E. met him alone; Mr F. came
up to me and said—**Good morning, Sir.”*
I did’nt return the word; I then said a very
disagreeable subject has brought me to see
you; he said—*‘‘yes, no doubt it was disa=
greeable to me as it was to him.”” He
then said, you have me in your power,
what are you going to dowithme? 1 re-
plied, that I did’nt know what I should de;
I wanted to do what was right; I did not
wish to afiflict the afflicted, I said; Mr F.
turned to my daughter and asked if she
could’nt go to some place, where she W‘oyldv'
not be suspected, while he conversed with
her father, and they would meet on the
common; Mrs E. said yes, and retired.

We then walked over the bridge, and in
a new street, cenversing; Mr F. then said
if this eomes out, it will be the means of
ruining me, also de givi'ng me of the
means to support the child. My property,
said he, is mostly in the house where I
live,and if I am deprived of the ministry,
I shall lose my living. I then spoke about
the agreement between my daughter and
him, and said it should be kept secret if
the agreement should be made. I told
him I was willing on account of his wife
and children. Mr F. said he was willing
to make an arrangement on reasonablg
terms, although 1 don’t think possiblt
that I can be the faiher of the child. 1 then
looked at him as I do now, [witness !ooked
at Mr F',] and said you have owned t
Mrs E, andshe is willing to testifyit. H_
then made a short pause, and said, Do
matter, your datl.flgter ‘has laid it to me
aud T must do all T can to make satisfac
tion. He then spoke about my keeping™
the secret, and Keeping it away even from
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my wife. I ﬁpg?mind I would, , He then
asked me aboat the terms. I told him he
must sﬁwﬁ give me $100, and then $50 a

it till the child was 7 years of age, He
mrpas't ap the amount and said it was a

bofd_ sum for him. to pay, ... . .
d told Jlgir'ﬁ_ A mapngt willing to take
anything less, and take tlhg,-.respomibility
ﬁd keep it secret fqr a less sum than that.
I'here wassome more conversation and fin-
~ally he'said, the people of So Boston want-
ed him to settle there again, spoke of his
~ ‘prospects,and at length _agreid., upon the ar-
" ratigement, I spoke about hissendiag me

the .money and good money. (He said.it.
s-lﬁﬁldrh% the money on the Merchant’s

3ank. I agreed toreceivein a letter on
that bank, . Mr F. then wished me to be al-
ways as, good as my word, and keep the
secret, - He then said, he hoped God had
‘forgiven all that had been done, and hoped
I;whog,l%f orgive him. He hoped: I would

2
L

_ -consider the money paid that day, and toe

come as. full compensation for all inju-
ry done to me, and mine., I then told him
L could not receive it so, for I consid-
ered the, character of my. child as un-
done—but I would receive it ' towards
supperting the child; Nothing more
passed of importance. He then agreed to
meet me on the Common at 2, and to pay
me, the money. He met me, and gave
me two $50 bills on the Merchants’ Bank.
L did not count it, but took 1t, and after-
wards found it correct. I then. pledged
my word and honor to keep it secret, he
having spoke of it. Have not seen him
gince till yesterday. This was Friday. I
went, to Billerica. gﬂturd&x- and started for
home on Tuesday. hus 1ot 4

. Parker.. Have you seenthat paper be-
gr:!re.,, (Letter of Mr Fairchild shown to
) o | |

“ Ans, This'is the letter my daughter

read to me about a fortnight after 1 got
ome, I took it out ofthe Pdst office at
dgecomb, on Sunday. I received . $50
from Mr F. in a letter—there was no
writing on it. It was only directed to’ me
{_ the outside. I paid 18 3-4 _cents post-
age. Ithought the writing resembled that
g’f the other letter. This was about ‘the
.Oih of October, 1843. It was to be paid
to me about the middle of October. -
Cross ex. Rhoda told me that she saw
Mr F.on the Common, and think she said
she received $90 from him, and that that
$Um was to be sent, and also that she was
never to suffer -for want of it, "if that was

- I don’t recollect that Rhoda told me |

that there had been more than one inter-
course. I felt delicate about asking her.
When I first Wg’g&héitié.?RHdda never told
me that Mr F. was the father of the child.
I 'don’t know how much R. brought home.
I chalked up with R. to see how much she

] 9°F0CE8 1G0A (N5 DOGRER 1979 svo '

: 3. 858
had spent. She bought several things,and
I'made up $85 out of the '$90. She sgaid
she must have lost the $6. I arrived in
Boston a fortnight since—have lived all
around. ‘Stayed with my daughter, and
aléo with Mr Josiah Dunham. ' My wife
went to South Boston too, with the child.
Have talked with- Mr Dunham about jt.
Saw Mr Thomas Dunham also at South
Boston, and here in the jury room to day
and vesterday. Have soven a paper in
there,” but did'not read it.  Mr Dun<
ham had 1it. Thomas Dunham boards at
his father’s: My wife did not come with
me. Iobject to stating how I came here.
That is my businese. My wife got to M1
Dunham’s, at South Boston, between the
evening and 9 o’clock. ' I have had som
mmoney otven or presented to me. &
I have not been in Edgecomb for four
weeks. - Don’t know who brought my
wife to Boston ; saw Thomas Dunham at
his father’s when1 got there the first night.
In Oct 1842, when I received money from
Mr F, I don’t know as I received any
money from any body else, here. I'carried
home, I can’t Bay how much. Can’t tell
how much I carried home, but think 1t was
rising $50. I ‘never paid Mr James Phil=
brook $175 then, but paid him five years
before for a farm, having paid it in two
years. I paid a man in Wiscasset, Mr
Young, over $40 after I got home, I don’t
like to tell how I got here. When 1 left
E. T was gomg to the West Indies. Did
not hear before T left home, about Mr
Fairchild’s surrendering himself up. I -
heard of it though in Wiscasset, but I was
was under contraet. I putinto Cape Ann,
on account of a storm, and then came here.
I was a steward on board. I walked from
Cape Ann. I received only a part of my
advance. Jobjected to answering because
I run away from the vessel. T coneidered
it my duty, indispensable duty, to come
here. Have seen Mr Josiah Dunliam very
frequently., | 5 oo nay
Court at 2 o’'clock, adjourned to half
past 3 o’clock, P. M. - |
IN THE ArrErNoon; at half past” 3
o’clock, the trial proceeded. The Govern-
ment rested their case with the conclusion
of Mr Davidson’s eévidence in the fore-
noon session.. N
Joun~ A. BoLLrs Esq, then opened for
the defence. . ¢ oL i 7-. |
MR. BOLLES’ REMARKS:'
~ .On opening the Defence. 5
The importance of this cause Wasstrong™
ly stated by the learned counsel for the
government, who _conM ented upon the
heinous nature of the b?el__]ﬁée charged, an
the previous respectability and high stand-
ing of the defendant.
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The oﬂ'ence chargﬂd Fﬁf‘q‘h‘”ﬁ"y‘l ”‘d nﬁi innocent mml" hei

ui*f.ti-; I "-’;U;%‘
fendants ' counge

one more than this.
»! nder waﬂ itg, charc-

waonld “’lihn}ﬂ}l L‘B 0

tery Mot only in, rrﬂlﬁhﬁﬂs‘i“ uman wmtxj

and humrﬂawm butin relationito the daws,
of that Divine Being whose special minis--
ter. m;d :er'mm the ﬂefenﬂmt pgufesﬁed to,
bed.ng fingl: 4]

No learnﬁd dﬁﬁnlllona of tha oﬁ'enm, b
however proper they ‘may be, as the foun-

dation of this proeedure, are needful ta im-
press a jury of Massachusetts with .a, deep-
sense of its enormity, it is enough for.us .

to be remmaeu that it is the violation: of.

the marrtage vows—the deﬁlmg of the
marriage bed.

. But add to this tha prevmus hlgh char-
acter and lwly vocation of ‘the defendant;
that he was a manister of the Gospel—-de-
voted to the service of God—for more than

20-years the spiritual guide and religious
teacher of various churches a,nd CORZrega-,

tions, whose great end and aim it was by

veice and life . . . ¢ e
| “to pmnt tn Haaver '

'Ané lead the way.” § i b

h;t ﬁuch is the man now accused of aduL-..

tery—and nothing, it would seem could be
required to enlist your feelings and secure

for this trial your mest devoted attention.

There are other circumstances connected
with the charge,which contribute unspeak-

ably to the interest whlch you muﬂt feel=

in this trial.
Some of these were alladed to by the

presecuting officer, and some remam farf'

me to anumernte

And one of these ¢ircumstances stated 1!3'

that very few cases of adultery arise in our

this offence,the party accused,either pleads
guilty, or aveids a' trial by forfeltlng hls
bail and leaving the Jhrmd‘ictmn. S

The learned counsel raight have added
that my client 8o far fro leaving this
jurisdiction to escape trial, has voluntarily
come hither from another State to ask for
a trial upon an indictment found, as ifs
terms allegey while he was ﬂ-resldent of
another State.

At the former term of this Court, Mr
Parkm; very honarably stated, that aucﬁ

were the, facts, and that Mr Fairehild .

comes here not merely of his own accord,

but comes with a full-knowledge that thn*

f New Hampshire had refused to
femd

Goyernor o
issue a warrant to deliver him up—80° __tha.t

he was eertam -ﬂfan undpsturbe asylum IP

that State. .

Such is the fact-d—?but

ch&nt dealrmg

orm'e;; nmghhﬂl‘s and leB}uunexg ,and asks

no..other progectlon,#ﬂfﬂgmrd, or asylum,
han those very laws w c e, by the in-
dmtmem,, 18 dqc]ar M’& o
atmn?mnmnm l:;emoua.. ) 45 Serch
I:Meﬂn the most, oqdmuty as pvell

as the mos extraor&marj, the law charita-

S

“Haet

and mthﬁut reservation.
‘that by his admission’ of
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“degire was and is, and herein we act un.’’
“der:express, ,mstrnp;mnq from our elient, a8
‘well asiin accordance with our own wish-
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tance with that

ucled by

53
bly-justly ﬂﬁha-r--‘pm‘imMa the defendant
‘proved-to be guilty, and"
tﬁwpwwmtnn m:w,dﬁn—'—n
ﬁFHui‘ﬁﬂﬁ of that proof. . Biof bl
e ¢ thie lbgulr sumptiofni, .what
and forcé are' added by the  cireum~ -
91 téowhich I » have :allfudod;ﬂb the
at the defendant 18 thus: VQIlmtnrﬂy
here’ f&'thal’; that he 18 a consecrated.
m:mﬁt&# of that ~gospel - which declairs
that whosgoever looketh ona woman to
lust affer. her.is already  an. adulterer;
‘and: finally by

¢h.wv

‘ktaiﬁ

r erly:: admitted an Ahe. opening, . by ‘my
earned brother, that up to the  finding of _
this rindictment, the character a.nd ;tand-.
ing of the deferﬂdant was lrrepmachable. g

And here I should do injustice to mry'

feelings, and theose also, I am sure, of . my
‘learned associate in the defence, if 1 did
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the fact,  so. falrly and pro- .

notacknowledge the: entire. fairness and -

candorof the prosecuting officer, displayed

‘thus far in the conduct of the triale He
'seems to know and feel that we come hera

L

“to'try:this cause in.no: narrow or. merﬂly "

technical view of it, but. broadly, fully,

revious - good ¢
character, he hag shortened the cdse, by -

saving. us, the necessity of an array of °
In the same, Spirs

witnesses on that point,
it,;we have admited those. points of preof :
relating ' 'to marriage, handwriting;
which' are utimetan‘ea difﬁcult, but a}wnya
indisperisable. ' '

8o also have we dechned l""avaﬂ ‘ours

of ong single act of aﬂultﬁreuﬁ mte:cour g

Wﬁ vdid not, desire thub 10 qestrmt ‘the lim-~
Our | bonqst and earﬁest

of this case, our honest and earnest desire
Wasy and is, to meet.the charge ,of illicit

intercourse with Rhoda Da.vxduan, when- "

“We thank hm,
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+ ‘selves of that rule of law applicable to in~ -
“dictments:for this - nﬂ'qnce, ‘b,y which’ ﬂ?f
‘Commonwealth is restricted 1o the pro
Conrts, and that upon most indictments for'

ever and wheraver it mlght be said to have

oceured, and to leave not one single day

acquain-

girl unexammed by the
fullest light that legal’ process can con-—-

cenfrate upon s 5

We have, theref’oré, most cheerfully suf-
étha exammanon and caused the

cro armna wn to SWBEP hmaaly, and
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.;fu] acrﬁgg the w ola peﬁﬁd {Jf more Lhan

._fowyeirﬂ, from May, 1840, to July ,
no such as lum-—-ﬂppeara here amidst his e.have Tel,t and, you will’ fééi that *

even a ver&hct ofﬂcqulttaf to a defend m; ”

slglua.tad ag our client s, ‘would be'of ne

.value, unlm it coveradthe wholé’ ground,
‘That with averdict of acqui f"mi" obtaited

.upon a,narrow view of the cuse, a‘hE up on *
nice points -of law, f]hé do n‘;liht qoul&
not return to his pulpit and people dt'*
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Exeter with any satisfaction, or any hope
of future usefulness. And we should fesl,
you would feel, and the whole community
would join us in the feeling, that a verdict
of not guilty, thus obtained upon a partial
examination, even rendered by the jury
without leaving their seats, would not
place the clerical character of the defen-
dant, upon that broad, solid and 1mpreg-
mable basis upon which it ought, if he be
innocent, to rest.

For these reasons have his counsel not
merely acquiesced in but sought the widest
scope of inquiry. And we pray yow to take
with you from this moment throughout the
trial on our part this honorable wish of the
defendant. to be subjected to the most par-
ticular and most thorough examination.

Another feature of the cause will not fail
to strike you as worthy of attention, and as
farnishing one of those facts which the
opening counsel for the defendantis bound
fo suggest,

And that is that the accusation i3 not made,
ar the prosecution instituted at the time,or near
the time when the offence is said to have been
committed. That years have been suffered to
elapse—that defendant residing long after this
crime was committed, if at all, in this very
eounty—that the accuser having herself been
Brere or hereabout, ever since September fol-
lowing the birth of her child, and her sister
Iasty having alwayslived here, no accusation
is made till defendant has removed out of Mas-
sachusetts, nor til after sach a period of time
has elapsed as to render it hopeless, ar almost
hopeless for him to encounter such a charge,
brought forward and sustained by cunning and
ungcrupulous conspirators.

Another circamstance which renders this

case ofremarkable interest, shall be allud-
ed to, and then I will proceed to a brief
statement of the facts which we expect to
prave by way of defence.

You have observed and will observe
that though my client stands alone in this
ndictment, he sits not here alone; he is
charged with the grossest infidelity to- the
wife of hisbosom;to her whose eye would
have been the first to detect any departure
from love or duty,—to her who had ever
the most ample means of observing and of
knowing,and who, had one solitary fact
awakened suspicion, would have been the
most prompt to suspect and doubt ;

- ="for trifles light as air
Are, to the jealous, confirmaiion strong,
Asproofs of holy writ.”

She, the injured wife, the outraged part-
ner 0{ his wedding covenant, she who if he
be guilty, has more than any other person
been wronged; She, with a love ‘that de-
fies all peril, whether of the land, or on
the deep, or among ¢ false brethren,”’
““with a love stronger than death,’” and
““which many waters have not quenched;*’
She, thank God, 18 by his side, and ever
has been, ag full of love and faith I trust,
as well assured of his purity, of his inno-

cence, as when she walked with him to the
altar and received hisvows. |

A fact like this, must afford to every
heart, and’contains a logic, a proof, which
the darkened understanding, and the
bluntgd moral sense of the moat depraved
of his persecutors, cannot but perceive
and acknowledge, as well as comprehend.

It may, to one who has not watched and
studied well the operations of calumny, seem
surprising that a man of high character and
clerical rank, should be accused of so gross
a erime unless he were culpable. But it 1s
precisely that description of people who are
certain to be assailed-

““Be thou as chaste as jce —-

says the great poet of human nature,

** Be thou as ghaste as ice, as pure as snow,
Thou shalt not escape calumny!”
And it has always been so. It is the *‘ta]l
the wise, the reverend head” at which the
envenomed arrows of the slanderer are ever
pointed. Look into the history of the Scot-
tish worthies, and see which of the Camaro=
nian preachers was not thus assailed.

[Mr. Bolles here instanced a case in this
connection in Scotland, that of the Rev.
Alexander Peden,a learned Cameronian,who
on the eve of his ordination, was maligned by
a base married woman, who afterwards con-
fessed her guilt and committed suicide.]

Turn your eyes to England and among all
her pure and pious divines, what name has
come down to us more bright and spotless
than that of Richard Baxton, the author of
two works, the ¢‘Call to the Unconverted’
and ‘“‘the Saints Rest,” which are now read
and studied by all good men with undimin-
1shed delight ; yet R.ichard Baxter was ac-
eused of licentiousness. Look at our ewn
country and the case is still the same. A
case occurred near this vicinity, and a rev-
erend gentleman was not ashamed to be seen
walking arm in arm at Exeter with an aban-
doned girl, quite forgetting her guilt in his
enmity to her supposed paramour.

The late Rev Dr Nettleton, of whose char-
acter and of whose good works 1 need not
speak, was often the object of these scandal-
ous assaults,—and found favor only in his
grave. ‘

So—to name one other signal example—
of Dr Payson, a man of purity so apostolic
that he might be truly said ‘to walk with God’
At one time in his ministerial cause we find
him accused by one of those same wantons
who find their way by steam-boat and by
packet trom Boston to Maine.

These base girls gloried in such things, for
it lifted them up and got them into good
company- Said old Mrs. Davidson *“ Rhoda
never kept such good company in the world
as she had done since she had this baby >

Why are snch men chosen as the sub-

jects of calumny ? for the obvious reason

that they, above all men, are sensitive in
regard to reputation, and shrink from ac-
cusation with a repugnance only less to
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-some older sister in sin to scggest, to stimulate,
- te guide and support her, she issure of her vie~

their abhorrence for crime itself; because,
moreover, the crafty accuser, as well as
the trembling accused is aware that by

reason of one of the most singular and de-

plorable, but at the same time most com-
mon infirmities of our nature, we are prone

to believe the accusation just, in propor-

tion to the exalted standing and professed
moral purity of the party assailed.

Let such a person then be thus accused,
or threatened with prosecution, and the
scandal of a public exposure, and you can
.readily imagine that he will feel willing
to escape the peril at almost any pecuniary
sacrifice.

As to the payment of money : The pros-
ecuting officer will not ask you to regard
it as equivalent to an admission of guilt.
His professional observation, his familiar-
ity with cases reported in works of author.
ity, both legal and literary, would prevent
his offering such an argument. And aceor-
dingly,in his opening, he stated it as a eir—
ecumstance tending to corroborate the tes-
timony of the witness. [ say, his profes-
sional knowledge would prevent his taking
the ground, that payment of money is an
admission of guilt.
~ You all know, gentlemen, how often in
civil matters, unjust elaims are paic, or ad-
mitted, for the sake of avoiding litigation,
expensive and troublesome suits ; and the
perplexity and vexation, than which nene 1s

reater, of being dragged into Court, and
Earassed by protracted conflict. So In
criminal matters, though, perhaps to a less
extent, false accusations ave often made
and silenced by the payment of whatever
the unscrupulous accuser may see fit to
demand—or to avoid the trouble, the
scandal, the distress ot a criminal prosecu-
tion.

A host of such eases were recently sta-

ted or alluded to in the House of Represen-
tatives, on the discussion of a bill for the

punishment of geduction. Mr Parker, in

the course of a long experience in our
criminal court, cannot have failed to
learn, that one of the most common ini-
quities of the prostitutesand abandoned
women of our cities, is to bring false charg-
es of this kind against innocent persons,
for the purpose of extorting money, and
thﬂ.t this inf&mou' trick 18 B8O succeaaﬁ}l,
as to yield them one of their most fertile
sources of income.

Every professional man knows that our bas-
tardy laws furnish the easiest and most ready in-
strument in the hands of unscrupulous and ims
modest women. :

A country girl comes into the city, and re-
sides in l%e family of some pious man. She
lalls into bad companionship—loses her ¢hasti-
ty amongst her poor and worthless associates.

he easiest expedientto hide her shame. or
make profit of her sin, i8 t0 accuse her master.
Her knowledge of his family customs, of his

culiar temper or temperament, enables her to
invent a plausible lie,~and then if she have but

tim. vt o |
I could point outa merchant on Leng wharf,

‘who has ¥nid $1200 on such a charge, and af-

terwards found for his consolation, but not to
prove his innocence, for he knew that before<
that he was the third person who had beem
charged in this manner by the same individual.
I hold in my hand papers relating to a case of
this sort, which occurred in this city—where
this very Court in 1807, was the unconscions
agent in helping forward the iniquity. -

A RESPECTABLE girl made an affidavit against
a mechanic, and he was convicted on her testie
mony. She afterwards confessed, that Mr
French was not the father of the child and
never approached her. Her father made him
compensation and induced him to goaway, in
order to save his daughter from the State Prison.
These girls were better acquainted with the
bastardy law than any lawyer in Court. It was
their practice. There were other cases, which
he had not time to purticularize fulg'. Clergy-
men were more {requently selected.

Another more recent case is within wmw
knowledge, where three different individuals,—
every one of whom was innocent, were comn-
pelled by threat of complaint and procedure—
to pay heavy sums 1o a wanton accuser

f eel that / can eafely appeal to the jury, in
regard to instances coming within their own
observatfon or neighborhood, of just this kind
of payment to avoid scandal. And / am wil-
ling to hazard my professional judgmenton the
assertion that these cases of payment, instead
of forming the exception, do, in fact, consti~
tute the general rule of practice,in the cases of
parties innocent—and wrongfully accused. In
regard to offences of this disgraceful character
in particular, the very suspicion or whisper of
which,is 80 fatal to reputation,—to social stend-
ing,—to family peace,~is this sad fact most
true.

By this means I have known innocent

men of moderate means stripped of their
hard-gamed stock of money. (Mr Bolles
here stated the caze of Henry L. Currier,
a servant of Dr Hayward, a case well
known to our legal practitioners.)

But it is usual for the conspirators, or
the accusers, to select some shining and
conspicuous character. Some man whose
profession renders his reputation especial-
ly valuable and peculiarly dearto him, and
whose usefulness would be destroyed by
the poison breath of calumny. Men who
feel vitally, and most sensitively, in regard
to their characters as Cesar did of the chas-
tity of Calpurnia; that it must be beyond
guspicion.

I need refer tobut a few signal instan—
ces of this, some of receat date and others
more remote. The case of Rev Dr par-
kinson of New York is, I know, familiar
to gome of you who are Baptists, like my
self. It occurred some 30 years VL R i

The more recent case of Rey Dr Phil-
lips, also of the city of New York,is yet
more remarkable. 1In that, payment afler
payment was demanded, and made upon a
false accusation of illicit intercourse, until
the frequency and extert of these drafts

-
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~on the Dr’s resources could no .longer be prostituted herself on Boston Common.

-awet, and: he was compelied to seek the haf. qh}} did not nleeb in 'the attic at all

rotection of the law, and did so to.the r F"l abse pbo. __,Tﬁllt after ' leav-

Fu[‘l‘bt osure of the villainy’ to whioch' he i . r F. amif 1841, ’i a ax re‘sled
at she 3' left so gpd

~had so }orlg sibmitted for the purpose t:f fﬁﬁ{“ t
_avoiding scandal, ha
Oqa. other ramprka.h{ case'| will read‘ io
yau from a volume kindly. furnished for this
- purpose from thoﬁibrar of one . of  the
“ymost respectable altmm of Boston. It
“was ‘of the Archibishopof York,and formerly .
_ Vice Chancgllor of Cambndge, in Wilsdw’
ﬁemo!mbl]in Canta. ' ' °
It eceurred in Dnneaster, and he’ a‘éa
mnq,cently found in bed with the mn-keép
-er’s ‘wife, It turned out that she was

- placed there, in pursuance of a plot laid ;
by a’ permna‘ enam , and that he was .,.lm time, it was with the intent to stay,

t!lee:p at the time. arge sums of money _and not to leave, all that’ wihier.a That
“were extorted from huh il 'at length He .she was dlsmlaged ﬁnall‘y at deft’s. own re-
_succeeded in gatting the ‘parties all convict- . quest made to his wife in R.’s Pl‘e‘setfbo, in
ed. The, principal one was fined 5,000 conseq quence of her not doing well. at
uads, .and 1. hope some of .our ‘South _the gitl who took her pTa.ce came in the’

ace
rs F. did not request her ?o
_nor ’dld 8 e,stay at Mra F’s, '3 da
make her dress, as she says, and 'put ‘the
‘house in O;G'er Bi ut' that after Mrs F. had
gona, being turned awdy for loose conduct
from Mrs Uﬂher’é she came to Mr F. with
'tea.ra and begged hu‘n to Ilét her stay tham
.a few days, and told im she dared not
‘to. her sister’s, Mrs E’s house because =
‘was a bad woman, and kept a bad’ house,
and she. dared mot trust herself there.
That when she came to live at. Mr ¥7s. the

.

Bstbn friends would not be obhgad to suf-
er qu:to as much as this. |

M.and R.took hier own tithe in the day to {)
That after she went away she’ alfv’ays spoke

might’ refer 10" mult:iucfes of ofhd;rt]"ghls’ of Mr F.and said she ¢ould live with

cueu, ut it is not needful to corroborate .

------

him foreyer, That there"wah a’ good “se-
cure fastening on the door of the back attic

.. our doctrine, which is that the payment of
" hush money, by no means amounts to an
‘admission of guilt; I now come: to a brief. ¥

“statement of the facts whmh wa expact to

whez,e she lodged,  That after leavirg Mr
{ll;l Noy. ’41, she neveér agdin dame’into
his. hduse when he waé hete alo’ne or there

ove. it'our defencei o ! - lf}mm his wife. ljat she not
PrF&cfd thit we expect to prbva ﬁ ¢, as she hﬁ: state ted, on hlSum:!‘aaf_ir ﬂoﬁ
'.;.:1'_ 1st, nmé; generally, that this wholj pnl Hat she hﬂ”md {35 and. Iﬁ.

Jectlpn sho had fo 11\111% ot Mr' Fs'was,
e

chuga against the defandmt is false r Beﬁux g]ong as

'2d. That he has'been made the vlctlm'
“of a ‘wicked eongpiracy to exturtmmey
“and to blacken his character.  'More par- -
tlcularly, that Rhoda’s, own declaratit?ﬁs

that Ehﬂ coul& not see
muqh as. she wmhed

»+That. her aonwrsa.tmn wa h dwers per-
-gona who .met - her Whlle at Mr F’s, was

upon ﬁ’uq yoint have béen, from the be- -always that of a,Jewd an ]ﬁﬁFlvlaua ]‘:::er-
gmmn - a‘[te and confrt{ﬂlc:tdry Thit - son. ‘That she J'?“'Nlablf calleel. Mrs
“after she went fo 'livé at defendint’s, be- bad and unchaste woman. That she, “a'd '

-beeni hired. by the offer of large suqls of
.money-to aceuse Mr F, ; That ahe %ld
she- had  seeured to her fon accua;ggr
Awice ‘as” much as hgr]waa ;o pay. H?t
large bribes ha.ve algo bpen offered by s0
-of the con&plrajom—;n pa;ucular. that
-one -of them -offered $200,10 a woman to
'sign’a false statement. t_,hq ille had knrmn

~Cha) in, 8, In AE’n] 1842, she" ’afwayg pro- - Mr F. and R. Jlockedup togetner, Th,atR
feaséd the, hiZhéest respect ‘and‘admira tion Jinad at Hoyt § 1In Noqgmher and Dﬂcem-
“fér his purity, ?ﬁdi y and excellent” charac- ‘ber, 1844,, and . January, . 1842 under cir-
tet ‘That gﬁr the whole of, her l‘iving _cimstances which are irreconei iliable, with
" i.afendant’s a'nd’ years before, she' was, -¢hastity. then. That she did, an@ confessed

her own confession and declamtlona she d:d about that time, ,h;u ,uwu inter-
ﬁ‘bted to and pl’im illieit m’ter-— _course,, while dressed up in men’s clothes,
with a_ married man, That she has said

_courke, with many persons, and not” with -!
3 dg en?. 1 hTha y her own ¢Pn(ilmi<;‘n, f.;thﬁ fathar .of her child was. a marned man,
whose wife was dying of cﬁnpumptlon, and

she ‘ a.t! 0 By ‘improper. means ‘got
tﬂ' ileg iﬁmrafg chi dré)n moﬁ,ﬁ gﬁ ~who had prdmmed to marry her when his
on,ce E ‘Ha has, in one" m’.teéﬁ’ wife ‘died. ' That she co MEﬂ that so
Pregnant, cﬁnsultad a' do

ing 4 professiug christian, she opanly' and
co%mtt?htty pfofdsﬂed that her * christidn -
_ characte was improved, and Ner'enjoy- -
‘fnbnt of ion ictaaﬂed Thit ‘while ¢
hurr 't éré he first'time, and after leav-

there in Ma dy 1841, a‘n‘d ‘while living
themhe secon llme, and after she’ Ieft
"”tharé 'he ldst tizhe, up to ‘e rﬂétvmg Dr

“when Ohc or, maﬁ ‘men had" a ‘hand in'the pie, that it
“and was | ld'h to get rid of the tinborn | wou a hzzla‘ a P‘h:l agblghﬂ 'faw'yar to téll
“child, and did s0. -rﬁm o hins often vid. Who the child belonged

i Tha dg fandaﬂt from thlh erp“tﬂ to ﬂatﬁty

‘den into the suburbs with “infamous ‘chay- -
you by thn admmnonu of LA Dav:dmn,.ﬁthe

acters, and has by h r 6wn confes'ﬂon,



'hgum and asserted his innocence. That
from

vidson since e"x!b?rﬁyﬁf the money

“thHought Mr F. an -‘ing‘o&em man; a good
fhvan, and a true christian.- ~ ° -~ -
“ What we expect to prove conéerning
“‘Mrs Esty, I shall leave you to anticipate
rom what you have seen of her testimony
‘today. Thrice perjured within an hour,
hier character cannot be mistaken, and
quires no comment. e @
11Nt to detain you longer by -a more ex-
ténded ‘statement of ‘what we expect to
rove, let me conclude by reminding you,
ntlemen, that your verdiet, if itis what
fﬁ:hink it' will be, will not only send my
lient good - deliverance; but restore him
%0 his clerical functions, to ‘that flock
who are longing for him at Exeter, and
%ome of whom'l am happy to see, have
4llied around him on this occasion, and
given him their countenance and support.
L He would now offer thie evidence in the

0! On motion of Mr Parker, -and at the
iggestion of the defendant’s counsel, the
trial was here closed, and at 6 o’clock,
¥or.the day,the CourRT ADJOURNED.

926 3 <  Wep~EsPAY,; March26.
“"EVIDENCE FOR THE DEFENCE.

o WWm. P. Huines Esg,of Saco, sworn.

L.rgside in Saco, Me. I was a delegate

fromthe church at Saeo to the Council in
g__i;gté'r: ‘Heard Rhoda D. and Mrs Esty
gestily there. Rhoda said that some days
after Mrs F. went on her journey, Mr F.
came to the attic, to shut the sky light,
and came to the side of her bed  that she
jimped’ out, and he = seized her wrist
s=—that' a  long conversation ensued,

that it was right, as he said, in the eye of

God, to indulge their [bve—that David did
s9.  He quoted Paul’s words; and afferfthat
hehad criminal intercourse mith her in the
Qfciioe Las 0 10 82008 97z gy iy

-5This was the first interview:in the attic
and the:first act of criminal intercourse.
She said this was the first time she saw him
 j2! thh_ attic, also that there was no faa_tana-
ing on 'the.attic door; she testified distinct-
iy that be never had any other intercourse
with her than this in the attic, except in
the study. The interview in the study, she

said ' took place in December, orgfirst of

5&110&1‘}5-- The question was put to her
mdre than once. As to violence, she re-
plied in 'different ways, and at different

times, that she was overcome by scriptural

arguments or otherwise. . She spoke ot his

geizing hér by the wrist.  No other.act of

¥iolénce was spoken of. "At other times;
stie said, she always had her way when
ghe saw him, or similar language. About

"' has' repeatedly eclared ‘tbat he

the interviéw in the study, she said in evi-
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r, that Mr Fairchild always denied
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dence, she was not afraid of Mr Fairchild,
and ecould have her way. About the
parlor interview, her story at Exeter was
similar with som® exceptions. One excep-

‘tion was as to the position of the parties,
that he was on the sofa and she was in

the rocking chair; another is about

‘wife and his talking about her character.

This she did not there state ; There was
nothing said about “‘strefching the con-
science,”> 1 think. She did not tell at Ex-
eter about covering up her head. She did
state that he had criminal intereourse with
her in the attic, and said nothing about

having successfully resisted him. She spoke

of two favors only, one about omnibus
tickets and the other about work in the
house. In regard to the study interview,
she stated that she ran down stairs with
her bonnel and shawl on, that her first
thought was to run in the street, but she
did not, as she thought she might expose
him; (Mr F.) but that she ran into the
parlor crying and.sobbing, and then went
up to the study, where he took off her
bonnet and shawl and had ecriminal inter—
course with her. I heard her speak of
visiting Mr F. on Sunday. She mentioned
at Exeter about going over to South
Boston on the Sabbath. About the agree-
ment on the Common she stated that $200
was 1o be paid, that $100 was paid at
night in cash, that in future, $100 per year
was to be sent, and that Mrs E. was to
have $10 per year; have heard Rhoda’s and
Mrs E. statement here about Mr F’s giving
Mrs E. $5. She did not say that Mr F.
paid Mrs E. $5, but that Rhoda paid her
$10 next day. I understood that the
money was counted that night. - When
Rhoda was testifying about her interview
with Mr F, and the engagement to pay
$200, on the injunction of secrecy, Rhoda
said that.she had told her sister, and Mr F
must satisfy her. = She. was inquired of by
me as to the contents of the second letter,
and she replied first that she had burned it,
and then said she.remembered one sentence
in it. It was this: “‘T have denied the charge

from thefirst, I deny it now, and shall till 1

die.’’She said repeatedlythat this was in it.
. Cross examined. At Exeter she spoke
of herresistance of him, seizing her by the
wrist, and her jumping out of bed. She
sald she objected by words, and I have
spoken of the long conversation about Da-
vid and Paul ; she said he used scriptural
arguments, and she also. He argued that
it was all right. ' She spoke of erying at the
study interview. tfave conversed with Mt
F. about the case at Exeter, after the testit
mony was in. Think I did not converse with
hitn about the facts at all. There wag an al-
Jusion merely to the evidence. Some things
took place on the last evening of the Coun-
cil’s session, and I thought he might
become insane. Interested in the fami-
ly, I called the next day, and we spoke
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of the case in the way of allusion. I recol-
lect the circumstances from my own memeo-
ry, as well as from minuwtes, - I have not
leoked at mv minutes till this trial for
months. This had no influence as to my
judgment Have looked at my minutes here,
- and made suggestions from them to his coun-
sel. Have heard casual observations from
Mr F abeut the case Have corresponded
with him some, and have seen him at Sa-
co. He came about his case. Have assist-
ed him as a friend, but not as counsel. Have
let counsel see my minutes. There were
frequent interruptions at the Council 1n Ex-
eter, but R: was not interrupted so as to
prevent her giving her narrative. It was
given very much at her leisure, On the see-
ond day she was examined. Her term of
investigation was some eight hours, and oc-
cupied part of two days. Have not been to
Bath and other places to get testimony, or
written letters to witnesses. Mr Riddell
generally conducted the examination on the
Eart of the Council. R. was cross-examined
y MrF. and Phelps; difierent questions were
put by members of the Council. Before
the Couucil sat, I never was personally ac-
quainted with Mr F. Had heard of him

~through the public prints.

Stephen B. Robbins. 1 reside in Taun-
ton. Rhoda Davidsop resided in my family
10 daysor a fortnight early last summer.
She made a communication to me about Mr
F. Afterbeing at my house about 10 days,
Mrs Shaler came out there with a writ-
ten statement, or confession, for Rhoda to
sign. My wife was called to witness the
statement, and she refused till she saw me.
Mrs Shaler would not show me the writing.
After Mrs S, left, I settled with Rhoda, and
asked her some questions. She was to go
in the morning. T told her I was surprised
to hear these things, and of the course whieh
my wife had told me she had taken. I told
her I did not see how, at so late a day, #he
should destroy herself before the public, for
the sake of injuring Mr F,

I said Rhoda, if Mr F. has done this
thing, has he not done everything in the
way of compensation like a man? she said
yes. I then said, how are you so willing to
throw yourself away—¢‘‘you might make
gsomething out of it yourself,”” without in-
juring him. Said she—*“They give me as
much agin os Mr Fairchid..”” Said I,
who in the ‘deuce are they ? Said she,
“Mr Shaler and the deacons at Souih
Boston,’* [Slight applause.] I said to
her t_hay,woulcfmake a tool of her, and
not give her one cent. Said she, ‘‘they
secured it to me when I went to  Boston
‘with Mrs Shaler, PROVIDED I SECURED
A CONVICTION OF MR FAIRCHILD”
She left 1n the morning, and 1 settled
with her that night,

Cross Ez. She came I think in June

1844. Itis on my book, I found her in an
Intelligence office in Boston, never knew

.come again.

her before. I think I told it to Field
first in Tremont street, agent of Mr
Wright’s pills. I toldit afterwards to Mx
Roberts of the Times, after he was intro-
duced te me by Mr Field, at the office.
Have not told it to him since. (This was
after the trial at Exeter.) The paper was
signed when Mrs Shaler was there. R, -
left because we did not want her thare..lﬁ
don’t know that she ever lived in Taunton
before.

Main Exr resumed. Never knew Mr
Fairchild before this affair. Iam an Epis—
copalian.

Elizabeth G. Randall. I resided in
South Boston in 1840—1. 2. I kept a
shop there. I knew Rhoda Davidson; I
first saw her early one morning, when she
came up to my door. This was in 1840,
before she went to Mr F’s. She spoke
very familiarly. Sheinquired for a board-
ing place for females. [ told her of Mrs
Usher’s ag a very respectable place. I
asked her where she came from, and she
gsaid, Marblehead, and that she came to
South Boston that morning. She wished,
she said, to obtain a boarding place for
the purpose of working at dress-making.
I fthought her to be a dress-maker. I
spoke of Mrs Usher’s, as being a place
where she might board. She went away
and came again in some 3weeks. I did net
recognize her at first till she alluded to the
other time. She said she was boarding at
Mr Fairchilds.

She was in the habit of coming to my
shop at different intervals all one summer
and winter. She went away and then
I inquired of William Fair-
child about her, and he said she was living
there. After some weeks, she said she
was a Baptist, and that she had told Mr
F. so. S8aid he, very gcod, we have a
good Baptist minister here. Rhoda thought
this wae eurious, &r ministers generally
always wanted every body to come to their
church, (laughter); after two or three
months she spoke of religion, and said she
felt religious, but never thought of attend-
ing to it, every day, till she went there.
She said it was a very exemplary family
and though she did not have so much, by
a quarter, as she had elsewhere, yet it was
pleasant to stay the_re on account of it#
being so good a family. She always spolke
particularly of his prayers, and alluded
often to her wages, The effect of these
exercises, she said, on her own religious
feelings was good.” She brought her father
to see me; she introduced her father ; he
said he was happy that she had got into
o good a family; he had never been gsat.
sfied about her before, since she left home,
she was 50 young; Rhoda had then been
living there about six months; I repre-
manded her first of the winter about her not
being so religious as she was; [ told her,
she showed too much vanity, She asked



where; I told her about her shaving ‘a
circle around her forehead, and that no
christian would act so. I told her she
looked like a scorched cat, [great laugh.
ter]; she always wanted me to trust her,
I did sometimes; she said she had got
some $8 or $9 in advance, and he was
afraid she should affront MrF. if she asked
too often. She would not affront him for
anything, for fear she might lose her place.
After the interval when she was absent,
she came back and spoke well of Mr F.;
said that she did pretty much as she had a
mind to when Mr F. was absent, for mad-
ame was preily easy; she said, he would
look around occasionally with his eyes, and
she was afraid of them; he always spoke
pleasant, but she expected some complaint
—she said he reprimanded her for her
vanity and extravagance, she having asked
him for money 5 times one week; he told
her, she ought not to spend all her money
that way, but ought to lay it aside; she
spoke of his rules and orders as systematic
and more regular than other christian fam-

ilies: she said when she came back, she

was going to stay; she said her ' cake was
dough when she went away, and she* was
not satisfied when away.

She said she enjoyed her religious ad-
vantages. Was afraid she should lose her
place on account of keeping her sister
there. When she was going away for the
lagt time, she said she wanted more
money, and wished she could work some
stratagem to get 25 cents more from Mr F.
When she went away, it seemed as though
she went from some bad advice. Spoke
of the place as being good, and was
afraid she should not do well. Saw old
Mr Davidson in the fall of 1841, and in
the month of October, 1852, the last of it.
He came into my shop. He spoke about
Mr F.and Rhoda. Mr Davidson inquired
about his daughter Ann, had been in pur-
suit of her and could not find her. He had
been to Mr F’s, and could learn nothing
of her since Rhoda left. He then said
Rhoda was at home, and had left Mr F’s,
that he was sorry for it and that she had
not done so well since. He then dropped
his head, and tears were in his eyes. Said
he,youknow how kindlyl was treated there,
and what good place it was. AithoughlI
had old clothes, and was dirty, they treat-
ed me like a gentleman. He said Rhoda
had never had a good place before, and

F.was areal gentleman. Mr D. had been
in my shop before. Mrs Esty had been In
my store. Rhoda and I talked about her,
and her character.

(Mr Warren here proposed to offer the
declarations of Rhoda in evidence as to
the moral character of Mrs Esty, but Mr

Parker objected and the evidence was
ruled out.)
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The Court hera took a recess, and .we
took the opportunity to look at the ohild
of Rhoda, whieh was in Court. It hasa
ehubby, short face with close twinkling
nazel eyes, like the mother’s—(not large
eyes like Mr Fairchild’s,) and lLight hair.
It looks no more like Mr F. than it does
like Mar Yohannan, Bishop of Nestoria.
We would say here that Mr ¥’s hair is very
black, and that he has large open dark
blue eyes. His son William, who was in
Court, much resembles him, having hair

coal black.

Erx. Resumed. Cross Ex. Witness
described how she recollected the date in
October when Mr Davidson called. Peo-
ple came and went; he was there 3-4 of
an hour, and I am sure he was in my place
talking about his daughter Ann. 1 am
sure this conversation was when he called
last, and after the birth of the child, as I
can satisfy you by circumstances, if youn
are not satisfied. (Mr Parker declined
to ask further questions.)

Hannah Gurney. In the year 1840
whnile Rhoda was at Mr F’s.1 knew her;
Mrs F. went a journey In the summer of
1840, and I was there when she went.
While Mrs F. was gone, Rhoda slept in the
room connected with the nursery and on the
same floor as the parlor; 1t was the room
they used to oceupy, and I slept there
some nights during the first fortnight, with
Rheda; Rhoda, pointing to their room af-
ter they had left, said she was going to
sleep there, and invited me to come and
sleep there with her. Rhoda used to sleep
in the attic; I helped Mrs Fairchild to
unpack on her return; I helped her
pack too; Mrs F. took outsome morn-
ing dresses and wanted me to hang them in
the closet of the room; there was not room
for them, Rhoda’s things being there: I
was requested by Mrs F. to have Rhoda
take them away. Mrs F. took a journey
again m 1841. Rhoda left the week before.
Eliza Towne” was there; Rhoda went to
Mrs Usher’s; Rhoda left living there last,
in  November 1841, before t anksgiving.
There was a conversation with Mr and Mrs
Fairchild at their house before she left,
when Rhoda was in hearing; she was dis-
tant about the width of a room and entry,

: [Hon. Harrison Gray Otis here appeared
in Court.] ‘

Mr Warren, for the defence, here offered
evidence to show by conversation between
Mr F. and Mrs F. that Rhoda was to be
dismissed from the family by direction
of Mr Fairchild himself, for the purpose of
showing a different version from Rhoda’s
account, and that this direction was carried



into effect the next day, Ruled out.

‘Witness, 1 don’t know whether this
direction was communieated to Rhoda.
Was in the family often in 1841 ; from
Sept *41 to Jan 42, Mr F’s health was
not good, and he was obliged to vacate his
pulpit, and obtain assistance. Have con-
versed with Mrs E. about this chiild, before
the Council met. Went tosee Mrs E. on
one Thursday morning, and Ann Davidson
came to the door. I went to see Rhoda
about the reports, thinking it my duty. Ann
said she was not there. I then saw Mrs
Esty, and asked where R. was. She said
she was out of town. I said I come to
see about the report and the child.  She
said that she had a child. I enquired about
Mr F’s being the father. She said she
believed he was, as much as her husband

wag the father of her child. She said it

was a year old in September. I thought a
moment, reckoned'up the time, and s«id

Rhoda did not live there then, she said that
was the worst of it. I asked when 1t was. She -

said she called when she was going to Ab-
inglon, and he followed her down to the
entry. I asked where Mrs F. and the girl
were at the time. She said R. said, no one
was in the house at the time, |

C'ross ex. |
F. left, I slept with R. some nights. Mr
Fairchild was able to be about when he
was unwell. I signed a statement, which
was before the Council. Isigned the paper
after I saw Mrs Esty. I went to Exeter
as a friend to R. and Mr Fairchild. I wns
a member of Mr F’s church.

[Governor Fairfield called in Court this
morning.] |
‘Eliza T. Barry called. -
( The child here cried and Mr Parker
quested it to be earried out.) '
‘Mr Warren. Itis one of your witnesses,
Mr Parker—we did not bring it here.
(Laughter ) -
Mr Parker. I dont mean to charge the
counsel with bringing it here.
“Warren. No, we deny all agency about

bringing it into the world, or here either.

(Great laughter.) |

had objected to living there because she
she eould not sée her beauxalone, for Mrs
F. passed ‘frequently into the kitchen.
Taking her trunk up stairs she said, this
trunk wont come down these stairs again,
I know. .

as the back entry and sat on the stairs; she

In 1840, when Mr and Mrs.

AP AU B o , s _which I wrote myself of my own accords Li

Eliza M. Towne called.. In May, 1841, / | 3
t Mr F’s before, and when she when'
on her journey. She left on Monday after-
noon and I staid till the Saturday after.
Rhoda came therein 3 days after. I was
in the kitchen, and started to goto the
door, but Mr F. got there first; I got as far®
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" P bl ¥ e Ry i ,---‘-*I-Hl"lf
asked if she could stop there a few: days '
to repair her clothing and to make a dress} o

_he gaid he could not let her stay, fori® !
‘would not be convenient, such were higo’
‘arrangements. He" said he had" madé !
arrangements to dine in the city, breakfagpo®
at home and sup at one of the neighbors go's
as to make no trouble for the youmgo!

woman who was cleaning the house. She'n
said she would put up with anything-—buﬁﬁ-
he said he did’nt wish her to stay. He/ 2
asked why she did’nt go to Mrs Esty; she ¢
said, you know I have nothing to@o with (1
my sister; she 18 an unprincipled womany'®
and I dare not trust myself in hey Fouse:o!
She said she had seen something there &
that led her to think thal her sisier’s’ howsé 4
was not @ good house, and as she was young -
she was afraid she should be influéneced by v
her to do something wrong. ‘She shed tears:
and then Mr F. assented to her comingj i
telling her to go down and talk with" me!
about it, for 1t might be some put out to me. ;=
She came down to me, after I went down' 8
into the kitchen. She arranged with me toli
stay, them went away, and returued the
same day, and stayed two or three days, tilkb
che made her dress. ~ She 'slept with mein
The top of of the house was very warm ih
summer, and I used to raise the attic win< v
dow and open the door. = The draught'q

. used to make a rattling of the fastening, and/}
then T bolted the door.

| I met Rhoda ‘once:!
after she lett Mr F.’s, in Boston, and asked:
why she left. She saild Mis . wanted her =
to do her work her, (Mrs F.%s) way, and she/7/
wanted to do it her own way. She said-she's

could live with Mr F. forever, for Mr Flo

was the most exemplary man she everis
knew, in the pulpit, or at home, and Was/
the best preacher. She told about her head !}

re-'- being examined on South Boston bridge, by

a young man who was waiting upon herif
home. He professed to be a phrenologists s
and examined her bumps. She mentioned ,
one only, that of Amativeness. '~ (Great
laughter.) That he reported upon it, that

it wasmore fully developed on her headq

than on any person thal he ever knqw*i:
She told me abouta 4th of July ride with ,
this “young man, when she was walking |

: | , . Wi 81 d her husband. A Sh t
“1lived ‘with MrF; 1841 lived there. with her sister and She got 4

when Rhoda came back. Rhoda said she'

separated, and -the young man took her g
toride tn a carrtage, and with a driveryd
in some of the adjacent towns, and . left her ,
in Park street, where he took her. .She 3=
terwards said, shé learned from her sisler;
that he was not a man of good character. ., ..

Cross ex. 1 sent n statement  to Exeter,

mentioned this affair soon after. I hear
that Mr F. was‘implicated. - She used ‘{he
word ¢ unprincipled’’ aboat Mré Esty, ' Ip
h-av.g tD_ld. this. @Vﬂm]_. tlmﬁﬂ} and Hiven .-qurr 3
opinion. Ry b b o
‘T may have used the word 1r‘nel"i"gi6uﬂ"q
but I don’t think I did. I have always W04t
ticed the fastenings, and have bolted the



& 2agit 0. . siltapaw Y. I DDV

| e 1‘he am

-*.,

®
3 45

dﬁQt a great many tlmea. She gave )
count about her head in thakltc ien, and.-
'Ig she waa mn beﬁ She ﬂﬂkﬂd me if ) Iﬂ}’
h?ad' ‘was ever pxan‘imeﬁ I said it had.
veen.
nénce, for I never bk? ﬁer weTI enoug’h
:The Court here. ad.]ourned at 2 o clock
TIn the afterﬂoan,m: 31«2, aclt}ck the

exﬁmmatwn was' contlmxed

Dr ﬁlam:ﬂ Cﬁapm called, s reside In
Eb,st Abmgtan Am a ph}smiam Rhoda
lived with me, and came to reside with me
on the 12th 0[ January, 1842. I weant to
Boston for her on the 11th, and found her in
a liouse, (her cousin’s) in a street leading
from Cambridge, (Mrs Hoyt's, in West Cen-
tre'street.) 1 did not take her out 'in' ‘the
forenoon, on decount of her wishing tosee a
dentist My wife applied to’ me for ‘some:
medicine for Rhoda, and described her com-

plaint so' that T/ might* prescrlbe Rhoda
never applied for an émetic. =~ She never
stated her complamt to me. If she men-
tioned any medicipe, it was at the last ap-
plieation. I pmscrtbad 4.0t 5 ‘times for:

SUpPression.

" She stayed tl" Aprii; we did not want
her longer, on account of our being obliged
to brea.k up house keeping; I left her at
Mrs Shaws; she did not say anything about
rehgmus prlvlleges she was absenb'from A.
4 or 5 times in February, I believe; I hav
the last time noted on my book; in June or
July 1844, I received two Iatters in about
6 weeks; the first was from Alvan Simonds,
in whlch he inquired about her deportment,
and how long she wasthere; I answered
it. The other was from the same person,
longer and more particularly answered.

Tincture of steel or rather iron is gwen in
cases of suppression,

- Bolles. . Is tincture of Trom s o ver g;ven
or prescribed in dases aﬁ Pragnency;

- Parker. -k objeet. | .

Ruled out. © ¢ : oy

. I never give this medicine. in, cases of
pregnancv, for it would produce  mischief,
or-abortion. [ don’f know that I ever
heard Rhoda speak about Mr Fairchild.

My wife is so unwell that she could not be--

here- il o
i ‘Bolles. : I wauld daslre to obtam her de-
Pﬂﬂltlﬁﬂ if Mr Parker 18 willing. 3T

-~ Parker.: I could not attend to take g

Bolles. We 1m.::mld take it by mtarrﬂga«r
torjes. =it

. Parker: 1 must Dbjﬂct for the present

Cross ex. The first and last dates of the:
preseriptions are Ist, the 13th of February,
and the last on the Qﬁfh of MarChP as [ find
them on my book. T'couldnot say that one
tﬁ"thu prescriptions was not for an emetic.

Mrs Hannah Usher. In the sprm of
1‘341,1 resided aft South Boston. ‘Rhoda
came to'live with me'in1841,'in the Epring,
in April, May and June. She came from

I never told her much. of my eXpe-

- spoke of his kindness and

“ loved him the Eest

%=
SR

(BBl 0. 0 dum eng vedn 3
“Mr Faxrch;‘lﬂ’a aha sa:d and mshed

0»4.‘.-
work night and morn uh for her bom‘s o
she wmhl to learn hel' trade. She said .
she was a sister to Mrs Tﬁrnbull "
Boston, wife of the minister. She s‘la;d |
not qulta a week., I tuId her she woul‘d
" not angwer my purpose, and I could not"
Leep her. She said she left Mr Falrchlld’s
because he was gone a journey. She then'.

- said she was going to her sister’s, Mrs -

Turnbull, in the city. (Grt..at sensatmn..)v
I did not see her for some time again. She'’
left ‘the last of the w eek, and eome Mon—
day night., (Mrs T.is not her sister.)

Cross ex. Iam confident of the name"
of her sister, as she told me, Mrs Turnbull,”

Eleanor ?uwer 1 knew Rhﬁda in Feb.
ruary of 1842, when she came in from Ab-’
ington. (Rhoda, it will be rémembered’*
stated that she wag 1l and trregular on ag- 1
count of going te Abington, and caught"a
celd) R uda told me qhe agked for medi-"
cine for suppression in three or four days ,
after she got to Abington, ‘and fold Mrs*
Chapin what her situation was. 'She spoke:
to me zbout Mr’and Mrs Fairchild, and-*
good counsel to:
her. She speke very frequently of this,
while she was there. I saw her in lhe
fall, before she went home. -

COross examined. I spoke to' her abeut’
her-looks. Said she lookedpale, and asked™
her what the ‘matter was. ' She said she:
ook ecold when she got ' out there, 'L
understood her to siy that she took medicine
just before she came to Boston, :

- Rachel Fly called. I reside i Edge-,
combe, Me. I know. Rhoda. Wamthh
her when she was confined. I asked harg
how. she came to be in that horrible stlua-,
tion?  She said she believed it was sent m,.
judgment upon ber, for she was a despiser.
af girla of that. characters Supposing .
you were in. an attic moking a bed, and a
man should comeinto you, what would You,

do ?.. . She fell to crying, and the subject
dm;;ped 5]
Ann I(enney called. . In September,

1842, I resided in Edgcomb, Me., I saw
Rhoda before she was confined at her fa--
thers; I staid one day, one night and part,
of aday; when I saw her, she was_at tha
door and run from me; I cony ersed with he’

about the child; she spoke about the father
of the child, wher ¥ first came in,& that sBd,.
. was almoat ashamed to see me—-that she.
had met a great misfortune, but it was not

as bad as itmight have been, for she ex-
pected to have married the father ‘of the
child. T asked why she did not marry be<
fore the ehild was born. She said she
would wait tzll the ‘wife of the man died,

I 'laid it to a "married man because' f

I said I suppose a
married man would’nt like to Have a thlld

" laid to him unless he was the father of it*

She said she went to him and'told him, and
he was willing to father it because he loved
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her. [ asked if the father was not a Metha
odist Minister; she said no, he was neither
a Minister, Doctor nor Lawyer, but might
be a member of the Methodist Church. She
said the father of the child was a merchant
but she could not tell his name.

She had inlercourse, she said, with so
many that it would puzzle a Philadelphia
lawyer tolell who the father was. It was
nof the first child, she was lLikely to have.
The first child she was likely to have, she
went to a doctor, who told her to go to
the top of the stairs, roll down, and jump
a rope. She did so, she said, and got
clear of it. "She told me she had been a
dreadful bad girl among the young gentle—
men—that there was no sort of company,
but what she had been into, and that she
was the lowest of all flesh. She said she
had been insulted on the common by young
gentlemen.

She said the wife of the child’s father,
was just gone in a consumption, and when
she died she should have him. She said,
he promised if it was a boy to put it into
his store; also that his name, or the two
first initials of it were on a pin cushioen in
her trunk,and I might find it eut 1f I could.
The last letter was S. In Boston she said
she rode with gentlemen, did little work,
and they gave her what money she
wanted. She had many lovers, and met
many on the common. She used to get
up at night, meet her lovers, and return
through the window.

The father was absent, and all she fear-
ed was his return. But she had got a good

story for him, and if that would not do she
had got money enough. She said a Mr
Ellis paid her attention, and she did’nt
know but he was the father of her child.
She preferred the other man, for he had
the most property. = She told me about
being at Mrs Hoyt’s at thanksgiving, that
she dressed up in men’s clothes and came
down where gentlemen were, and they did
not know her,that she went back to undress
and looked under the bed and saw no one;
she looked again and saw Mr Hoyt. The
Janguage she used was so impolite, that
I don’t like to tell it—but the substance
was, he had his will of her. 1 slept in
the rame room with her, My brother is
here. I told my family when I got home
what my opinion of the girl was. I have
not been in her company since, till this
trial.

Cross ex, 1 have been in Edgecomb
nine years ; two years in Jefferson ; I was
seven months old when I came from Scot-
land ; I came to Jefferson. Have known
Rhoda some time, dating back time before
the birth of her child, She has lived part
of four or five years in Boston. She used
to eome home. I conversed with her about
six weeks before her child was born. I
last went home to Edgecomb last Septem-

ber ; lived in Newcastle in August last,
and some six months in all. [ visited home
a year ago; Newcastle was five miles from
Edgecomb; Don’t recolleet when I saw
her last before I saw her at her father’s.
She told me to keep it a secret several
times. I didn’t promise to keep the secret.
I didn,t tell her mother, but did mine ; m
mother is in Newcastle, but I did not tell
her the whole, only that I considered her
a very bad eharacter. 1 told the secret
first to Samuel Merry about two months
ago. He asked me if I knew anything
about 1t,as the neighbors said I was there at
the time. I told him the headsof it. I
signed a paper after I teld him, in about
three weeks. I don’t know where the pa-
per 1s.

No money was given or offered to me,
to tell this story in Bogton; no $50 was
offered me; I never signed but one paper;
Bhoda told me these things of her own ac-
cord; there was no particular intimaey
before she came to Bosten; no ene was
present when she told me, but some chil-
dren who passed through the room; she
went over more grounds than I can tell; it
would all cover a sheet of paper.

Parker. Was her manner serious, jo-
cose, romantic, or Rhodamantic ?

Warren. Does she know what .rhoda-
mantic 18 7 (Laughter.)

Bolles. We ought to have a dictionary
brought in, if such long words are to be
used. (Laughter.) e

Part of the time she was serious—then
light Have had no conversatien about this
since I came to Boston. Did not mention i
yesterday, only that I was an evidence, as I
can recollect. I stop at Mr Siders’s, near
Cross and Salem streets.

Don’t recollect of speaking in that house
about a methodist minister. I said some-
thing to my aunt last evening about com-
ing on the stand ; that]I did not fear it, for
I mmeant to speak the truth; I also told her
that I thought she was a very bad girl ;
don’t reeollect of saying anything in pres-
ence of Mr Siders, about a Methedist min-
ister.  Have not repeated this evidence
that I have given in today. I have an-
swered some questions of Mr Bolles’—it
was last Friday.

Dont think 1 have told any one else; it
was at Mr Bolles office. Had not told Mr
Harrington. Dent think of telling any
one else. I told Mr Bolles all that I have
told here today. o

Mrs Fly recalled. I conversed with
Rhoda at Mr Davidson’s about Ann Ken-
ny. | |
(Further examination on this point ob—

jected to fby Mr Parker and ruled out,
after many sallies of pleasantry between
him and Mr Warren. Indeed these passages

at arms, seem to have quite an enlivemn‘
effeet upon the progress of the trial.)}



Ruth Duwyer Called. Conversed with
Mrs Esty last June about the father of
the child in her own house. I asked her
if it happened in Mr Fairchild’s family.
She sdid no, but when Rhode was on'a
visit there when she was on her wey to
Abington. Mr F. was alone, she said,
and followed Rhoda down to the entry,
and it was there that the child was
ot. She said, I presume you know that
r F. had intercourse with Rhoda before

this and that he admitted thisto her on the

common. She saideche did not know what
entry, for she had never been in Mr Fair-
child’s house.

I asked her in June where Rhoda was.
She #aid in Ann street, but she did'nt know
the number or the name. I asked her how
Mr. F. admitted this. She said that he of
course knew that she knew all about it
Said I, this is net admitting it—he must have
used some words. Mrs Esty still answered
—that he knew all about it. She was sick
at the time, and this conversation made her
worse. We soon stopped it.

Mrs. E. said Mr F. had no connection
with R till the last time that she lived there
—that he always condueted himself well be-
fore this.

Cross ex. This was Friday after Mr F com-
mitt ed suicide. Mes. Thomas Dunham went
with me. She jeined in the conversatien,
and we both put questions. [ never saw
Mrs E. before. I had heard Mr Fairchild
was dead and I went to see Rhoda, but she
was not there. | felt anxious to know about
it, as there was so much excitement. Ijthen
thought Mr F. was a bad man, and I wanted
to find out about it. I have been a member
of Mr F"s Church since, but was not then.
- I signed two statemeats, one I wrote and the
other I signed my name to only. I sent
my statement to Exeter. I made the first at
Mrs Fairchild’s request.

We were at Mrs Esty’s house some time.
Mrs E. was so unwell as to be obliged to stop
coeaversation. She was very willing to see

us after we got there. _
‘The court here adjourned te 9 o'clock to-

morrew morning. |
o TuvRrRsDAY, March 27th.

Mrs Ann L. Brown called. I reside in
Waltham. I lived in Mr Fairchild’s fami-
ly part of 1841-2, I went in November
‘41. Rhﬁd} was there, and when 1 came
i n the morning,she went away in the after-
noon;l l:feq there from 1st of November,to
June following. I attended the door and
the l‘iﬂﬁi"g of the bell. The front door
had a dead latch on it; wag kept fastened
from November up to the Ist of March. I
was gone one half day up to February.
After February I was absent 4 deys. The
half day was Christmas; I Tattended
church however on Sundays. Rhoda eame
back the next day after she left to get her
wages. Mrs F. and Rhoda had some hard
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dictment for conspiracy.

words together. Rhoda did not take her
trank away when she left either time.
In a week, she came afterit. Mrs F. was
there, and the little girl Florina, and Mr
F. came before she went away. She
called the third time after this, and I, Mrs
F. and Florina were there. Mrs Dunbar
came before she went. I saw her on that
Sunday when she was at South Boston.

She attended meeting in the afternoon,
and I went home with her. : She told me
gshe was at Dr Chapin’s. This was last of

March, or 1st of April.
Warren. Has any one tried to induce

you to testify in this case ?

Objected to oy Mr Parker.

Bolles. We expect to show by this wit-
nese, that 200 dollars has been offered by
one of the conspiraters to induce this woman
to testify that she saw Mr F'. and Rheda
locked up in the study together.

Mr Parker still objected, on the ground
that it was plaialy irrelevant.

Mr Warren urged the views of Mr Bolles,

and said it was clear that there were per-
sons abroad in the community who- were
ready to pay for false evidence in the case,
aud had offered this woman 200 dollars to
testify falsely. The conspirator, whoever
he is, ought to have been included in an in-
A written false
statement had been offered to this woman,
and money promised.

Mr Bolles followed, and ailuded very se-
verely to the person who had figured in this

matter, and who had figured in the Grand
Jury room yesterday, and in obtaining the

prosecut.on.
Mr Parker. 1 think the conduct of the

counsel on the other side is most extraordi-
nary, and for their ewn respectability, I
wonder that they should attempt to offer ev-
idence teuching a third person se clearly ir-
relevant. I might offer witnesses toshew
that a person has been sent to Edgecombe,
aud offered persons large sums of money
to come here and testify in behalt of the
defence. |

Mr Warren. 1wish to discuss the poing
no longer. If thestandard of respectability
which the gentleman has set up depends
upon hie notious of the law, I am pleased
that the law is not in his hands, and if it is
a mark of ignorance, or want of respecta-
bility te differ with the geni:‘la'man on a

question of law, | am happy that I am ig-
rorant, and not respectable.
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thing of that sert,”” Said he you have
guessed right, you need not guess.again. Ho
‘would not tell how much money he had
_ived, or how much he had expected; ﬁe
agreed to keep this a secret, and said, i
he iold 1T, he should get no more money.
He then said he wanted me to keep it a
secret, that he had told .me more thah e

Mr Warren then submitted a statement
sim writing of the point, which the Court
teceived and noted ‘on its ‘minutes for
'.fﬂq:l‘rpése: O',f_,', referring it toa __llljiﬁhe:r"ﬁ'ibﬁnﬁfl,
provided it was urged hereafter by counsel-
v Evidence  Resumed,, .. Rhoda ‘was not

;there before the first of February, except
-on the times thatl havestated. == |
+ Cross Egamined,. I had leave, of ab-
sence at the times stated; I went to shop-
ing one afternoon, to Boston; I had
leave of Mr and MrsF.; MrF. gave me a
ticket: never was out of the house,. and
never called on the neighbors; I went to
the woodhouse after wood, but as it was
cold, did all my work inside; never went
to the part of the block at all ; came to
this country the August previous to mygo-
ing to Mr Fairchild’s; my hnsband is a
RNOBIDEE, e oAy | S
“Samuel Merry. I reside in Edgeeomb,
near Davidson’s; after the child was born,
Mr D. talked with me about the child ; I
was in Wiscasset, and Mr D. wanted me
to goand see Mr Young in Wiscaseet whom
he owed, and say that he was 'going' to
Boston for mioney, and should have some
when he returned, Mr Young agreed to
wait, and when D. returned, he said he
should go and pay Young; I then ‘talked
with Davidson in July 1843, about the
child.. We were  haying together, and
stopping to put our scythes In order; he
said I have got a good deal of business
laid out, times 1s hard, and money 1s
scarce.” [ said to himy I suppose you ex-
pect some money from Westward—how
did you make out last fall 2
_He said, as well as he expected and was
not disappointed; he had received money
and expected to receive more. When he
went to Boston, he saw the man who Rho-
da said was the father of the child; that
Rhoda laid it to him; the man when he
heard this appeared thunder struck and
denied the charge altogether; that he had
no intercourse with her and was not the
father of the childithat it was not possible.
D. said he told the man that Rhoda had
laid it to him and would swear it on him,
and if he' (the man) would eomply with my
terms, well and good; if he cllnnf not, the
law must have its course., ;Davidson then
said, he made the proposals to the man,
?:tl:d agreed to keep it secret. The man
en said, 1f it cun be kept secret T will
comply, but it is hard for an innocent man.
Davidson then said he took a solemn o¢ath
to keep it gecret. I said, Mr D, I should
like to ask one question, and you might
do as he pleased about answering it. The
uestion was this: ““Is the father of Rho-
’s child a' minister.”’ < He said, “‘not a
manister, a professor, nor a doctor; but he
is nearer a doctor than a minister.”’ ¢J
then said it must be an apothecary or some-

had any one else, not even his wife. “'I
said, suppose I should drop a word in coni-
pany and this should come out. It would
do no harm, for he should neverown.it, o

violate the secret; he never would ex-
pose the innocent. Mr Davidson said that
Rhoda had told him that she never had
interecourse with THIs man, but once, and
that was..in a room in the house. Said
Davidson, T asked Rhoda, *“Daughter, why
did’nt you halloo.”” Because, said she, his
wife and children were in the house. i(

contradiction of Rhoda’s former state-
ment.) x: e

~ She further said—for she knew if she
halloo’d, it would be the means of break-
ing up the family, and parting man and
wife. There was more talk, which is not
very proper. . He didn’t say whether Rho-
da was right or wrong ; I am a member of

-ﬂlé Baptist Church in Edgecombe ; we tak_lk_-

ed again in my shop in March or April, 1844,
He was to work with me. He. told me
that the father of Rhoda’s child was nei-
ther a minister, a doctor, nor a lawyer—
but nearer a deniist than .a minister. In
Dec 1844, we were coming from meeting
one Sabbath afternoon; I said Mr David-
son,what a good thing it would be if people
would confess and forsake—what a sight
of charity there would be  He said yes;
there is that old fellow, westward, Mr
Fairchild, i) he would confess, I would for-
give and pity him in his troubles. For the
old scoundrel denied ity alwaysdenied, and
never would own one word. mEinis IS

Cyoss ex. There has been some difficulty
between Mr D.'and me. Last fall I fonnd
out the rising of thie dispute. The d:ﬂ’i-
culty took place this winter, or early this
spring; I have said in meetings, that Wflﬂ}t‘t
had done, I had done from duty. I have
not said that I had misrepresented , Mr
Davidson. . What I;hﬁvefﬂHE, I have said
I had done trom duty, and not to injure Mr
Davidson. Dou’t recollect of recantin
anything in the church weetings.” The
church meeting was some time about’ the
middle of last %"qbrqar}f‘ ; I'did not disclose
this maltter, till it edme outin a publica=
tion. This was a matter of commion con-
versation in out neighborhood, and there
were different opmions. The seeret after
a while was made public talk. I have
never eorresponded with ;M;-ngfchilﬂ , but
have written to' Mr Folsom of Exeter’;
Mr Folsom has been to my house ; it wag
in haying time, 1844, July or August. T

' I have never received

signed a statement.
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get evidence, for I considered Mr Fair- (Have had a conversation in February last,

child an mnocent man.

Warren. You wﬂf not be hanged for
your ‘peculiarity ‘of opinicn: ‘(Leughter.)

‘Mr Parker wished to Inquire about the

difficulty batween Mr' Dandsnn ‘and W1t--~

ness. -

Objected to by Mr Warren, and ruled cut
by t‘ne Court. -

Depmdmrt Jl:ferry called Saw Dawd- |

son last fall ; D. teld me that 1t was rumor-
ed around 1 m Boston that the father of Rho-
da’s child was aminister; He said he was
not a minister. Davidson said that Rhoda -
sald that Mr Shaler called on Rhoda ard
wished her to clear him. She said she would,
but no one else: Davidson said when he
called on Mr Fam:hﬂd he seemed much
affiicted, trembled bad, and said he was noti .
the father of Rhoda’s chlld —it could net be
go. Davidson said he loooked Mr F. right
in-the eve, and asked if he had not admitted
to'Mrs Esty that he had had a connection’
with Rhoda. -Mr F. denied that he had
cver admatted that he had any connection
with - Rhoda = He told me of his coming to:
Boston last fall First he came, and wanted
me to help him about his ch1mney He said
he had ffat some money in Boston, and

would pay me for my labor.  This was"
last fall. He said he got the monéy from
Rhoda's friends. He saxd he had not got;
so much as he should if the story had not
got out.” He stid he was with Rhodas
frrends the best pa:t of three days.

Crossex. The first communication .was -
in September last,at the corner of his house.
The aecoi\d in Octobar, when he came from
Bnqtnn t eonversation was in Novem-’
ber. No one Was present at Octeber eon-'
versation ; i1t was in the house; Jast con-
vérsation was in the woods. Fn September
conversation I have related about’ aII
October conversation, he said he 'gavG a’
Btatement in Boston, but did not make' oath’'

l,t1 1In the wood’s conversation, I related

early all, Can’t say whether Davidson said

F Was a guilty man; he did say that F.°

would  not acknﬂwledge that he was guils

ty.
[ama brother of Samuel Merry , Da-
vidson denied that he said to me whatI

have related and said T was a har, oF: ¢

" said so. 1 went and found him, and askéd
an. explanatmn Davidson depied that ‘he:

ever :said to'mé what I seghed. I and
brother were called"upon . b3 {lie church
meeting about wha;t])&vi e aid Lo ushe

I teok no active:part in: the difficulty be-

tween Mr D. and brotheér, though: 7 went:

to the meeting because Davzdson had giv-

e, thmg

... Davidsons; Mrs D.'is my sister.

- visit to Bostcm

11'1‘

1845 with Mr D. 9bout tﬁa child. We :

were ﬁihlng together He then tol g
‘that the father of the child was not ar 'in'-' Y
ister. The next conversation was inJ uly, *

1844, on the flats, where he was d:ggmg -
clams. I asked if he was not a.fraqd some-
would come out in Bosten about
Rhoda and the chlld He said he was.
" When he got to_Kanso, on hl! paesage
home., he ﬁad news from Rhoda 8 friends
as to what was ER ing on.  He was afraid -
they wonld ick. Rhoda, and make her tell *
aome;hmg t at she oug ht not to ; 5 he lald
he was in Boston, and made a statement
of facts to the county attorney, but which
he did not make oath to ; he said R. had
good friends in Baatﬂn Mr Shaler and”
Deaeon Drake ; and Rhoda had_ received
~some money from them, but not so much
~as he should have recelved if he had kept
the secret |

Cross ex. He told me certamly that the |
father of the child was not a mimster. I-
can make oath to this. Had lome joke
with him before we conversed,. on’t -
like to tell what it is. (Laug hler) If I
must tell I will. (Contmued laughter g,
He was speaking of his trials and troubles, -
~and T said ¢ these ministers-have a curious
way of gettmg around the girls.”’ (Laugh- |
ter agam .) He then said the futher of tha
ch:]d was not a mmmtér e A
John Dodge, 2d. T'ama réldtive of the
David= *
son told me, in February 1843, about his
It was in,my barn; we,
were doing flax. He sad, if I weuld not..
name it he weuld tell me how nmuch he had,
made out of the Rhoda affair in Boston;,
he did not want me to tellit to'any one,,
not:even my wife, for he was under solemn,
oblﬂgm ‘to keep it secret—I, gaid I s
would’nt; he said. he went to a town,
(Btllﬂnca) then to Boston, and then to see
Mr: Fairchild, first asking h:s daughter, Ml:s
E.%o go to some place while ge talked :
with Mr F., he then said he told Mr F.—,
“Myi da.ughtar R. has, came, has got a,
child and saysit is yours,’’ . Mr F. said—;
“It ean’t be so; I never had any intercourse
with her, and am wholly an innocent man,’”
Mr F. Eald too,that Rhoda came to him,and
wanted money, and wanted to go “ome,’
but: ke told her that he was poor, going on
a journey, and. she must go. to somebody,
who was better able; and that thep Rhoda ,

‘wanted to see Mr Fualone; she did g0, ands

said, Mr F. I am going to haye a. child,~
and lf you don’t let me have ity I’11 swear .
it on you. "Mr F. then said, he told her he



was a poor man, that the charge would
ruin his family, and he had rather pay
mondy than be accused. She demanded
the money,and he agreed to pay $100
then, and $100in a year, and though the
time had not come for the second sum, he
would try and raise it, provided it could be
kept a secret. The money was paid, then

old D. said to Mr F.—*‘Mr F. you have

now settled with my daughter, Rhoda;
you rmust now settle with me.”” (Sensa-
tion.) Mr F.said—*‘this 1s hard, this s
unjust, this is cruel, I am aninnocent man,
but I had rather pay the money than be
ruined, but I am innocent.”” Said David-
son, ‘““Whether you are innocent or guilty,
makes no difference. It shall be laid on
you if you do not come to my terms.”” Mr
F. after protesting his Innocence again,
agreed to,pay $300 in yearly payments.
Davidson told me, that he had made out
better than he expected, but that Rhoda
told him that the father of the child was
the minister of the church where she,
Rhoda, was a member. Mr Davidson then
elosed by saying that Mr F. was a nice
man, a true gentleman, and he believed
him an humble christian.

Cross examination. Had a law suit with D
some sixteen years ago; been upon good
terms since. This conversation with
Davidson was when I got the book about
the trial; the statement’or chargesin which
I did rot believe, and said they could not
be true. I am a memberof the Congrega-
tionalist church.

Amos S. Haggett. I reside in Edgcomb.
Had a conversation with Davidsen about a

year ago. _ :
Rhoda’s child was a minister., He said he

was not. No more was said aboutit; I am
a member of the Baptist church,.

Cross examined. Nothing more was

said; this conversation was 1n my house;

my wife eonversed with D. about this; my
wife asked D. if the father of the child was
a professor. He said he was; she asked
why he did’nt expose him; Oavidson said,
it would be a damage to the cause of reli-
fian, and of two evils, he would choose the
east. (Mr Davidson discourseth on ethies )
Benjamin Kenney. I live in Edgeomb;
am brother to Anne; my family came from
Scotland 12 years ago and settled in Jefi-
erson; then moved to Edgcomb; I talked
with D. last fall when he came home from
Boston; I asked if he could pay me some
money; he scemed to be displeased, and
said the neighbors supposed that he come
home loaded with money, but he had not
received a cent. Said I, I hear that you
have, and you must let me have it. Said
he I have not; but at last he said he had
about & dollar; he said he got a stove in
Boston, but no funnel, and he was going to
Damarascotta for the funnel; after he rel
turned Ij asked§forfmoney [again,jand he

I asked D. if the father of
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said he expected some money, not from
the fish money, but elsewhere; he had not
a cent now; at last he sent for me, and at
length wanted to see the note and said he
could pay only $56. i3

This evidence was introduced to bear
on the fact, that Davidson had been teo

Boston and gzot money from Rhoda’s

friends, and was accordingly in funds, or
flush, The Court would not allow it te
go farther on account of its reference to
third persons, who are supposed by the de.
fence to have paid Davidson money in Bos-
ton, and to have bribed him in the matter.
The Court said it would be admissible if it
related to persons, who were witnesses.

[No cross examination had.]

Mr Warren here said that they had but
one more witness—thut they could not find
him now, but would {like to introduce him
by and bye. Mr Parker assented.

Rhoda Davidson was here questioned by
Mr Warren if she ever lived in Marble-
head. She said, she never had lived there.

REBUTTING TESTIMONY OF THE
GOVERNMENT.

Rev William Shaler called. I reside in
Brookline. 3, Know Rhoda. She lived with
me In 1838, was a member of my church.

(Mr Warren here rose and said, he, his
associate and the defendant did net im-~
plicate Mr Shaler in the least, although

Rhoda had very likely insinuated some-
thing about 1t, as she had about other
things. They exculpated Mr Shaler alto-

gether.)

I know Mr F. He called at my heuse
after Rhoda lived with him the last
time. I can’t state the time definitely. He
called on me as he was riding for his
health. 1t wasin the spring of 1842, be-
fore the anniversaries. Don’t know where
Rhoda was, had not seen her there for a
year, nor from 1841 to 1844.

[Evidence was desired by Mr Parker
from witness, as to some declarations of
Mr Fairehild at the time he called on Mr
Shaler. Objected to by Mr Warren, and
admitted by the Court, provided the peri~

od was before the paying of money.)

The anniversaries were the last week
in May, and this visit was some weeks
before. I stated at Exeter that 1t
was in 1841, but Mr F. told'me at E. it
was in 1842. (Mr Parker said it was after
the money was paid.) Mr F. reminded
me jof the South Boston controversy, I
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would not swear that it was within two
mornths of the anniversary, (or afier the
‘money wag paid on the common.)
Witness continued., Rhoda resided in
my famiiy one year from Sept 1838, to
Sept 1839, | "

[Mr Parker offered evidenee in relation
to the former character of Rhoda from

1836 up to the time of the events in the
trial. No evidence could be offered now,
said the Court, in support of her former
general character. It was not admissible.

The Court noted the objection of Mr Par-
ker to the ruling.]

[Mr Parker wished next to explain the
scene at Mr Hoyt’s, as related by Miss Ken-
ney trem Rhoda's lips, by some other evi-
dence. The Court decided that it was alto-

gether objeetionable.

Mr Warrern said that evideance of the
same nature had been ruled out five times.

Evidence resumed. My wife was not
present when Mr Fairchild called ; she was
not in the room ; I can’t fix the date posi-
tively. :

Phillip Siders called. 1 live corner of
Salem and Cross streets ; I know Ann Ken-
ney ; she came to me about a week ago ;she
conversed a few worde with me; 1 found
that she was an evidence in favor of Mr
Fairchild, and I made some inquiries about
Rhoda, having heard about her a good deal ;
she said she was a girl ot bad character;
I gave her a word of caution as to speaking
about bad characters, for it was not always
certain about them ; she then said that money
had been paid to bribe persons against Mr
F ; I then said, I thought, if Mr I'. was an
ianocent man he should not have paid over
money ; she stated something about the pin
cushion ; this was about all that was said ;
Mr Harrington was present.

Cross ex. lasked her some questions ; I
never mentioned this conversation to any
body in the world, and it was previdential

about my coming here.

" Warren. 1 will not trouble you any fur-
ther for thepresent. (Laughter among the
audience.)

Jonathan Peirce called. A g_ond natur-
ed looking individual, but evidently not
very ““ fiy.>’ I know Mr Robbins of Taun-
ton ; I live in Brighton ; Mr Robbins has
spoken to me about Rhoda and the mon-
ey; he said he agked R. when she cameup
from Boston—why she told of it? She said
she was a great friend of Mr Shaler’s, and
did not want his character injured. He
asked her if she got any pay for it. She
said it was secured to her. He did not
then mention the names of Mr Shaler or
the deacon’s. [ did not pay any particular
attention to what he said ; he said she was
to have as much as Mr F. gave her,

Cross ex. 1did’nt pay particularatten-
tion. 7 can swear to the as much, posi-
tively. (Laughter.) |

Warren. Where was this, Mr Pierce?

Witness. I cant tell exactly—eould tell
if I had an almanae., (Laughter.)

Warren. Could you tell the year if you
had an almanac?

Witness. I could, I believe. I think,
however, this was in February last.

Warren. Where were you at this time ?

Witness. In Taunton; I was on my way
te Squaberby. (Laughter).

Warren. What do you call the place—
Squaberby ?

Witness. Yes, sir.
Warren. Squaber-ty, you mean, dont
you ?

Witness. Yes, Squaberty—that is the
place, but I did not know the exact name
of it, or how it is called. |

Warren. Well, Mr Pierce, you now can
go te Squaberty, for all me, if you please.
(Renewed laughter.)

The witness then very good naturedly
retired, not having done mueh injury to the
defence.

[This little episode afforded much amuse-

‘ment to the Court, the counsel, and the

audience.]

Stephen Parsons. I réside in Edgecomb,
Me., I know Samuel Merry; he brought
some charges against Davidson in the
church; I was on the committee; Mr Mer-
ry said, finally, he might be mistaken, but
he should swear here to the best of his

judgment.

Robert S8herman called. I live in Edge-
comb; know Samuel Emery; have heard
him speak about the Davidson matter
the church. They each said the other
must be mistaken. It was said they might
settle the difficulty and each have his
statement his own way.

Court here adjourned to quarter before
4 o’clock.

In the AFreErxoon, at 3 3«4 o’clock, the
investigation was resumed.

Alisen H. Brown called. 1 have boarded
recently in house of Phillip Siders, and do
now. Miss Ann Kenny has boarded there a
few days ; she has said, merely in the way
of eonversation, that she khew Rhoda ; she
came about a week since; all that I
heard her say was about 4 days ago; she
addressed conversation to me in part; I in-
troduced it ; I said there was some doubt in
my mind about Mr F.’s guilt ; she thought
he was innocent, and what evidence she
knew was greatly in his favor. She qpent
intono details 5 shealluded some to the pin
cashion; and just spoke about the initials; I
spoke about it a day or two after to her ; we
alluded to the same thing, and gave our
opinions ; she thought Rhoda was a very
bad girl, for she had so many lovers ; noth-
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Ly else was said then, or after, as I recols - about what Mr Merry was doing against my

lect, Je 2

G’U 3 BT introduced the” last con-

i’é‘l’!’tﬂ.tisn”tﬁo.’ #His U ARYr Aa3AN L A0
Margaret Minnikin,

sided s i

ret Minnikin, Called.” Have, re-
h‘dy 4% Sidefs. "‘Knew fﬁe}_'g.. nn
Kenny. Went there Monday afternoon.
Heard her speak about R. .’t‘ﬁl;g ow she got
acquainted with R. but said nothing what
R. said about Mr F. She began the con-
versation—felt bad about her being a wit-
ness—thought she would feel worse tomor-
row. Never saw her but.once till R. ;Bnt
home "to be coufined. "The second fime

was when she went to ‘get .some patterns.

Waid'R. told 'her stotry to her, but she did

not tell me, only that R. was a tertible

')

irl. i i
£ Rhoda Davidson recalled — Heard Ann
Kenney testify. She came to my house be-
fore T was confined. Don’t reeollect of ‘tel-
ling' her-anvthing except about ‘the pin-
cushion, and one of the imtials, the Christian
‘mame, standing for the father of the child.—
Pon't recolleet that she passed the night.
Lidn’t say anything about marrying the
father of the'child. Had no talk about this
affarr only 1n relation' to the pin 'cushion.—
Think I didn’t tell about the Philadelphie
‘Tawyers, nor about having 4' connéction with
‘Hoyt at 'hi§ honse: "Said notning about
the Methodist minister toany one, only when
I told the whole story—nething about rolling
‘down the stairs, bad girl'among gentlemen,
oy In store, &c. Leiter S. was notion
-eushion. (In'faet this witness denied Miss
Kenney’s statements in' aggregate.] .
vt Cross’ examined—I ‘mever: told any one
ahout coming from Marblehead, for: that:l
“was sistep t0 Mrs Tuinbullj&e: &eyiv ol
1ol nover said that / nn/Keny was my only
confidant, 8o far as [ recolleet: ‘Weon’t say
that [ did not. Den’t recollect: about say-
‘ang to agirl i Hanover sti:that Mr . wasa
qmost exemplary man, &ec. It is possible I
may. Didn’t say thata man at Hoyt’s: let
down the fail of my pantaloens, and we /iad
‘a game of ' chequers together.' T think
Mrs Usher misunderstood me, and that 1
4satd My Turnbull married my -sister.,

William Davidson, recalled. Know
Samuel Merry, of E; have talked with him
about the father of R.’s child. .In that'bay-
ing time, he said to me, I want to ask you
.one question. and, want a correct answer. [t
‘has been said; said he, that the father of the
.child was a Methodist minister. /1 said that
“was 'not his profession  He spoke about my
-getting seme money last fall in Bosten, and
said I expected more. ; In the church, Mr
‘Merry said that he was as likely to err as
*amy one, and thatin counrt he should give
what he understood to be the facis. Have
talked with Dependant Merry about the af-
fair. I know Mr Lane. | |
Don’t recollect about _having any conver-
sadion with him on #Mshing ; I.do when I
was digging clam.wg'he

re was some talk

character. Know about M: Dodge,  he is
called my wife's brother. We'had some dif-

“ficuity ‘todether.” "Don’t recollect of sayilig

anything to' Mr Dodge about ‘this affair’ I

‘nav have done so Don’t tecollect of ever

‘Having mentioned the nameof Mr I, ‘fo any

one. Know Mr Haggarty, of E, /000 o
i Mr.Parker here rested. ¢ . of 07

. The Defence concluded to call, no witngs-
ses further: | | . &
" At'5 o'clock, 1t'was decided that it would
be: preferable to have the Courtadjourned for

to.day, and to commence the, arguments to-

DIOEDAVE SEORRINE "~ o R
A ipAY, March 28th.s.
'Mr Robbins of Taunton was first called

by Mr Warren. Heard Mr Pier'q.e’?s state-

ment yesterday. He was at my house at
dinner. He asked if my ﬁafna',;was_ ,ROB

bins, if I knew Rhoda, and what I thought
of the trial at Exeter, abeut the money.

I teld Mr Pierce twice the m’t?né){, “",5'} 8-

cured to her as she was to have from Mr

R WARREN’S CONCLUDING AR-
*GUMENT FOR DEFENCE .,
.. Tt must be;as much a subject of congra-
tulation to them as it was to -him, that the
end of this trial had approached—for the
case was one unpleasant in its details, and
invoived unpleasantly the important.inter-
ests of many persons. He thanked them,
in behalf of the defendant, for the patience
‘which they had exercised.. He should
trespass as little as he possibly could upon
their patience further, and-only as far as
it became necessary. in pursuance of; his
professional duties, and inthe discharge of
his duty to’the defendant—but he was
sure that if he found it necessary to extend
his remarks furtheér than henow designed

to do, they would not refuse to listen atten-

tively. They owed it to their professional
duty and to their duty as citizens of the
community, that the truth should be duly
set forth and deliberately ipmst‘ign;?de ‘_It
was a case so disagreeable, and calling
for so much arduous effort that no counsel
would willingly offer his professional sey-
vices, and he would not have engaged in
this most important cases, were he not fully
convinced from the outset of the entire
innocence of the defendant. ‘He did not
wish the jury to substitute his convictions
for their own, but he desired them to pre- '

sume at the outset not his ‘fuilt but his
nnocence.

~This was their duty—and he
asked this degree of fairness towards one,

‘who it was candidly said in the outset by
‘the learned Attorney for the Common|

wealth, had been up, to the events noticed
in this trial, perfectly unexceptionable and
beyond imputation. These circumstances

3 ud
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should not require them to be convinced of*
chis innocence—but. they rendered the case
imdre meldncholy, if the supposition of his
.innocence be estnbligh_eg: T IR
21 Mr Warren then referred in eloquent and
ifeeling, terms to the high character of Mr
JFairchild, and the discharge of the
(sacréd duties of his profession, and urged

.again that the usual presumption of a

ddefendant’s innocence should be deeply
{impressed upon the minds of the jury.
oSneersat the clergy had been expressed by
s$He vulgar in the community, chucklings
-had been heard in various quarters, and
7 gatisfaction had been manifested that a
;:?:rgyman- was guilty of the heinous offence
¢éharged. - But he trusted that no man was
vto be found.on the jury who took pleasure
.in-denouncing and convicting a christian
solergyman.: He referred to those clergy-
ymen who had banded against the defen-
gdant and who had associated themselyss
ywith the vile in the community in acting in
Jzadvance upon the presumption that the
rdefendant was guilty. - . - -

3. He gave them and others in l}ke circum-
_stances a most solemn warning in this con-
s mection, and reminded them that the time
'might come when they would require the
~countenance and sympathies of their fel-
_Jows, associates and friends. Their con-
aiduct towards Mr F. reminded him of the
o'herd of animals on the plain; when one
--of thetr. number was stricken down, they
.sturned upon him, and then left him 1n the
.hands of his pursuers. They might re-
-alize how: agreeable it would be to them
_~to have their brethren denounce them in
s @fdvanee and lead the cry of the low, vile
.caad valgarin the community. He expect-
« &d no sgeers from the learned. gentleman
qon the other side. He was not one of
[, those who felt or thought in this manner,

had not withdrawn all technical objzctions
to the specific act charged in the indict-
ment and allowed the government to ad-

duce any evidence they chose of any and

every act of alleged guilt. They wanted
the jury to pass upon the whole period of
events alluded to, and to give their verdict
upon them. Nothing else would the defen-
dant be satisfied with,and ho’thin'q’elie*ﬂ'fd

he demand. S 1y 2
. Mr Warren next procecded to the eyi-

dence in the case. He should not attempt
to go fully into the evidence—he cau?d

not, if he was indeed able:to call it to rec-

ollection. His intention rather was, 1o

reason with the Jury on the facts. The
oath which the witness and prosecutix
had taken, was of no binding force to one
who was not possessed of virtue and a cor-
rect moral sense. | | = >
‘He spoke of the deportment of Rhoda
on the stand—there was no halting : she
was cool, and rehearsed the disgusting
story in the most delighted manner. She
appears on the stand as the champion of
the females in our community, the pillar of

the government, one who was ready to

uphold to any extent the morals of the
government, the cause of good Sbc,ie'_'y,
and the purity, virtue and chastity of‘*t‘he
female sex. (Laughter.) But she cime be-
fore them as a pariiceps criminis, and no
faith could justly be placed in her story.
She appeared before the Jury as an_ un-
chaste woman, unchaste by her own con-
fession.  She had confessed herself to be
guilty of fifteen or twenty acts of criminal
itercourse, and there could be no doubt
tbat her confession \n this respect, was
true, i thers was @aas no evidence (aat
this reported connection was _with M
Fairchilc. She was to be legally regard-
ed as a common prostitute, and, nothing

s-and he was sure such things could not
.scome from one who was the sonof one
i of the most exemplary clergymen that New .
England had ever known. | g g
.+ Mr Warren next passed.to the nature of
s .the charge, and the considerations applica-

less. She could not be believed, and the
Jury would be most unwilling to place
their severa! characters in the  hands of
such a woman. The modest lady who ap-
pears before you—who is she? She is

+++++

Miss Davidson, formerly of Edgeconibe,

1
L!

.nHe referred them to the "charge insthe in.

Q;ﬂl*bgmqnt,_chiGh “.Ias.l'al’.ltir&]y d:ﬁ'er‘eﬁt} from

L " TR

Me, more recently of South Boston, and
now. of the Cattle Fair Hotel,in Brighton.
(Laughter,) A story like hLers should

-+the.charge as sel.forthil iyathe  witness on have something like coherence. There
;. thestagd.  Thechargeoftthe indictment was none here—and he would challenge
. Was, adullery, & ‘é Bily made, but the District Attorney to contend for a
. -most difficult to be 't ndsuccessfully moment,that her statement was frue in
E-:’rﬂﬁi_ﬂt_ r défe d ﬁicqlt m_ail its parts. It was grossly improbable.
;-brdln _E}BB-OF Mr Warren then described the'varibus
, . the pi it was and conflicting features of her evidence in
.y NOL S ly d the most graphic, powerful, and sarcastic
. .most ¢ '_ ﬁbnd manner, and commenced his relation by

.. fortun to the alluding to her as a virgin, a maiden, a re-
" fact of ym New ligious maiden, of some 19 years of age.
 Hamp# i in the He described her singular and incredible

charact ice. He deportment when attacked by the ravisher,

-also refen
~ment could
investigation I

ounsel 'ﬁ:_}r the defence

making no complaint, no outcry, but . pa-

tiently waiting after the first unsuccessful
assault, to be ravished, like the females in
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the besieged city epoken of by Lord Byron,
who s=tood patiently and wondered when
the ravishing would begin. (Laughter.)
She fastened not even the door, for fear
that there might be a fire—being much
more willing to be ravished than scorched
—and did not even do as Queen Caroline
did,put a boiled carrot in the door for a faste-
ning.(More laughter.) Rather than scream,
she preferred to lose her virtue ; she re-
mained quiet, and rather than expose Mr
Fairchild, prostitutes herself to this awful
monster. Mr Warren referred to the im-
probability of the story being true, in con-
nection with the fact that she should so
long remain 1n the house, thus prostituting
herself while Mrs F. was present, or could
deport herself without insulting her, or
awakening the Argus eyes. of a devoted
and observing wife. He spoke of her
coming again after these awful events had
been committed, and after she had left the
house, and humbly asking to be admitted
for a short time to the family—or in other
words, asking to be ravished again.

Mr Warren next passed to another fea-
ture of the case—the conduct and declara-
tions of Rhoda to other persons concerning
-~ Mr Fairchild,his character and deportment.
He pointed out very strongly what she
said 1a relation to Mr F, and Mrs F. being
willing to let her remain in the house, and
how powerfully she could have impressed
upon his mind, that she would stay there
and could have denounced him at once to
his wife, if he refused to let her stay. He
spoke of the interview between Mr F. and
Rhoda in the entry, when she asked to stay,
and the version as given by Miss Towne,
the very intelligent and unimpeached
witness on the stand. This was the private
interview between the adulterer and adul-
tréss in the hearing of Miss Towne, when
they thought no eye but God’s were upon
them. How was her demeanor? Did she
demand to come, did she threaten? No!
she begged and implored, and he at last In
the kindness of hig heart assented, if it was
agreeable to Miss Towne. Another point
in this conversation, and the strongest of
all was, when he asked her why she did’nt
go to Mrs Esty. The answer is well
known. She speaks to the adulterer, looks
him in the eye, and says she, a young girl,
would be ruined at the bad house of her
sister if she went there. Would this have
been her course, provided the act had been
committed ? No, it would not be pretend-
ed. Again, her fear to ask him for advance
money—of account of being turned away
from a good place—is another test in this
matter. Would such a girl, in the house of
a guilty married man, her paramour—ever
want money. No—never.

The eulogies which Rhoda paid to Mr
Fairchild at different times and on various
oceasions, were set forth with great power
and a most convineing manner.,

He was sure, on another point, that the

judgment of the jury would not be insulted

by the prosecuting attorney for a moment,
that this girl was deluded—a girl of 19

years of age. There was no girl ot that
age in the community, who did not know
that adultery wag a ernme. Mr Warren

now passed tothe many and various con-
tradictions of Rhoda’s story as set forth
by other unimpeached witnesses. It will

be seen that the moment she undertakes to

state a fact out of the secret veil of her
own machinations, or within the knowl-
edge of others, she is at once and triumph®
antly econtradicted. He referred to the
making of the dress, the time that she
stayed there and when Rhoda slept every
one of the three nights with Miss Towne,
according to the latter’sevidence. Rhoda
stated that no one was in the house at
the time, for the purpose of making a
strong case on this pomt. It was happily
overthrown. She falsified in saying that
she never said she had just come from
Marblehead. $She seemed to falsify just
for the sake of lying. It wasa second na-
ture with her. So it was about her being a
sister to Mrs Turnbull, about Mr Fﬂifﬂhilg’l
hair, the bolt on the door, the beaux in
the kitchen, and her false reason for leav-
ing the family of Mr F'. On these points
some six or seven of the most respectable
citizens of South Boston and other places
expressly contradicted Rhoda, and to con-
vict Mr Fairchild, the jury were called up-

on to convict all these witnesses of perjury.
Mr Warren then set forth the contradic-

tions of Rhoda here and at Exeter. The
means of discovery are wholly providen-
tial. The contraaictions were as to the
place of the alleged act, the explanation
of which 1s obliged by her to be supported
by gross perjury, that although the place
stated at:Exeter, was not the true place,
get she thought it was better to stick to it
ere.

This sort of BLENDING would not be
believed, and would show at once that
she was entirely reckless of the obligationg
of an oath. In this connection, the in-
structions to witnesses were noticed, who
were spurred.onby men who ate not law-
yers, but who ™

LU (e been =0 a:weriﬁnt
with proceéedings i unal courts as to

feel themsel tlified to manage
prosecuti _'f*‘ attorneys,
who ha en in the de-
fen onor of
appe yesing to
Rphpo' 3 a point
of RI prgot to
screan ntradict.
ion, M B length.
The story ofs elf, riding
with 2 youny 10g1cal scene

on the bridge,"hewa tlowed to dwell
upon by the Court'as" g true, as it was
not relevant, but he was allowed to say

s wae n =

]

L
.
e



31

and to argue that Rhoda had lied about it.
She had lied, and it was all the same. So
as to her story at Taunton, and her charge
as to Mr Shaler. That he could not be-
lieve, as he said yesterday, that Mr Shaler
was either guilty of-adultery or of bribery.
But he was sure that he had taken a strum-
pet by the hand, and been defiled. There
were indications here that some other
persons were behind the scene. Who has
paid the counsel (Mr Brigham) who has
been sitting at the elbow of the county at-
torney, not to help him, for no one could
help m1:, but to officiate professionally
for his employers. R.T

As Mr Robbins has said, ‘“ who in the
deuce are they?!’' Why was Thomas
Ewaham in the Grand Jury room reading
reports of the evidence? How came old
Davidson to appear here so suddenly from
Cape Ann, where he run away with his
employer’s money? Why was Thomas
Dunham absent a few days from South
Boston, and then appear again at home?

Speaking of the ditferent locations ef the

alleged act, and the lying versions that were
given of it, he was reminded of that scene

in the Seripture of Susannah and the El-
ders. She was accused by two lying wit-
nesses, as the defendant was accused this
day, who wished to revenge themselves on
har for not assenting to their lusis. Ontheir
testimony she was adjudged guilty, but the
witnesses were pnovidentially separated.
Then was one asked, ¢ Under what tree
didst thou see them companying together "’
He replied, ‘¢ under a palm tree’”’ The
other was then inquired of—*¢ What tree
didst thou seg toem companying together ?”
““ Under a holin tree,”” replied this one;
and the judge whose righteousness has been
celebrated 1n history and in poetry said to
each of them, ‘“‘thou liest, tc thy head.” And
the beautiful and affecting story ends—**And
thus the innocent blood was saved the same

day. God grant that it may be saved this
day also. The evidence of Ann Kenney

was nhext alluded to, and its entire ac-
euracy tested,jand also Rhoda’s various and
lying stories about the father of the chiid,
and the pin cushien. In connection
with Apnn Kenney, Mr. Siders was
handled pretty severely, as also Mr Thomas
Dunham, who was probably there. Mr Si-
ders had got into 2 pit, and he would leave
Mr Siders there, in Squaberty, with Mr
Pierce. Touching the paternity of the
child, there was cvery evidenoe and reason
to believe that the child was begotten in
December. If so, MrF, couldfuot be im-
plicated.

¥ He examined this evidence in full, and
Rhoda had said herself, thas she was at Mrs
Hoyt's on the 19th of December ; all will
recollect the masquerading scene, and the
act of cohabitation there. The child was
born 1n 9 months after. She thep changed
the =cene to January, tojimplicate Mr F.

but the evidence of the defence, in connecs
tion with Dr Chapin’s notes eof the time,
disposed of this lying testimeny, and -full
illustrated her doctrine of the tincture of
steel. Leaving her testimony here, Mr
Warren made a powerfully eloquent and
deeply impressive appeal to the jury en the
danger, the injustice, and inhumanity of
coademning a man of Mr Fairchild's high
character, professiom and learning om the
testimony of a lying, contradicted and per-
jured woman and prostitute, It was a deep-
ly affecting appeal, and we are sorry that our
limits will not admit of furiher detail. If
such a principle was to be acted upor, uota
high-minded and respectable man in the
community was safe, and there was not one
of the Jury that might not be In the State
Prison in a weekx,

To place any man’s character or property at
the mercy of such a ereature—te allow her
polluted lips to leave a stain upon any man’s re-
putation 18 to offer & reward for iniquity—a
bouaty upon prostitution—a premiuin on perju-
ry. |

Mr Warren next examined the testimony
of Mrs Esty, the sister of Rhoda, with great

ower, and contended that it was not to be

elieved. She shared in the plunder {rom the
commencement, and probably took thelion’s
share, as Rhoda carried home a very swmall
sum. Rhoda had said that Mrs Esty was an
unprincipled woman and kept a bad house.
if it was true, Mrs Esty was a bad woman ;
if not true, then Rhoda had lied about her
own sieter. The prosecuting attorney might
take either alternative. The Common inters
view was next detailed 1n all its aspects, and
its alleged character, ag testified to by Rhoda
and Mrs Esty, delineated aud expused. So
also in relaiion to her signatures of slage-
ments,which were disgorged by Mr Brigham,
who was inclined to keep possession of it,
as belonging to a olient. Who was the
client 7 He wished he could tell the jury.
One most siagular thing was, that the fiist
person who ever named the charge in con-
nection with Mr Fairchild, was this same
Mary Esty. The plot then commenced.
Said she, was it Mr F's. Yes, said Rhoda
She told Rhoda to take Mr Faivrchild, charge
him with it and threaten him with exposure
of the charge, This was done prompily.
Tha_hypmhesis must e true. In this con-
nection, and by way of allusion to Mrs Esty’s
and Rhoda’s attempts to fortify their evidence
by perusing with Dunham in grand jury
room, ‘the exceedingly accuvate reports in
the newspapers, Mr Warren spoke with
much eloqueace and point.

'ljhe evidence of Davidson was next passed in
review, and Mr Warren said he would not say that
Mr D. did not once think, in view of Rhoda’smis-
representation, that Mr F. was the father of
the child—but afterwards he had reason to believe
the centrary ; had been engaged in extortion, as he
thought, and in all the main- particulars juf his
evidence, was contradicted by five Withesses,

Mr Warren then came to the last two e'reum-
gstances alleged by the prosecution—rug Li'r'rmt
AND THE MONEY PAID.#% They had been both ad-
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 mitted ‘by the defence from the first. IHe argued Mr. -W-a‘rur'i’.fa.rgmiﬁft; mupwd about 4

with great foree, that payment did not necessarily

show guilt. Cases like this had often occurred, and
where the accused parties were ofterwards adjudg-

ed to be innocent, Mr Warren pointed out, most
eloquently, the folly of Mr F. in thus paylng money

to pay & thousand dollars rather than be charged
with such a crime, or defend it, yet they should
hold no terms with prostitutes or their honor.
Their honer would last only with their money.
This portion of the argnment was deeply affecting, .
and it is vo figure to say, that the jury and audi-
ence were in tears. He described Mr F. as a sen-

gitive man, as weak in this particular—but e was

not so here. The worst had passed. His deport-
ment here was as it should he, ealm and becoming
—it was not hardened. He now fe!t his error, and
that he had done himself and family a great wrong
by his timidity and ignorance of the world : and he
ventared to say, and he said it respectfully, that as
a class, the ministry had less knowledge of the
weorld than any other portion of the community.
If Mr F. had that knowledge of the world, he
would never have paid meney to secure the mers
cy ofsuch persons, :

As-to the letter, it was perfectly susceptible of
an .explanation consistent with his entire Inno-
cence. Two were destroyed by the artful ereature
- for her own purposes, whieh,from the phraseology
of this letter, he had a right to presume, were filled
with protestations of his innocence. It was stated
by her in Execter, that in the second Jetter he de-
nied that he was guilty ; that he had denied it
from the first, now, and would continue to deny it
till he died. The eommencement of the third letter
expressly refers to this repeated denial, when he
says, in substance, I write not now for the pur-
pose of denving what vou have charged. This I
have done from the first, &ec¢. Othker portions of
the letter were fully explained and made consistent
with this stateof facts.

The above is not intended as a full ré-

port of Mr Warren’s argument, though
we believe it presents accurately the gen-
eral course of it. The closing paragraph

was as fellows:

The defendant is in your hands. If, up-
on your oaths, you are conaéraine,d to say,
upon this evidence, that he 18 guilty, it will
be his duty and my duty to submit. But,
if you pronounce him innocent, I shall
deem it one of the most fortunate circum-
stances in my professionel life, that I have
here, and now, been in any degree howev-
er humble, instramental in the promotion
of truth and the advancement of justice.
Gentlemen: I commit him to you, and not
him alone, but her, also, who with all the
confidence of youthful affection, and with
all the strength of her matured judgment,
clings to him in the hour of his peril: and
a far-away daughter who is waiting with a
beating heart, for a verdi¢t which shall jus-
tify her reverence for her father; and those
too, who are yet too young to know thatit
depends upon you, whether their father’s
face is to be to them, hereafter, a perpetual
blessing, or that they are to bear through
life, the burden of that father’s deep dis-
grace. I commit them all to you, and with
deep reverance, I ask that you may be
guided by Him who will always ¢ deliver
the innocent fom the snare of the fowler.”
[Great sepsation.]

five hours, and was characterized by stror
argument, great 3-1_0‘1‘1?!@# and ‘vérjgf_y:_‘ :l

, illugtration.. Whean being 'madq wel pre w
on such a charge, and although a man might prefer : 5% 3 R R T T R
- ther e pared ‘a sketch of its prominent pointsy ‘!

which, on acconnt of thﬁﬂﬂmandso{'aj’q

SiOW
daily press, we were obliged to finish with.q
the delivery of the argument and eould not ¢
then extend it. Mr. W. spﬁke‘,‘;ﬁithdﬂf;
notes and it is impossible now to ;,ﬁibp?y,d
what was considered one of the most haps+ }
py efforte ever made at the Suffolk Bar. A :

The Court then__atajgurnad, to 4, PB{JJF

‘Mr Warren having spoken about five hours.__

In the afternoon, at 4 o’clock, P. M, B_;(fl
Parker commenced the closing argnment-
for the prosecution, and spoke until 7 1-2
o’clock. N TR RrRap
MR PARKER'S CLOSING ARGUMENT,:{

GexTLEMEN : This interesting trial, now 4s
much more nearly approximating to ms close,
than when my learned friend commenced hi "

~address this morming. Youhave already heaxd
the accusation,~—the denial,~the proois,—and 6
the defence ; nothing remains but such obser-
vations as itis my duty to make in summing up®’
in behalf of the Commonwealth,~-the charge”
of the honorable Gourt,—~and lastly your de=i!
cision upon the whole matter. 1 thank you as.!
my learned brother did, for the patient attenss
tion you have thus far bestowed upon the cause,|’
and I beseech yonr candil consideration of the,
views of the evidence [ shall now present to;
you. i was, glad when the senior counsel of
the prisoner said he should select the cool of
the morning tor his argument. [Iwish all the
proceedings to be cool, ealmn, just and satisfae
tnrf'. But 1 shall be coolar than he was., ' s
t is not my intention to attempt any ef theo
arte of oratory, or to resort on this occasion tos
any of the prefessional efforis of an advocate.
I wish not to move you with eloquence or pas;
thos, as he did, if I possessed any, nor to ob-,
tain a verdict upon doubtful or imprej th
grounds. My object is higher and holier. “1 b
wish only justice and truth to prevail. A pros"™
ecuting officer’s desire should never go beyond
that eonsummation. His rule of - conduct ig!
supposed to be very different trom that of thes
prisoner’s counsel. ~The prisoner’s advocate igy
to obtain an acquittal, at all even®, if’ he law=
fully can. The prosecution is to be defeated;
if pce:ible, by al?lawfu_l means. No matter. if;
the prisoner 18 guilty, if the government can,
be lawfully prevented from getting a verdict:‘l#
is deemed the duty of the prisoner’s comnsel 19
get hie client clear, if there be any defect’ M
the law or th_e evidenee. This principle lﬁéﬂﬂ
yet carried to such an unscrupulous . extent Ini
this country as in England. No lawyer here,
will go so far as Mr Brougham did in 8 celes’
brated trial, whose memorable language was:

“ An advocate, by the sacred duty Which hef
owes his client, knows in the ‘discharge of hisf
duty but one person in the world—that client,,
and none other. To save that client by all eX=,
pedient means, to protect that clientat all haz.,
ards and costs {0 all others, 301G among thqaﬁi
others to himself, is she highest and' most un=
quesﬁ(}ned of his duties; and he must not re-
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gard the alarm, the suffering, the torment, the
destruction, which he may bring upon aay
other. Nay, separating even the duties of a
_patriot from thoge of an advocate, and easting
them, if need be, to the wind, he must go on,
reckless of the consequences, if his fate should
appdly involve his COUNTRY in confusion
for*hiscLIENT’s protection.””

~Norwill any fair-minded lawyer imitate the
eonduct of Mr Phillipsin the trial of Couryoi-
sier tor the murder of Lord William Russell,
who, after his client had fully confessed his
guilt to him, pressed with unreasonable and
most unjuat ans even cruel geverity, the {oung
woman who testified truly to the principal facts,
and whom Mr Phillips knew was guided only
by the truth. )

On the present occasion [ do not mean to
insinuate in the slightest degree, that either of
the prisoner’s comasel have not an entire belief
in hfn innocence, or that all their zeal and state-
ments in his defence, are not sincere. But
counsel are not the best judges of the merits of
their cause; they easily take a side prolession-
ally, and if retained on that side, become In
some measure, by their duty to t_hetr cliernt, and
their sympathies in his behalf, blinded to the ex-
act justice of the case. Their cfforts, their zeal,
their extravagance, and, even theis merciless
attacks upon the witnesses adverse to their side,
are considered excusable, and in the line of
their duty. Their object is not strictly and al-
ways the pursuit ol truth; they look for defence
merely: they seek their client’s discharge—that
is their grand purpose, and all their efforts are
directed to that end. But on the other side,
the Government’s attorney has a different du-
ty to perform—guilt, only, is the proper object
of his attack, truth only the proper end of his ar

ument. His feelings are not neceseanly en-
1sted on the side of justiee, which wishes to
prevail only when reason and conscience
will approve ot the victory. 1 eome to this
final part of my duty, there, in this cause,
with no impassioned etiorts of eloquence, and
with no severity of language towards the Pris-
oner, or the witnesees produced in his defence.
I ask your attention to a cool and just view of
th‘,”’!denﬂea_wilhom partiality to one side, or
prejudice against the other. [ have taken ne
side in the popular excitement on this subject,
and desire to say not an unkind word againet
the prisoner, of t9 injure the feelings of his re-
spectable family. I am not his judge; it is no
part of my duty to decide the question of his
guilt, and [ am not called upen to express my
OWn opinion, in #e case because the law places
that responsibility only on you, and seeks your
judgment under your =olemn oash upon the
whole evidence. 'No matter what other people
think upon the subject; it has not been perhaps
made their duty to weigh the evidence, and per-
haps they have not had an opportunity to hearall
or ml.lBh of it. Thejudgment of no human .belng
should influence yours; the fate of the prisoner
is thrown wholly, entirely, absolutely, and un-
conditionally upon you; and you are to be #-
Swerable to your I!ellnw citizens and to Ged,
for the impartial aischarge of the solemn duty
of giving a true verdict upon the evidence now
hl b&m y&u. ' -

Let us then consider that evidenee, its im-
port, weight, and eflect. '

It cannot beidenied that the testimony pro-
dueed on the part of the Commonwealth, if be-
lieved, sustains the full charge in the Indict-

ment, an adulterous intereourse between the
prisoner and Ruoda Davidson. From the nae
wure of the charge, the evidence is commonly
circumstantial, and the eorime can seldom be’
proved by posiiive and direet testimony. The
offence is usually committed ia secret, and stu-
diously concealed from the knowledge of all
other persons Butin the present case the only
erson on earth besides the insonet thar could
now the fact positively under the circumstan-
ces of its commisskon, i8 produced and hes tess
tified before you and been under examination
for eight hours. Thewe is direct, express, come
clusive proof of the fact, and the case ends
here, if that witness has told the truth and is
believed. The import and effeet of the testis"
mony are gufficient, if it has weaght enowugh 1o
carry credit. But in opening the ease, [ frank-
ly said to yvou that that witness must be eon-
sidered 1n the Mght of an aecomplice, and
knowing that it was not safe generally 1o cone
vict upon the sole testimony of an uncerrobo-
rated accomplice, I offered you corroborating
evidence from three sources, Mrs. Esty, Mr.
Davidson, and the letter, and unless two per-
sons besides the principal witness are grossly
and most infamously perjured, the corroborge
ive evilence of itself, even independent of
Rhoda Davidson’s testimony, puts the guilt of
the defendant beyond a doubt. The case shen
turns wholly upon the credibility of these wit- °
nesses and the effect of that extraordinary let-
ter.
There are several modes known to the law ¢
by which witnesses may be impeached. The
law desires that truth shall prevail, and it binds '
the eonscilences of witnesses to speak tru
and nething but truth by the most powerf
sanctions and punishments here and hereafter;
—the pains and penalties of perjury are impris-
onment in the State prison for many years here
on earth, and the great displeasurelof Almighe
ty God and the retributions of his justice in »
the world to come. Perjury by the extent of =
its punishment is deemed by the Legisiatwe a ~
much greater crime than Adultery, and it is
never to be presumed without the clearest
proof. 1f it be true that high trimes are %o be .
proved by evidence etrong in proportion to
their atrocity, perjury ought to be proved by ev- .
idence stronger than that of Adultery—and the
presumption that a very great crime has been
committed not by one person only,but by three,
is under like circumstances and evidence less
n prﬂportiﬂn to the magnitude of the crime.
In thas point et view then & question arises in .
this case whether under all the proof here, there
is more evidence that three persons have com-
mitted the wicked and abominable ertmes of
conspiracy to oheat and perjury, than there is
that gpe person, who had much personal infly~
ence and many opportunities, has committed .
adultery and one other person fornication.—-
‘That question is openly and boldly put to you
to decide in this case, and the defence avers
that three persons have eommitted the crimes
of conspiracy, extortion and perjury. Now
were they in the eriminal’s box for those crimes
and waiting for your verdict upon thisevidenee .
and upon your deeision whether they were to
be sent t0 the State prison for ten years or pot -
for these crimes, is there one particle of evie I
dence here which would justiiy a sincle man
on your pannel in sayiog that clearly beyond all
doubt it s proved by evidence in this case that
those persons have manifestly been guilty of
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”

conepiracy and perjury ¢ I think 1 ¢an boldl
hallenge every juror to name any proof whi

could justify such a conclusion. But they may
not be guilty of perjury, and yvet you hesitate to
believe them. I propose to examiae the grounds
of any such hesitation. Your oaths bind you
80 give the verdict acecording to the evidence.
That evidence you have; wiﬁ you reject and dis-
regard it, or will you give it the proper eflect of
evidence? You desire to proceed justly, and
to discover the truth. Letus consider whether
any upcommen obstacles stand in our way in
the pursuit ot she truth in this extraordwary
case.

It must be confessed there are some diffioul-
ties peculiar to th:s trial. But you duty isto
overcome them if possible,

First, the events oceurred several years ago.
The lapse of #ime has thrown a shade of obli-
vion over many of the little circumstances now
§0 minut-ly enquired about. No human mem-
ory could eontain them all.

Seeondly, the frailty of the human memory
concerning words and things at the time deemed
of little or no importance, permits many words
and many things to escape reeollection, which
if recollected would now be of mueh tmpor-
tance.

“Thirdly, the carelessness of common conver-
sation, seldom as exact asa depositiongiven in
court, seldom conveys the whole truth, and not
always the exaet truth. Mankind do not com-
monly talk with the accuracy or sworn witnes-
ses. KExaggerations, and loose phraseolgy are
‘vei‘:y common, and lead to frequent errors.

ourthly—all that a person says upon a par-
gsicularsubject is not always distinctiy heard or
regarded ; some qualifying word escapes—the
meaning is liablo to be mistaken ; and nothing
is more common than mistakes of this nature.
Whiiters on the subjeet say, ‘‘there is danger of
mistake from the misa ension of witnesses,
the misuse of words, the failure of the party to
express his own meaning, and the infirmity of
smemory.”’ Besides, the mind of the party
whose words are seized upon, may under these
eircumstnces, be influenced by the motives ot
hope or fear, to prevarieate or speak untruth.
Acrde also the zeal of partisans, and thé strong
digposition of persons engaged in pursuit of ev-
idence on one side, to rely on slight grounds of
swspicion, which are exaggerated into proof ;
consider these things, and the value of evidence
arising from long past conversations is much
impaired, and entitled to but little effect, when
standing alone. I appeal to your own eXpe-
rience : Have not many of you misunderstood
a witness upon the stand? When you have
retired to your jury room, have there been no
debates and contradictions on what a witness
said an hour before in court ? From your own
experience as Jurors and as men, consider lbow
liable language 1s to be misconceived or forgot-
ton even on recent oceasioas, and how much
more so in months and years gone by.

Fifthly—Talking over the past events fre-
quently, if a mistake oceurs at first, each repe-
tition confirms the speaker in the belief that he
tells the matter truly,and itis an old saying,
that some liars from oft repeating their false-
hoods, get at last to believe them, This is a
copious mource of ertor. But, without enu-
metating othier causes of mistake and error,
there 18 oune'diliculty which 18 peculiar to this
eanse ; it iz a very great one, and causes al-
meost at) the other difficulties in the case~and

that is, that the gvidence shows that mone
bribeg, and oaths, and the mast urgent and rz:
iterated entreaties werc used for the express
purpose of keepiug things secret. Thisis a.
peculiar feature in this case, and if per-
sons are hired, and bound by oaths, and re=-
minded by letters, to uee and &Xhera %0 a course
of concealmeat, to kee thinfa out of sighs, fo
Fl"ﬂ?ﬂl’l'l EUHpiEiOI‘l, and at all events to save
rom ruin anindividual ; then, if some prevari-
cations, some evasive answers, hay even if
some untruths appear, spoken by persons thus
bound to keep a secret; if they use all means
to act in good taith under their agreemeat and
up to their oathe, and even by prevarieations;
certainly such prevarications stand on very dif.
{erent grounds from others, and ought not te
1mpair the general effect of their testimony. He
who pays money and exacts oaths to induce
others to mistake particulars, ought not to be
ailowed to take advantage of such mistatements.
Carry this principle with you th-oughout this
case ; it will explain muchof it; it will afford
you ascale by which dyou can weigh the just
value ef those supposed contradictions so mueh
relied on in the defence. With one other re-
mark, I will proceed to & consideration of the
objections to each of the three principal witnes-
ses of the government: and tbat is, the pre-
sumptions of law are as much in favor of the
honesty and innocence of witnessess as of pris-
oners. Crime is not to be presumed in any
case, until proved. What then are the sup-
posed proots of conspiraey and perjury here?
We must take the goversnment witnesses seve
erally. We begin with Rhoda Davideon—and
I will call your attention to the facts and argu-
ments used to show that the defendant i1s inno-
cent, and she guilty of falsehood.

1. The voluntary alteration ot her testimony
as to the first place of cryminal intercourse.
She was sworn at Exeter, but the lawyers there
sald to the council that the oath had no binding
cqnl forece. Asit had nut, there could be no
criminal conviction of perjury under that oath ;
but she was morally bound to tell the truth, and
she did not intend to falsify. Her story was
mainly true, but two transaetrons were blended.
She first stated them, and she did not see the
importance of keeping shem distinct. She
stated this discrepancy voluntarily, of her own
mere motion, and explained it. The mode of
examinatton there was peculiar, and often -
terrupted. Why should she change it here of
her own accord 7—if not not geverned by truth?
If wickedly bent on lyving, why did not she ad-
here to the same story, first told 7 Her chance
of credit would have certainly been better. Two
reasons may be assigned-- and you are to judge
of them. One ot them good; that which she
avOWE, to tell now the exact truth ;—the other
bad, which they suggest—namely, that she had
learnt that she might be discredited, and that
she now endeavors to escape detection by shap-
ing her evidence difierently. Before youadop#
the wicked monive, candor, charity, justice Ire-
quire that you should have proof of it, and I
submit to you that it rests whoily in the sug-
gestion of defendant’s counsel,and is 10t proved,
nor even credible or probable. ou must
give her credit for much astutenéess, cCunning
and profligacy before you can 2rrve atsuch a
conclusion ; and you will seek m vain for the
evidence to justifyit. Butit i8 worthy of re-
mark, that eo far as the guilt o the defendant
is concerned, the fact itself 15 wholly imma-
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terial. It was adultery, whether committed in
either place or boih, and that is the main fact,
Nor can any reasonable motive be assigned
why she should mistake or wrongly assign the
place of the first | _ |
criminal interviews, and at such a distance of
time, three years or mere,times and places mav
have become blended in the recollection ; and
besides, no fair opportunity of explanation at
Exeter may have oceurred. There is much
testimony inaccurately eXpressed at first, and
by more close examination and crose questions
explanations are af terwards made whieh would
have been omitted by the most honest witnes-
ses. wiskout them. Consider this powt then
caréfdlf. and see if it would not be unjust to
her toeay thatshe is perjured throughout, and
and that her perjury is proved by this circum-
stance ? You would judge her much more
harshly than you do other witnesses if you 2on-
demn her for this. Many honest men in their
direct examination have stated facts quite dif-
ferently,and with many alterations, when sub-
jected to a very close, long and critical cross
examination. v 19
’ The next subject of importanee is her sup-
osed contradietions, as testified to by Aun
enny.
But};vho is Ann Kenny—and can you trust
her? What do you Xnow of - her general char-
acter, or her reputation for truth ?  And how
m uch is she discredited by her own restimony
and manner before you, and by the positive tes-
timony of some witnesses, who speak of her
dieclosures at the house of Mr Phikip Siders?
£he swore she had spoken of her testimony to
nobody in Boston. After some time she ex-
ce%&d Mr Bolles,and expressly denied speaking
to Mr Siders, ¥r Brown, and Miss Minnikin.
She is positively contradicted by them.- Then
she said Rhoda had been to Edgecombe three
times. Thisis disproved. Then the improba-
bikty that Rhoda should have talked in such a
way to a stranger, uever szen but once before.
Yet I should not be surpriced, if the learned
gentleman had found more contradictions than
Ann Kenny has testified to. Rhoda Davidson

was taught to eonceal the name of Mr Fairchild’

in connection with that infant. She was paid
for that concealment, and often reminded of her
duty in this particular, and she was bound by
a quasi oath to eonceal his name. Now what
more natural in & country town than for every
body to be very inquisitive to a pregnant girl
about the father of the child. All manner of
questious are put to find out the nzme of the
father , curiosity is sharp and searching,—and
all manner of dodging answers must be given
to avoid the disclosure. Falsehood, strange
gtories, anything, everything may be said,—
lightly, carelessly, recklessly, by a girl under
such circumstances, to avoid disclosing the
name, to put people on the wrong scent—to
protect the promised person,to keep her pledge,
and to continue her title to the 50 dollars per an-
aum~which were to be stopped as goon as she
dot out his name. ‘So Ann Kenney tells you part
of what she said was serious, a part ligh’, and
eaid in a manner as if she did not care _what
she gaid—and what is observable, Ann Kenny
cannot separate the wserious from the jocost

art. Much was-reckless, and not intendedto

e believed. That was apparent before Ann
Kenny said so. No girl that was not crazy
would go have spoken, es eetally to an almost
otal stranger,—and the whole tenor of her life

criminal act. Affer so many

in Boston, so far as proof of facts go, contra-
diots those silly speeches. Nobody could or
would believe them. They were said with a
design to conceal the name, not to make con- .
fessions of truth—and when you consider the
powerful motive to be rid of woublesome ques-
tions and the duty of concealment. I think yon
will not put much reliance on Ann Kenny's
testimony. It i# doubtful in it character and
if ever said, which may admit of doubts, can
under the peculiar circumstances, be recon.
ciled with Rhoda’s present truth. Certalnly it
does not convict her of perjury; and what is
remarkable there is no attempt to prove the
truth of any of those facts, and the introduetion
of the evidence that they are not true is sue—
cessfully objeeted to, and it is keptout.

The aflfairs at Mr1. Hoyt’s, about the men’s
clothes, &c¢., were collateral matters, and tha
defendant’s counsel who asked Rhoda about
them made her answers their evidence, and
they are not allowed to contradict her on these
pointe, and she positively swears there was no
criminality there. As to the Journeyman’s
door in the attic, there is no evidence but hers,
and she swears it wasalways shut at night. If
this was not true, they could call one orall of -
fhose journeymen, and they have not, and her
evidence is the only tesimony on the subject.
We offered to disprove these allegations, and
they object and prevent usshowing the truth as
to each of them.

Her declaration to Mr. Robbins, as to getting
more money by disclosing than keeping the
name of Mr. Fairchild concealed, deseryes a
passieg consideration. This depends on a sin-
gle word. Consider in this cennection what
has been said as to miatakes in conversation.
Robbins said ghe was to have as mueh again
from Mr. Shaler, &c¢. Mr. Robbins told Mr.
Pierce, asmuch—leaving outagain. They ob-
ject also to Mr, Shaler’s telling the fruth on this
subjeet, but they do puat in . Wm. David-
son’s declaration made to their witness, ir.
Sylvanus P. Low, last February (1844) when
digging elams. Mr. Lowswaoie that Davidson
then told him that Deacon Drake and Mr. Sha-
ler were great friends of Rhoda, and that he
had veceived some money from them, not 20
much as'he would have received if he had kept
the seeret. 'This is a complete answer to Mr.
Robbins’ testimony, to say nothing of hs own
contradiction ia fyir:m:' resence this morning.
The testimony of Dr. Chapin &8 supposed to at-
fect Rhoda. think it &upgorts her. Living
in a doctor’s family, it 18 to be presumed when
she complained to Mrs. Chapin, aund through
her to the doctor, she had an early prescription.
If the ciminal intercourse toek place on 19th
December or January 12, nothing remarkable
in suppreseion on 13th February, and perhaps
13th February proves the intercourse on 12th
January, quite as well as earlier. Her
speaking well of Mr. Fairchild, and her re-
ligious Improvement while there, is entire-
ly comsistent with her criminal intercourse
with him, under his explanations. It cannot
be doubted that it was gratitying to her. She
certainly could have prevented it. Though
she resigted, she yielded; she would net
scream. She certainly put herself in his way
betore going to Abingwon. She wished to pro-
teet him from harm. 1f she had not become
pregnant, probably she would never have
brought Mr. Fairchild intosuspicion. She was

friendly to him, esteemed him, perhaps loved



him. Under thess eircumstanees, speaking
, well of him is nothing marvellous, or inconasis-
tent with her secret intercourse with him';
perhaps, 100, it was a device to Pravent_al_l
suspieion of him or her; certainly nothing

arguments on her mind.

W There are many other slight circumstances
:flludcd to by the prisoner’s ceunssl not worthy
the attic chamber door, the not screaming, she
supposed discrepancy about the bonnet Yand
shawl when she went up stairs, coming from
Marblehead, being Mr. * 'urnbuil’u sister, &c.,
and other unimportant maiters, which at this
distance of time may be mistemembered by her,
or by the witnesses called to contradict her on
these small peinte. I have not time at this late
hour to take them all up. Most of them are
easily explainable, and few of them are of mueh
importagce.

I deem it my duty now to call your attention
to the opening of the defence by the junior
counse! in this connection. He enumerated a
most appalling catalogue of erimes which he
gaid Rhoda had committed. Ibelieved then as
I believe now that those attacks were impru-
dent, and it not sustained by the evidence
woald react with disastrousinfluence upon the
cause they were intended tohelp. Not a wit-
mess has been produced to support these most
scandalous charges but Arm Kenny, and her
testimany, improbable and extraordinary as it
is, is relied upon to prove them. Now I beg
you explicitly to undewtand of what Ann Kea-
ny’s tes'imony is proof, and what it t8 not.—

acts are to be proved under oath. What a
witness says in an idle, loose, extravagant, sil-
ly,jocose, and not serious conversation, notun-
der oath, is no proef of the things talked about.
Strange that any reasonable man could offer
waat was said in jest as proot of a fact to he
acted upon in a solemn judicial tribunal'!
then it isnot evidence of the fact= talked about,
is it evidence of any thing? Yes. Itis evi-
dence for the consideration of the jury tor one
purpose, and one purpose only. [t may law-
fully be introduced to enable the jury to weigh
the evidence of Rhoda in court under oath.—
Thev are to give it just this weight. How
mueh, 1f any thing, sheuld be deducted from
the eredibility of a witness, who for years is
conzistent in stating a fact, and on several occa-
£10ns swears to it, and '8 examined and cross-
examined eight or nine hours upon a Ame con-
cerning 1t, and is corroborated in it by other
witnesses aand a document in writing, if a girl,
almeost a stranger to her, comes into eourt, and
gavs on one ocecasion there was a conversation
not wholly serious, ana I cannot tell what was
serious and what was not, in which she told me
in a light, careless, reckless way, many most
singular things of herself and ot the father of
hier child?  So far a8 this foolish and unmean-
ing tall, if it ever took place, which is denied,
should derogate from her oath in court, you
have a right *o decide. Beyond that, it is evi-
dence of nothing. Itis no evidence that those
faets are true : not any more than if any other
idle talker, under a strong motive, had said
them not under oath. 1know shey are capable
of being used for another purpoge, but [ pro-
test against such use of them. lf you use
them tor any other purpose, I think you will
violate the {aws of the Jand. The junior coun-
sel, in his opening, has aliuded to this evidence
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you t_hoé eannot lawfully be used for such
vidence lawful for one purpose
may be unlawful for another, and sometimes
when introduced for one purpose is made avail-
able for an impreper purpose. It may be evi-
dence of her contradicting herself; but no evi-
dence of the facts not testified to under oath.
It is evidenee that undex very strange and per-
haps incredible circumstances she may have
talked in a manner affecting her testimony, but
no evidence she was a strumpet, or that her
child was begotten in Mr Hoyt’s house, or that
she ever proeured an abertion, &c., &e. Itis
no lawful evidence of any such tacts. 1 de-
fendant’s counsel rely upon such facts, the
are to be provedin a lawful manner; and I as
you if there could be any thing more eruel and
unjuat to state sueh things as facts in the case,
and ebhut out all evidence and all the witnesses
then in court on the part ol the governmeat, of-
ferred expressly to show that such facts never
occurred? While the counsel persisted that
her declarations of these things was evidence
ot their truth and of those facts, I persisted and
zealously claimed that if her declarations were
to be used g0, I bad a right to sntroduce evi-
dence on the part of the goverament to disprove
all such facts. The oourt ruled that her declar-
ations being wo evipmwer of those facts, I could
introduce no evidenoe to disprove such suppos-
ed facts. 'T'his being 8o, are not those gross
charges left wholly without any proof, and if
such gross charges are mnade and not pyoved,
do they not disgrace the cause they were In-
tended to help. In this connecticn itis alsore-
murkable they have ofterred no evidence to
f;ow that the general reputation of Rhoda
avidson is not good for sruth and veraocity,
and no evidence te prove she is a common
prostitute, and thus bring her within the csse
of Commenwenlth agzawmst Murphy, in 16th
Mass. Repte. Now 3t Riinda Davidson is such
a terrible girl as aileged by Ann Kenny, 15 there
no evidence on earth to prove it but her own sil-
ly, unserious talk ? She has lived nearty nine
years in Boston and vicinity, was a member of

'a chureh stzictin its discipline, lived in clergy-
men’s families, dnd other respectable places.—

Now can you for a moment believe that if she
was she infamous creature they allege, the keen
hunt of Mr Fairchild and his agents could get
no evidence of the fact? If Edgcombe could
be ransacked, could nothing be discovered 1n
Boston, the gcene of all her supposed wicked-
ness? 1f she could be impeached on theze two
grounds, first of being a common liar, or seo-
ondly, of being a common strumpet, can you
believe no evidence would be offcred on those
points? Am I not justified then 11 saying that
there is X0 LEGAL evidence in this cause of
those gross charges against her, and that such
suppesed facts cannot be lawfully argued by
couasel, or relied upon by jurors,

I shall leave her, then, in your hands, as un~
impeached 1n any important particular, except
so far a8 her being an accomplice affects her
credit, and the prevarications ehe has resorted
to under the special inducements. She is a
law. You may believe
her uncorroborated if you see cauge. DBuitshe
is supported by swo witnesses, and the SUppos-
ed efleet of the defendant’s letter.  T'his brings
e to the second witness. Mrs Liasty. She says,
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that in April, 1842 Hr Fairchild met her and

Rhoda, and eonfessed that he hed connection
with Rhoda; that the devil must have had in-
fluenee over him; but that he thought it bhardly
passible she could be with child; that i bis
¢rime was exposed, he should be t_urne_d_out
the ministry; hoped God had torgiven him for
hia sin; gave the money, and urged Rhoda to dgo
directly home. In Oectober, afterwards, he de-
nied being the {ather; gave her five dollars,
and had an interveew with her father, &c.
Now. virs Easty is not impeached on general
grounds fer want of truth and veracity, nor is
there any very important cvidenece braught to
contradict her. What Rhoda isalieged to have
said .of her is no evidence, for reasons already
stated -2s to Ann Kenny's sestimony; notunder
oath, and by Rhoda denied under oath. FPer-
jury must be very cheap, if Mrs Easty would
sell her soul to perdition for fifieen dolfars, all

she has been proved to have received for her

silence. 'Thereis an attempt to impeach her
by a visit of Rath Dewyer, accompanied by
Mre *Thomas Duonhem, whose name 1 would
not allude to, if her husband, Mr 1. H. Dun-
ham’s name had not been introduced on the
other side. 'To what extent party spirit will
lead ladies, as well as gentlemen, I cannot tell;
but to take advantage of a woman sick-a-bed,
and so sick, that while they were there soms
neighbors were called to jher relief, does not
geem to me exactly nnght. ®™Murs Easty persisted
even then, that Mr Fairchild admatied the fact,
and Mrs Dewyer crose questionsg her how &e.
I submit, gentlemen; that this attempt of Mie
Dewyer to impeach Mrs . Easty whelly fails.
The very circumstances of the eonversation
make it suspicious. But Mrs Easty had forgot-
ten she had sigrned some papers. but as soon as
ghown to her, she aecknowledged them. Itwas
supposed they contradicted her oath here? Do
they? The learned geatleinan used the power
of the law,and obtained one from Mr Brigham,
and one from Mr Simone. Do they eontradict
her? Thelearned gentlemen has not read them,
nor pointed out a single variance! Having
them on his table, would he not, if they bene-
fitted his cause? Avre they thrown by, because
they confirm her? yau must judge. (Here Mr
% put them in the case, without reading
them.) |

Is there anything therefore in this case that
ean authorize you, or justify {ou io rejecting
Mire Easty’s positive oath of Mr Fairchild's
admisecions? 1 think you will find none. And
does not the payment of the money corrobor-
~ ate her? Isitany answer under the facts prov-
ed in this case, that money in some instances
hes been extorted from other elergymen or oth-
er men? Beeause some persons in London or
New York, or elsewhere, have committed
erimes will you believe all other persons guilty

in the absence of all proof of their guilt? How

manifestly unjusts such conduct would be in
you, who are under oath to be governed by evi-
dence! Letmealsoask youin this connection,
if there is. not very pregnant corroboration of
Mrs Easty, of Rhoda, and of their father, in
the very'remarkable letter of the defendant? I
will call attention to some of its passages.
There js some reason in newspapers saying
that an urgent request 10 Rhoda and her father
1o comunit falsehood, i® contained in these
passages: “ [f any question should be asked
respecting the matter | shall be ignorant of the
whole subject, and so must you be.” * Say

guess
e

nothing to them, but i they should happen to
me, then your oath binds you ie clear
e.” “If any person should ever ask. him
whether he did not suspect me, his oath binds
him 1o clear me at once >’ “ﬁp must naver sell

"
..

of what my business is, or where 1 live.” There
- seems to be algo confeswion in thatletter: “What

has been done eannot be undone.”  “7 hope
what has been dane, eannot be undone ” %“J
hope what has past bas been forgiven of God;
but if you violateyour oath to me, you must ex-
pect the curse of God on you.” 1 he words, but
if you, and “onyou seem to be language putin
contrast to what precedes it, and the sentence
erhaps may be parapbrazed thus: as to what
fhave done, 1 hepe what is past has been for-
given of God: but as to you, { you violate your
oath te me, you, in such a eaze must expect the
curse of God on you~as it ehe was not to ex-
ect herself the curse of God for what was pass,
Eut only if she Aereafter violated her oath,
teaving the forgiveness of (zod for what was
past for Aim in contragt to Aer. :
In this anonymous and strictly eonfidential
lettor, there 18 no complaint of extortion, ne al-
lusion to injustice, no resentment; and it is diaf-
ficult 1o believeé the style to be that of a man
strong in the conseiousness of his own inno-
cence, writing to iwo fou conspirators. It
savors at least as much of guilt as of innocence,
is written with mueh skill, and abounds with
cautionary admonitions: *“A wire head keeps a
clese mouth,” &c. I invite your atiension te
this {etter, and wish you to ask your own wise
headas, whether there is notin it a very etyong
corroborative proof of the testimony of the two
Davidsens ancr Mrs Esty; and especially if there
is notin it, the most abundant excuse for ALL
the prevarications about the father of the child.
But beside the poeitive eath of Rhoda Da-
videon to this adulterous intercourse, and the
evidence of Mrs Esty and the true construction

ofthat letter, you have the accumulated evi-
dence of William Davidson, a member of the
Baptist Chiurch, and a man whose general char-
acter for wruth is not impeached. Many wit
nesses are here from HEdgeeombe ; not one
speaks against his general character for truth
and veracity. But Mr Samuel Merry and
Dependent Merry his brother, and some cthers
are brought to impeach him, as to some sup-

, go;ed conversations. 1 need not repeat the

angers of misapprehension and mistakes in
long past coaversations. Indeed, the Baptist
Church in Edgecomb was troubled by justsueh
a miseonception,and if you believe Squire Par-
sons of that place, there was & misunderstand-

ing between Samuel Merry and William Da~

~vidson, and after much trouble Samuel Mernry

admitied he might be mistaken, as Davidson
dented whathe said—and both retained their

opinions, and the matter was leftthere. Now
which was in theright ? Can you say 7 Cer-

tainly not. The ehurch and neighbors could
not find out, and it wusa drawn battle. There
was areal misunderstanding. So perhaps too,
in all the other eonversations with Mr David-
800, there may have been misunderstandings,
and considering how parties have taken sides,
128 notimprobable. I thoughtthe junior ecun-
sel harsh upon Mr Davidson, 1n charging him
as a vagabond or runaway f{rom his vessel to
cheat the ceptain out of half of his advanced
woges. Heishere previdentially,and if his Cap+
tain would not discharge him at Cape Ann to
come to this before unexpected trial. I think
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few persons will eondemn him for leaving the
ship under those ecircumstances. He would
have been an unnatural father, and rupposed to
have abandoned his child. In Mr Dodge’s tes-
timony there is a long narrative of what Mr
Fairchild said while making a bargain with
Mr Davidson. His statements under these eir-
cumstaneces are not evidence of any of the facts
thus stated. He was making the best settle-
ment he ceuld wath Mr Davidsen, and cannot
claim to have what he then said as evidence,—
and I beg you in considering William David-
son’s testimony, and the manner in which itis
attempted to be impeached, to consider his po-
sision, under oath te protect Mr Fairchild,
and his interest and motives to avoid and es-
eape from too close questions. What was he
to do when people guessed right? The letter
says, ‘' if they guess right, your oath binds you
to clear me.” So as to Rhoda, and the letter
says— the sameis true of your father.” Now
if there is some prevaricason,isit fair for the
other side o impeaeh Davidson and Rhoda for
doing just what Mr Fairchild’s letter tells them
they were bound by their oathto do? Ifaman
hires another to falsify, has he a rightto take
advantage of such prevarications to impeaeh hus
own agent. I might go through all the testi-
mony of Mr Davidson’s neighbors, and show
you fhowin his peculsar position and his pros-
peets of #he 50 dollars per annum, all the sup-
posed diserepancies may be accounted for,with-
ouf supposing him guilty of perjury in this
case, and without subjecting him to the charge
of conspiracy. Ifhe really believes Mr Fair-
child guilty, there was no extorsion; heis poor,
the girl 1s poor, how is the child to be support-
eéd in sickness and health for seven veare? Is
the sum extravagant, kess than a dollar a week.
It is easy to charge conspiracy and perjury, but
such atrocipus eharges are notto be believed
to have been committed without competent
proof.

Aundnow for a moment let us consider how
the secret became divalged. It got currently
reported in Edgcomb, the father of the child
was a Methodist ministé?, and at last it came
to Mr Shaler’s ears that Rhodatad had a ehild,
- and a minister was its father. She had lived
in his family. He wasa minister. He did not
choose to lie under the imputation. He sought
her—found her at Mr Robins’s; obtained a pa-
per from her clearing him, but she would elear
nobody else, and she would not forteit Mr Fair-
child’s money as a disclosure unul she obtained
~an'equivalent. Is there any thing in this, to

impeach or discredit her ? You are the judges,
Reports do get round, but according to Ann
Kenny, Rhoda was willing to sacrifice herself
to the most ‘&SlOﬂmhlng degree, to shield Mr
~ Fairchild, told all manner of silly and false
stories; about herself, and referred to artifice,
the pincushion, &c, to.,onceal and protect him
from suepicion—so0 her father in what he said
about ministers, and about the dentist, &¢. All
these things were resorted to to comeeal Mr
Fairchild.  But truth, like murder, wiil ceme

out a little at a time,and one thing leads to

another, and then reports, and then Mr Shaler
insists 6n the truth. Does all or any of this

show consplry{ or gerjury. Judge ecandidly,
_fairly, impartially. Such are some views ot
“the evidence in this case. Some of you have
taken minutes and I will not dwell more on the
testimony. Itis certainly clear Mr Fairchild
had confidence in the honour of Rhoda, in the

honour ef Mrs Easty, and in the honour of
Wm Davidson, for he took no receipt tor his
money, no release or diseharge in writing, no
document. He had long known Rhoda, and his
reliance upon her word isstrong proof of his
belief that she was not the infamous character
now pretended.

To some few remarks of the counsel [

will now add a few words in reply.

It is said Mr Fairchild deserves great
credit for voluntarily surrendering himself
for trial. I cannot view it in sueh light.
The Governor of this State demanded him;
the Governor of New Hampshire refused to
give him up. He thus found New Hamp-
shire an asylum, and suppose he had not
surrendered himself, what would have been
the legal and common sense inference ? It
is a maxim generally true, that flight is a
confession of guilt ; enshrining oneself in
an efficient asylum is tantamount to flight.
Suppose a clergyman in Boston indicted,
and he hid himself for eight months, and
avolded trial, would not severe imputations
be cast on such conduet? Now Mr Fair-
child had been within FoUR HOURS RIDE
from this Court House for several months,
and was suspended from the pulpit until he
took his trial, could he stay away any lon-

er without a great injury to his reputa-

n’ was not the pending indictment like
a perpetual blister on his character; and
would not his continued absence daily add
te the supposition of his guilt? Is there
much merit in coming to trial? He has
acted properly in thisrespect, but certainly
his counsel has no ground to elaim favor
for him in this particular.

They claim merit also for having con-
sentea to a latitude of proof as to the
number of instances of adulterous inter—
course. The rule was rightly laid down
in this court recently in Dr Morrill’s case.
You may require the government to select
one instanee as the one charged in the in-
dictment, and that, and that alone, is to
be proved as THE eriMmE for which the
party is on trial ; but other Instances of
adulterous intercourse before and after,
may be admitted in evidence to explain the
intention of parties, their course of con-~
duct, and for other purposes in connection
with other parts of the testimony. There
is then no great merit as to this eourse
now. |

The counsel also said her story is vastly
improbable. Human depravity unfortu-
nately has ceased to be improbable, but the
most remarkable part of her testimony ig
just such as she had not capaeity, talent,
learning and ingenuity to invent., Thg
bible arguments and other parts of her tes.
timony were beyond the reach of her inven-

. tion ; nor could she sustain two different

examinations of six or eight hours at a time
before different tribunals, and go se min-
utely into times, places and circumstances,
if her evidence was not based rather on



realities than fancy. A well executed, suc-
cessful conspiracy could not be well carried
on by simple andilliterate persons ; means
of detection would in the lapse of years
multiply in all quarters.

Her supposed discrepancies as to time,
gshould no more affect her evidence than it
does that of other persons, as the experi-
ence of courts has constantly demonstrated
that there was no subjeet upon which the
most honest witnésses are more apt to dif-
fer than in the computations of time as to
past transactions, when no record of the
time of the events ismade. Judge of her
eandidly in this particular as you would
judge of other persons. She is entitled to
so much. |

It is remarked that the accomplice 18 not
herself indicted. The government have
no right to take the evidence of an accom-
plice, and then u<e it against the accom-
plice. States’ evidence usually obtain a
judicial pardon by the very act of testifying
as to their own guilt connected with other
criminals. $he cannot have been indicted
for adultery, but may have been prosecu-
ted for fornication, the punishment is slight
by our laws,

[ forbear, gentlemen, to speak of the do-
mestic relations of the defendant. This is
no place to allude to them. I regretted
to see that my learned friend’s close dif-
fered so much from the assurance he gave
you when he began his speech : he then
protested he did net wish to interest your
feelings and should make no attempt to
do so, and yet in hisclosing remarks he ar-
rayed before you the wife and children and
‘the absent daughter of Mr Fairchild in the
most touching manner, and scarcely left a
dry eye on your pannel. This was not cor-
-rect. This is the temple of justice, not of
mercy. The fountain of merey can flow
onrly through the executive, and not in the
judieial, branch of the government, and not
even from the governor and council until
A¥TER conviction. The ancients wisely
in their emblem of Justice, put a bandage
over her eyes, as well as a sword in one
hand and the scales in the other. She was
to be no respecter of persons ; ghe was to
see'no wife, no children 5 she was to deal
upon the proof with a husband, with a fa-
ther, as she would with a single man. It
was an attempt to mislead you, that your
feelings should bias your judgment, and so
far was Incorrect.

And now, gentlemen, I leave this impor-
tant case in your hands. ['ask for a just
decision upon the evidence. The common-
wealth and the defendant, your fellow-cit-
izens and his friends, look to vou on this
interesting occasion for a diligent, impar—
tial and conscientious search for the truth,
and a fearless and honest declaration of it
when found. With that, they will all be
satisfied.
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SATURDAY, March 29,
The Court came in ﬁt_B_ £ S9uksok this hopite
ing, and the usual dense attendance appe adod e
the Court Room. JuDpGE Wasupurns then
pmceeded to deliver the following able, lucid and
impartial charge. It occupied in the delivery

two hours, and while its ability is spoken of b
all in terms of high commendation, its 'entirg
fairness was no less conspicuous and generallf

acknowledged: 4 |
JUDGE WASHBURN’S CHARGE. | '
GENTLEMEN OF THE JURY: The, Coun
cil on the one side, and the other, have done i
more than justice to the patience and attentio
with which you have listened to the evidence and
arguments which have been adduced in this case
It now becomes myduty to call for a further exers
cise of your patient attention, while I review the
circumstances and evidence upon which your
verdict is rendered. A~ e
The question upon which youare now called

to pass, har justly been deemed by all who have

taken part in this trial, as one of no ordinary in-
terest. It involves, not only all that iz most
valuable in this life, of the invividual accusedi
but reflects indirectly, upon that most worthy af
respectable clasg of men to which he has her
tofore belonged.

No class of men have hitherto stood higher
in the public estimation for their virtues, and
their devotion to the temporal and eternal well
being of their fellow men, than the clergy of New
England. Nor is it too much to say that to their
influence, direct and indirect, as much, if not
more than to any other single cause, is to be as-
cribed the high character for morals and intelli-
gence which the People of New England have

hitherto sustamed. | ‘
When, therefore, a Jury are called upon, in

the performance of ther duty, to pass upon the
auilt or innocence of one of this class of their

citizens, charged with an odious and disgraceful
crime, they hardly n&ed to be reminded that it 18
a cage which calls for a careful, candid and de-

liberate judgment. LG :
But Jurors also will bear in mind that this is

a question in which the public are also interest-
ed. If in fact a man has been willing to put on
the outward garb of a preacher of our holy re-
ligion, while he has been willing to make it a
cloak, under which to violate, not only the pre-
cepts of that religion, but the laws of the land
restraining vice and crime, it becomes the duty
of the officers of the law to strip him of his dis-
guise, and disarm him of the power of mischief,
by exposing his true character.

_Unfortunately for the“ﬂonﬂr of the Church, its
history, even in New England, has presented,
most melancholy instances of dereliction of duty
in its ministers, and though it is justly a cause of
congratulation that they have been so infrequent,
the fact that they have existed at all, shows that
it 1s sometimes necessary tolook beyond the out-
ward personal or prefessional character of the
individual who may stand charged with an of-
{f&fpce, to reach the true character of his private
ife.

From the position which ministers of the gos-
pel hold in society, and the restraints which their

very position imposes upon them," it could hardly
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be expected that if unworthy men became con-
nected with that profession, they would be guilty
of open vices, or the commission of acts of vio-
Tence, oe public outrage. If such men were to
offend at all, it would ordinarily be in the com-
mission of secret vices or crimes, and those to
which their physical passions and tempera-
ments, and habits of life, might naturally tend to
lead them. - - -
- But while these considerations might lead a
Jury to believe that offences of a particular class
or character might be committed by men of any
particular profession or habit of life, they ought
to guard their minds, carefully, against arriving
at the conclision that any one of such a profes-
sion is guilty, merely because the offence of which
| gf 15 charged, s of that class which a man of
‘that profession would be the most likely to com-
mit. et

__The difference between secret and open offen-

¢es and the proofs necessary to sustain them,

consists in the ease with which in the one case
the charge may be made, and the necessity of
relying upon one or at most, a few witnesses, to
gustain it, and:the great difficulty, often existing

in disproving the charge, even if the party im-

plicated be innocent.

- Take for instance the offence of violating the
person of a.female. If committed at all, one
puld naturally expect that it would be done,
cretly in the absence of witnesses, and of

course nothing is to be presumed from the mere
absence of witnesses, when a trial is to be had
for its alledged commission. It is an offence to
which the passions often impel unprincipled
men, so that to that extent, there is nothing im-
probable in the charge. And yet, as the charge
may often be made by a female to cover her own
disgrace, where she herself was more or less in
fault, or for baser purposes, and the person
charged, ordinarily has no means of disproving
the charge, Juries are properly cautioned, in
such cases, to weigh carefully all the circumstan-
ces attending the transaction, before arriving at
the conclusion that the charge is true.

. Among the circumstances which are proper to

be considered in this connection, the previous

character of the party charged, is entitled to
great weight. If his character has hitherto been
unstained—if his pursuits and duties in life have
been such as to give a direction to his thoughts
and feelngs inconsistent with the idea of the com-

mission p[' such an offence, it certainly ‘raises a

probability in his favor which no jury should dis-

e H.I'd.l

n the present case it is admitted that the pre-
vious character of the defendant, was uublem-
ished, and as to the character of his calling and
pursuits, and their tendency upon his conduct,the

Jury can need no instruction from the law.

In regard to the amowm of proof which is re-

quisite in order to convict a person of an offence

charged, there is ordinarily no definite rule to be
prescribed to a jury. In mostcases, the evidence
of one witness, if believed_b): them, is sufficient
in law, to authorize a cnm‘;mtmn, and whether the

whole evidence in the case is sufficient to justify a

verdict, 1s ordinarily a matter for the jury alone

10 determine,

So far as any rule may be regarded as a guide
for juries upon the subject of the sufficiency of ev-
idence, it may be stated thus. The law expects
Juwors to form their judgments not from their own

~which they are to

personal knowledge of the transactions upon
pass, but from the testimony of
others, and their own mﬁledga of the principles
of human action, and the ordinary relations of
circumstances and @VCl'ltS to E‘.B.Ch other. They
cannot, therefore, require positive, absolute certain-
ty without the possibility of a mistake or error in or-
der to make up a judgment. If this were so,
such is the imperfection of our natures that no
verdict could ever be rendered, however morally
certain a jury might be that they had arrived at g
true conclusion. All that I gpprehiend is required,
is that the evidence when taken altogether,
must be sufficient to satisfy the mind and econ-
science of a common man, and so to convince
him that he would venture to act upon that con-
viction in matters of the highest concern and im-
rtance to his own interest,

B When therefore the government charge any
person with the commission of an offence, they
are bound to this extent to make out the prooef of
his guilt.

is is what is called the burden of proof, and
if they fail to sustain it o this extent, a jury is
not authorized to find the defendant guilty, what-
ever their own conjectures or suspicions might
lead them to imagine upon the subject.

When coming to the consideration of this case

ou will in the first place disregard every thing
{ike popular excitement. Public sympathy, wheth-
er for or against the deft, is not to be regarded
here. It is to the evidence and to that alone,
that you are to confine your attention (for there
are few or no questions of law involved) anditis
aceording to that evidence, that you have sworn
to render your verdict in this case. |

With these preliminary considerations, I pass
more immediately to the case now under consid-
eration.

The crime with which the defendant stands

charged, comes within that class of secret offen-
ces to which I Rave alluded, where the indulgence
of a passion, common to all mankind, becomes a
crime by its unlawful gratification.
B The offence, if committed, almost necessarily
implies that it is secretly done, and, of course,
while you will neither ask nor expect the testi-
mony of many eye witnesses of the defendant’s
guilt, 1f’ guilty, vou will bear in mind that from
its being thus necessarily a secret act, it 1S
easily charged, and often disproved with great
difficulty, though the charge be ever so false.

The offence may be rle[?ned, in this case, to be
a sexual intercourse, by deféndant, with a female
other than his wife—inasmuch as 1t 1s admitted
that at the time of the alleged act he had, and
still has a lawful wife living.

You will not therefore have any of those diffi-
culties which sometimes arise in determining
whether an act ig criminal or not, according to
the intent with which 1t is done, as whether, for
instance, the taking of goods under certain cir-
cumstances, be larceny or not, The single en-

uiry seems to be, did he do the act charged ?
%id he have sexual intercourse with Rhoda Da-
vidson, as the Grand Jury have set forth In the
indictment before you?

This of course is a matter exclgsively within
the province of the Jury to determine.

Iip the evidence in the case shall have satisfied
you as reasonable men, of the defendant’s guilt—
painful as may be the duty, the publichave aright
to his conviction at your ands.

’
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If the Commonwealth shall have failed so to sat-

isfy your minds, the defendant has a right, quite
as sacred, to an acquittal. |

The cause of public justice, the cause of that
religion, whose minister the defepdant has been,
and the cause of security and protec-
tion, require that 3oﬂf:should candidly, fearlessly
and impartially weigh well the evidence before you,
and render a verdict according to the truth, regard-
less of the consequences. =

I have stated this prc:&osnmn the more strong-
ly, because in my view this case may require that
you should find the defendant guilty of a gross
and detestable crime---or that one or all the wit-
nesses first called by the government, have been
guilty ef a foul conspiracy, which they have
sought to carry out by gross and unmitigated per-

m- A
: If there is a middle ground upon which the
testimony can be reconciled with truth and the
defendant’s innocence, you will doubtless do- so.
But if there is not, it has become your duty to
decide, and you will do so fearlessly, I doubt not,
which is true—the guilt of the defendant, or the
conspiracy and falsehood of one or all of the three
witnesses on the part of the government.

To aid you in your deliberations, I propose to
go over somewhat in detail, the evidence that has
been adduced, but I shall not deem it necessary
to comment upon it, after the very full and able
and elaborate manner i which every thing con-
nected with the case has been presented to your
minds, by the learned counsel on the one side
and the other, for so far as they are concerned,
nothing certainly has been omitted that could be
fairly done.

Before going into this detail, however, 1 may
observe, that «o far as the question of credit to
be given to a witness is concerned, the first in-
quiry ordinarily is, whether he was in a situa-
tion to Know ef' that of whichhe testifies. In the
2d place,whether he has intelligence to understand,
and capacity to communicate the facts of which
he testifies. And in the next place, as to his
fairness and honesty, in stating facts as they ac-
tually exist. |

And these remarks the Jury will ‘understand

and apply as well to the witnesses on one side,as
to the other.

 Inrespect to the principal witness for the

El‘ﬂsecution, she must have been i1_1 a situati?n to

Know whether what she states 1s true, since,

if any offence was committed, she was a_partici-
pator in it, '

In regard to her intelligence and capacity, the
Jury have had an opportunity to judge from her
manner and appearance before them, while tes-
tifying upon the stand. As to her fairness and
honesty, the Jury will judge from the whole cir-
cumstances, and evidence in the case, connected
with her own manner and appearance on the
stand, and how far she has otherwise been con-
tradicted, or impeached, or sustained.

There are some general suggestions proper 1o
be made before examining her testimony in de-
L':li], that a pmper rule should be app]iEd in
1gsiti:11'g the degree of credit to which she is en-

titied. =

In the first place, this 1S 1ot necessarily a
question of the paternity of her child. If the act
of mtercourse took place between the defendant
and herself, the crime was as effectnally con-

summated without its having been followed by
he;r{:m_gnancy, as with it, _

Lhe importance of the question, who is the
father of the child, arises from the fact that the
last alleged intercourse, tes ‘of by her
might agree with the actual time when the chiki

was begotten, if her story is true, and from  the

\f"“hﬁ" fact that she solemnly denies any sexyal

intercourse with any other person than the de-
fendant. And if the Jury should be satisfied
from the evidence, that any other person was, or
might have been the father of the child, it would
go directly to contradict her testimony, and, of
course, to that extent, at least, to impeach her
credibility. :

Iu the next place, when comparing her pres-
ent statements with those on former occasions,
for the purpose of showing their incnnsistency,
the Jury will see how far these discrepancies, if
any, are in matenial and essentiol particulars, and
how far they can reasonably account for them, on
the ground of weakness of human memory, when
taxed for hours in succession, in the recapitula-
tion of a great variety of circumstances, instead
of necessarily inferring an intentional falsehood,
or attempt to deceive from discrepancies which
are unimportant. | '

In the next plage, the Jury will examine into
the motives and inducements which are alleged
to have acted upon the mind of a witness to lead
him to commit perjury, gnd judge, as well as
htey can, how far these motives and inducements
may be regarded as adequate to produce such a
result. - The law never presumes that a man,
whether party or witness, has been, or will* be
guilty of a crime, and as a general thing experi«
ence shows that no man, who 1s not wholly cor-
rupt, commits crimes, especially of a high and
aggravated nature, unless operated upon by some
adequate motive or inducement. And these re-
ma‘ﬁ(u will apply as well to the witnesses on
the one side as the other.

If motives are ascribed for the commission of
perjury in this case, the Jury will of course see
how far they have been proved before they allow
the mere suggestion that they may have existed,
to control their judgments, or affert their eonclu-

£10N9. |
Here the motives and inducements on the part

of the principal witnesses for the government, to
conspire and commit perjury against the defend-
ant, are said to be to extort money from him, he-
gides a desire on Rhoda Davidson’s part s de-
tract from the infamy of her own conduct by as-
sociating with her guilt the name of a respectable
man. .

It may, perhaps, occur to your mind, that if
this were their object, they would have selected
a man of more wealth and ability to pay, than a
man of the defendant’s pecuniary circumstances,
and that they would not be likely to make an at-
tempt upon a clergyman, whose high character,
they would be aware, would render their story
improbable.

On the other hand, it has been suggested to.
you that a clergyman is so situated as to be the
most easﬂy assailed, from his* very anxiety t0
preserve his character, and that the sum obtain-
ed here, though small in itself, was a considera-
ble one for persons in their condition of life.

It may perhaps have struck your mindswhether
the object could have been to put money in the
pockets of those witnesses, when according to their
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statement, only so much was required as was
sufficient to help support the child, aud if they
had been willing to undertake the scheme they
would have extorted larger sums.

On the other hand it has been suggested to
you, that they got all they could;and that the sis-
ter shared in the spoils although she had incurred
no charges on account of the child, and it 1s fur-
ther claimed by the defendant that the evidence
tends to show that the principal witness has been
willing to receive money growing out of this
transaction when offered from other quarters.

The instances cited in the opening statement,
of the defendant’s counsel, are sufficient to show
that conspiracies such as is charged in this case
have existed, but that is not to be taken as, of

itself, evidence that a conspiracy exists here un-

less the assumed probability of such a thing 1s
sustained by satisfactory legal proof of the fact.

A circumstance in this case has been strongly
relied upon by the defendant’s counsel as tending
to show him innocent, and that is the fact that he
has voluntarily surrendered himself and solicited
a trial. This fact has been the subject of com-
ment on both sides, as to the inferences that
should be drawn from it and is certainly a proper
matter for the consideration of the Jury, in ref-
erence to the arguments that have thus been ad-
dressed to theni.

Another circumstance which has also been re-
lied upon by defendant’s counsel, is that if he had
insisted upon his legal rights they could have ex-
cluded all evidence of any more than a single act
of adultery, inasmuch as only one is charged mn
the indictment, but instead of that, he has not
objected to evidence as to all of the many al-
leged acts in regard to which the other principal
witness seen fit to testify. %

And as a general proposition it is certainly true
that where the Government charge but one crimi-
nal act, though they are not cnnﬁgned to the time
alledged in the indictment, they are limited to
some one act, as the act charged, and cannot ask
a conviction by undertaking afterwards to prove
another. |

Taking these suggestions as your guide, it will
perhaps be as intelligible an 01‘3&1‘ of considering
the evidence as any, to see,

1st, What Rhoda Davidson did testify ?
2. How far she is supported, corroborated or
“confirmed by the other direct evidence in the case.
~ 3. How 1{11* she and the other two principal
witnesses are impeached, 1st, by contradictory
statements of their own, and 2d, by contradicto-
ry testimony of others or by the circumstances
themselves ¥ and

4. How far the defendant’s rebutting evidence
is, of itself, countroled,ifat all,by the government’s
witnesses ?

So far as Rhoda Davidson is concerned, she
being a particeps criminis with deft, if he is guil-

‘ty, it is not claimed by the Commonwealth’s At-

torney, that a conviction ¢an be had upon her tes-
timony alone. She is a competent witness,but the
counsel on both sides agree, that there ought to
be corroborating evidence to justify a jury ‘in
confiding in her statement.
- The Judge here recapitulated, in a summary
manner, the facts of which she had testified, and
then read from his minutes the testimony of Mrs
Esty and of William Davidson.
ﬂ}n addition to this testimony he remarked and
offered by the way of corroborating the testimo-

ny of these witnesses, was the fact of the Defend-
ant’s having written three letters to Rhoda, the
writing of which is now admitted, and the ac-
knowledged payments by him of sums of money
as stated by the government.

One of these letters will be with the jury, and
has been the subject of comment by the counsel on
both sides.

The existence of these facts, 18, certainly, to
be regarded as important evidence. The effect
to be given to these facts, as well as the construc-
tion and meaning of the existing letter,is for the
jury, taking into consideration and giving them
their just weight, the suggestions of the counsel
on the one side and the other.

On the one side it is insisted that the language
of this letter implies an acknowledgment of the
guilt of this charge on the part of the defendant.
On the other, that it is entirely consistent with
the idea of his innocence, and is such as might
be expected from a timid man whose fears had
been practised upon until he had been made avictim
of a conspiracy toextort money from him. You
will carefully read and examine that letter, keep-
ing in view both these theories, and then, in the
light of your whole knowledge of the case, taking
the letter as a whole, and taking it in connexion
with the facts which you believe to be proved,
you will judge what effect should be given to it
and what its legitimate bearing should be upon
the decision of the case.

The Judge then read from his minutes of the
evidence, such parts of the testimony as the de-
fendant relied upon as contradicting or controling
the testimony of Mrs Esty and Mr Davidson,
which is omitted here, the same being contained
in the report of the evidence.

He then proceeded. The defendant’s counsel
have urged that the conduct of the defendant’s
wife, whose faithfulness and devotion to her
husband, through the pendency of this investiga-
tion are surely deserving of all praise, showed
that an adulterous intercourse, could not have
been carried on between Rhoda Davidson and
her husband while she was at home, for if it had
Leen she” would have suspected or detected it,
and would have interposed to prevent or put an
end to it.

If from your knowledge of human nature,you be-
lieve she would have manifested her displasure
upon such a suspicion or detection, the argument
is a fair one, that she did not see any thing which
awakened her suspicions, if the evidence shows
that she manifested no such displeasure, but it
connot be safely or legitimately carried beyond

that extent.

The Judge then read from his minutes of evi-
dence the statements made by Rhoda, and by
other witnesses which the defendant claimed
were inconsistent or contradictory to each other,
until he came to the testimony of Ann Kenney, in
recard to which he observed :. Although the de-
fendant’s counsel do not rely upon this as ap
essential part of the defence, it is nevertheless of
a character that requires a few words of remark.

If the jury believe that Rhoda _Dﬂ\fldsnn made
the statements testified of by this witness, they
will not consider that, of itself, satisfactory evi-
dence that the acts which she speaksof as having
been done by others, did in fact take place. For
instance, they would not consider it proved by
that statement, that Mr Hoyt had intercourse with
her, and thereupon infer that he may have been
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_the father of the child. If such an inference
might have been legitimately drawn, I should have
felt bound to have permitted the Commonwealth’s

~Attorney, as he proposed to do, to put Mr Hoyt

_upon the stand to give him a chance to deny the

truth of the statement. And the same rule applies
“as to Mr and Mrs Shaler and the ““Deacons of

South Boston,” to whom Rhoda is said to have
alluded at other times; and so in regard to the
facts of which they know nothing except by the
way of a tition of her statement.

But the Jur;i;eh_ave a right to regard her state-
ments, if they believe the testimony, as evidence
~ that she has at other times made entirely different
gtatement from what she now does, and as show-
ing a levity of conduct and conversation upon the
‘subject which they have a right to consider,
when weighing and judging of her testimony.

It was upon this ground that the evidence was

excluded which was offered by the government,
to show that the facts alledged to have been

stated were not true, for even if they were not
true, it would not change the effect - which might
thus legitimately be given to the statements, if
made by the witness. g P

The Judge then read from his minutes the tes-
timony of Anna Kenney, which is omitted here,
So far as the question of a conspiracy was con-
cerned, it depended so much upon the opmion
which the jury should form of the other parts of
the case, that he deemed it unnecessary to re-
capitulate the evidence as bearing upon this point.
If the principal charge is false, it goes far to say
the least to show the existence of a conspiracy;
“and if on the other hand, a conspifacy has been
~shown to exist, it has a strong tendency to show
_that the principal charge may not be true.
_ The Judge occupied two hours in summing
up the case to the ‘ﬁlry, and in conclusion; re-
-marked that he had necessarily omitted many
things, and, perhaps, some that were important.
“The Jury would be careful to supply such omis-
‘sions as far as they could, and would not under-
stand that, because he had omitted suggestions or
evidence on the one side or the other, he thereby
antended to exclude them from their considera-
- tion. | . |

- The whole case, said he, is now for you to de-
termine. It 1s for you to ascertain the TRUTH
from the evidence before you, and to declare it
fearlessly, regardless of its consequences to the

g ﬂﬂefparty or the other.
If the ' Government have satisfied Vyou, as rea-

sonable men, that the defendant is guilty, 1 doubt
not you will say so. If they have failed to do
this, I ha‘f"e no less doubt that you will say so by
your verdict and let the defendant go free.

The Jury retired at 15 minutes before 11 o’
clock, and returned at 6 o’clock, P. M, having
been out 7 1-4 hours. On their appearance, the
Court was threnged, and there was a deep sen-
gation throughout the room. The defendant
was outwardly calm, but evidently realized that
the great result of @ most protracted trial was 6w
tocome. He seemed trustful of a deliverance, but
perfectly resigned in view of an opposite fate.
His deportment was most becoming., His wife
awaited the verdict in hope, but with tears.
The Sherift arose, and gave the audience an im-

pressive charge, that they should respect the
Court of Justice, and gi?ﬁ,na-;w_ion of ap-
probation or disapprobation; on .the announce-
ment of the verdict. If they did se, the indjvid-
uals should be arrested for contempt of Court.
The Clerk rose, and the Foreman of the jury
rose. Rev Joy H. Fairchild was directed to
take his stand at the bar. He did so, amidsy

profound silence.
Clerk. Mr Foreman; is Joy H. Fairchild, the
prisoner at the Bar, Gulty or Not Guilt y ?
Foreman. NOT GUILTY.

Clerk. So you say, Mr Foreman, and so,
gentlemen, you all say ?

The jurymen bowed. |

Oa the rendition of the verdict, notwithstand-
ing the premonition of the Sheriff, the andience
burst out in involuntary applause, which was im-
mediately checked. P

Mr Fainghild then rose, and asked the Court
if 1t would be proper for him to make a few re-
marks to the Court. The Court kindly assented
—when he rose and in a deeply affecting address
of a few moments, in a sad and measured ca-
dence, and with trembling yet assured tones, de-

delivered the following address: |

ADPRESS oF MR FAIRCHILD. .

MAYIT PLEASE YoUR HoxoRr: Havingbeen
acquitted by a jury of my country, I wish now to
state, that from the first moment I heard that the
Grand Jury had found a bill of indictment against
me, I determined to return and meet the accusa-
tion as soon as I could, acting under a sense of
dutv to myself and the advice of counsel. 1 dg-
termined to return to the old Bay State, to this
good city of Boston, to my former acquaintances
and friends, among whom I had labored for fif-
teen years in the Gospel ministry, and who ]md
been witnesges of my daily life and conversation,
I did retorn; and though under the condemnation
of an Ecclesiastical Council, I found a host of
friends to cheer and comfort me. I have sub-
mitted myself to the laws as a good citiZen should
do; and the result is before you. During the
trial my mouth has been closed; but I now de-
clare, with all solemnity, and as in the presence
of my Maker and Judge, that T am innoceit of
the erimes charged upon me. My enemies and

rsecutors I forzive, and commend them to the
l(::rgiving mercy of Almighty God. The pains—
the agonies which they have .caused me to en-
dure, no tongue can tell. Theg have brought me
and mine almost to poverty; but I will trust in
the Lord and fear no evil.

According to the decree of the late Council at
Exeter, I am now restored to that ministry, in
which I have endeavored to labor, with all fidelity,
for thirty years; and being thus restored to my
office, I greatly rejoice.

I will _only add, that I thank your Honor for
your patience and impartiality, in the discharge
of your dutyas Judge; I thank the County Attor-
ney for his courtesy, and the Jury for their just
and righteous verdict.

Multitudes then came up, took Mr Fairchild

'



by the hand, as well as his excellent lady and
interesting son, and congratulated him and them
" upon his deliverance. | -

We desire here to say, that the time which
- the jury were out, must not be understood as de-
tracting from the merit of the verdict; for we
are assured by one of the Jury that they were
unanimous at the outset with the exception of
one, Mr George W. Bond, who only dissented
that they might examine the evidence in detail,
and thus come to a deliberate result. They did
§0. This of course occupied many hours. Then
it was that they decided that Mr Fairchild was
not only legally, but morally innocent. Mr Bond
s0 expressed himself to Mr F. at the close of
the trial,

The defendant and family then retired, and
as they entered their carriage in Court Square,
- which was literally filled with thousands of peo-
ple, there arose three tremendous cheers, with not
a single note of disapprobation, and#the carriage
- dreve off amidst the plaudits of the people.

Thus has ended one of the most interesting
trials in New England. The defendant has sgf-
ered, but he is now delivered. The verdict is a
most righteous one, as all will confess, who read
the evidence. The over zealous and accusing

clergymen, and the private prosecutors, will only
be remembered in sorrow and indignation—the
former, for having condemned a brother without

waiting for adequate proof, and the latter, fo
- their shamelessness, corruption and infamy.

The Court then adjourned for the present
term.

[Norx. We would here say, in justice
to the Commonwealth’s Attorney, Samuel
D.Parker, Egq, that he has conducted the
prosecution throughout with the greatest
fairness and liberality, He has treated the
defendant respectfully, and without indulg-
“ing in any disparaging personal epithets,
has contented himself with urging the case

for the gevernment, with all his ability
and profesﬁqnal astuteness indeed, but not
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as a partizan or with the feelings of these

‘who have privately prosecuted the case
from motives, other than those of justice,

and who are looked upon by the public as
having been the especial companions eof
Miss Rhoda Davidsen and thereby received
some of the pitch of her defilement.

In connection with the trial, and rather
as a preliminary thereto, we would say that

the bill of indictment was found at the July

term of the Municipal Court, 1844, and
from that time until the 15th of Feb, last,
the defendant was residing in Exeter, N,
H. out of this jurisdiction. It is now un-
derstood that Governor Briggs refused at
first to grant any requisition for the arrest
of Mr Fairehild in New Hampshire, but

‘was prevailed upon to do so subsequently,

by reason of some urgent solicitation en
the part of certain persons, but not at the
especial instigation, as we learn, of the
prosecution.

This requisition on the Governor of New
Hampshire was not successful, and Goy.
Steele declined to give him up. Subse-
quently, Fairchild, having become
ready for the trial, and the public excitg-
ment having somewhat subsided, left Exe-
ter, and voluntarily repaired to this eity for
the purpose of giving himself up, and meet-
ing the prosecution. He did so on the 15th
of February last, pleaded Vol Guiliy, and
with several friends, among the most
wealthy and estimable of our citizens, gave
bail in the sum of $1000 for his appear-
ance at the March term of the Municipal
Court.

We shall issue ANOTHER EDITION of this
pamphlet in a few days, revised and cor-
rected, and with some considerable addi-
tion to the reported remarks of the open-

ing counsel for the defence. ]



